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Key Information for Shareholders

TERRER

FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2018

Financial Year End
31 March 2018

Announcement of 2017/18 results
25 June 2018

Last day to register for the entitlement to attend and
vote at the 2017/18 Annual General Meeting
17 August 2018

2017/18 Annual General Meeting
24 August 2018

Last day to register for 2017/18
Final Dividends
29 August 2018

2017/18 Final Dividend expected
Payment Date
18 September 2018

—EF-N\FHBFE
MBELE
—T-\F=A=+-A

—E—tF - N\GEEEAMFBY
—ET-N\FXAZt+EHH

SESR=-B—tF —N\EE
BREBFAERREZBEBLAN
—F—\ENATLH

St F - NFERFBEAE
—F-N\FN\A=+EA

TE—F - N\FEXRERE
RE&EZEZL A
—ZET-N\EN\AZt+AH

Bt =2t F - N\FERERE
=Nz
—Z-)\FhA+N\H

SHARE CAPITAL [}
As at
i
31 March 2018 30 June 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
=A=+—H NA=TH
Authorised (HK$) JETE (BT 400,000,000 400,000,000
Issued (HK$) 2ET0ET) 199,455,520 199,285,920
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Key Information for Shareholders

ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE
AND SHAREHOLDER DISTRIBUTION

As at 30 June 2018, the Company had 1,992,859,200 shares
in issue of which approximately 25.4%" was held by the
public. As at that date, the Company had a total of 858
registered shareholders. The following table shows the
distribution of ownership according to the Register of Members
and the Participant Shareholding Report generated from the
Central Clearing and Settlement System as of 30 June 2018:

TERREFR

REGBERRD M2

HE-Z-N\FEXA=1+H AQRHBET
f% 15 1,992,859,200 % + EF A RIFREL
1525.4%0 - HER B » AR A HEA MR
R 8584 o IRERREMEPREEIW R
GN B N\EXNA=TARENZEER
ERE - BPVRSI T ATRESMHEREILE
EHBE

Number of % of % of
registered number of Number total issued
Category shareholders  shareholders of shares  share capital
3 R HERT
5l BRERHE RREH% FRBE ROLB%
New Sense Enterprises Limited 1 0.12% 487,608,000 24.47%
Castfast Properties RERMERR
Development Co., Ltd. BRAT] 1 0.12% 330,000,000 16.56%
The Wedding City Co. EYHAR AT
Limited 1 0.12% 260,000,000 13.05%
Ho’s family @ BN 3 0.35% 400,462,000 20.10%
Directors & EEO 4 0.46% 8,304,000 0.42%
Individuals EAREE 664 77.39% 15,970,558 0.79%
Institutions, corporates WIBIRESE
and nominees TPEREEERREA 184 21.44% 490,514,642 24.61%
Total &t 858 100.00% 1,992,859,200 100.00%

Note:

(1) Public shareholding represents shares held by the public, excluding
those held by New Sense Enterprises Limited, Castfast Properties
Development Co., Limited, The Wedding City Co., Limited, Ho's
family and Directors of the Company.

(2)  Ho's family comprises Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer, Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming, Non-executive Director
and Deputy Chairman and Ms. Ho Po Chu.

(3)  Directors represent Directors of the Company excluding Mr. Ho
Cheuk Fai and Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming.

(1) 2FFREREK (R New Sense Enterprises
Limited » S2EFHWERRBRAF - 5
WMARDE  (TRKERARRREEHMF
R BEIN) ARATFIRAERRMDEE o

@) (EXKEEEFRITBAAIMIEELE
FNTEERBTF A ERLE RAEK
AR

B) EFEKXR(BRARELERFMEHLEIN)
ARRRIZEE -
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Key Information for Shareholders

FTERREHR

As at 30 June 2018 Shareholders Shares of HK$0.1 each

R-E-NFXA=1+H IR SREAEE1BTRG

Number of Shares Held Number % of total Number % of total

FrislRH &R A LEgEs #HE HBEES

1-2,000 509 59.3% 35,175 0.0%

2,001-10,000 46 5.4% 248,810 0.0%

10,001-20,000 40 4.7% 651,400 0.0%

20,001-50,000 66 7.7% 2,360,048 0.1%

50,001-100,000 45 5.2% 3,208,288 0.2%

100,001-200,000 48 5.6% 7,412,332 0.4%

200,001-500,000 30 3.5% 8,711,456 0.4%

500,001-1,000,000 23 2.7% 16,922,022 0.8%

1,000,001-2,000,000 10 1.2% 14,997,892 0.8%

2,000,001-5,000,000 14 1.6% 43,923,324 2.2%

Over 5,000,000 MA 27 3.1% 1,894,388,453 95.1%
858 100.0% 1,992,859,200 100.0%

MARKET CAPITALISATION Hi{E

As at 31 March 2018 BE-_Z—-N\E=HA=+—H

(Closing Price: HK$1.17) (WH{E :1.17%85T)

HK$2,333,629,584 2,333,629,584 77T

As at 30 June 2018 BE-ZE2-N\EXA=1+H

(Closing Price: HK$1.17) (W Hi{E :1.17%85T)

HK$2,331,645,264 2,331,645,264 57T

Share Price Movement and Trade Volume in Financial Year 2017/18

Bt/ - N\MBFEZREEZRAR

Share Price (HK$) Share Price (HK$)
Bcf® GBT) Mf® &)
1.50 1 150
1.40 1.40
1.30 1.30
1.20 1.20
1.10 1.10
1.00 1.00
0.90 0.90

Apr 17 Jul 17 Oct 17 Jan 18

Trade Volume Trade Volume

(Shares in million) (Shares in million)
mRE (B8R kZE (BER)

36 36

24 24

12 12

0 TR | ) 0

Apr 17 Jul 17 Oct 17 Jan 18
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Key Information for Shareholders

STOCK CODE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Main Board

1050

BOARD LOT
2,000 Shares

SHAREHOLDER SERVICES

Any matters relating to your shareholding, such as transfer of
shares, change of name or address, and loss of share
certificates should be addressed in writing to the Hong Kong
branch share registrar of the Company:

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1712-16, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2862-8628

Fax: (852) 2529-6087

INVESTOR RELATIONS

For enquiries, please contact:

Mr. Choi Wai Hin, Henry

Chief Financial Officer

Karrie International Holdings Limited
10th Floor, Southeast Industrial Building
611-619 Castle Peak Road

Tsuen Wan, New Territories

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2411-0913

Fax: (852) 2415-1608

Email: ir@karrie.com

TERREFR

B 43 4 517
BEEMARHHARAR
IR

1050

BFERE
2,000 B A% 15

R R AR 5

REAEAER BTROHZEER 8K
g - Bt BRRES - F
NEmBE R PINBBRMDBPELNER

BEEPREFELBRAA

BEET
ERRNEBRI183E
AR

17181712-16
EEE 1 (852)2862-8628
BHE : (852)2529-6087

REERE
B EER - BB -

BB A
BEMBE

=B ZERERA A
BB

FAREE
SIUAK611-6195%
REIHEARNEI0E
B iE ¢ (852)2411-0913
fEH : (852)2415-1608
FE : ir@karrie.com
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Corporate Calendar

TRAEH®

The real estate development project jointly developed with the substantial
shareholders in Fenggang, Dongguan, obtained a Commodity Housing Pre-sale
October | | Permit. The Group was entitled to 50% of the profits derived from this project. The
104 first round of over 200 units has been launched for pre-sale
SERARRAEZRBMNEHEXREBNSHMERENTIL  ~A5EFH
BB 50% i FIER - EREBREL — A EEMETEE
Received “Outstanding Import and Export Enterprise Awards 2017” from the Hong
Kong Chinese Importers’ & Exporters’ Association
EhERAOEERE 2017 EHACERE — SRR
Received “Hong Kong Sustainability Award 2016/17 — Grand Award (Small-and
November |Medium-Sized Organization Category)” from the Hong Kong Management
1A Association
EEEEREXHERE [FAUREERK2016/17 — SHER (/M)
Received “Certificate in the Partner Employer Award Scheme” from the Hong Kong
General Chamber of Small and Medium Business
EEBRNACEDERE [REER ] Rt 8IRR BT EERRAE
Groundbreaking Ceremony for Guanjingtou Plant Modification Project, namely
December | | Phases 4 & 5 of Castfast Villas whose foundation works are under progress
12 A SE2EEBZEHBE-ENEER  MREREN  ARETEEEN - RIEETT
WETRE
Received “the Best Supplier Award 2017"” from Inventec
January BHREFRERIE 2017 HEH-ERE]
1/ Received “Partner of the Year 2017” from NEC Corporation
J& NEC Corporation 123 [ FE & 1EIXFH 2017 | 5B
Received “10 Years Plus Caring Company Logo” for 2005-2018 from the Hong
Kong Council of Social Service
EEELGRBBERE (105 Plus B REMIZ](2005-2018) B3
On 12 January 2018, the Group decided to discontinue the Consumer and Services
March Business which had recorded loss for several years. The Company disposed such
3 A business for HK$51,000,000. Proceeds from the disposal of the business have been
used for the payment of special dividend of HK2.55 cents per share to the eligible
shareholders. The completion of disposal took place on 29 March 2018
TR N\F-A+H EEATZEELBEZFNEEENREERR U
51,000,000/8 7T H & % %75 » W B H & XK 2 S FIEK N SR 2.55 Bl 2
FBRETFAREREER  HEFHEER-_ZE—N\F=A-t+ABZEX
May Received “Perfect Quality Award 2018” from Lenovo Group
5H EEEE BRI (2018 HZBFmE &
June The substructure works of the Boluo County residential project of the Group located
6 in Huizhou, Guangdong Province are under progress
SEREREABMTEEZ 2 ETHRABREBETEITRE

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 3= F| BB 42 A IR A 7




Financial Highlights
MBERE

Share Price Movement of the past 5 years

BELFZREEZE
Share Price (HK$) Share Price (HK$)
BIE (B g GB7)
1.6 1.6
1.4 1.4
1.2 1.2
1.0 1.0
08 1 08
0.6 1 06
0.4 F 4 04
03 r 1 03
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Revenue HK$ million Profit attributable to equity shareholders HK$ million
BWAEEET BEFEABGENEEET
N
) & )
N \
- >
&
\
— — — c— J — —
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
* Include continuing operations only
REEEEER
Basic earnings per share HK cents Dividends per share HK cents
BREAEFEA BRKREEW
N N\
, @ )
N
5
-
>

= NEE = o 5 5

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
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Financial Highlights
IR

Turnover percentage by Products Turnover percentage by Geographical Location
RERESNEXET L= (based on the country in which the final destination
Contnuing operations of shipment is located or services are provided)
SIS RERMAELBSNEXRFRIR (RERKRNER
B Metal and Plastic Business Kyt R R AT E B R 2 Be)
heBBER
[0 Electronics Manufacturing Services Business
BETHEERTER
I Real Estate Business and others u JSF;;” u %\(?%g Kong u I;PRC
R KA ! a
Discontinued operations M Asia (excluding Japan, Hong Kong and the PRC)
BRI E R TN (PBEFEAR - HERTE)
I Consumer and Services Business B North America M Western Europe
HEE MR EER dEE=M PR

1% 2%

53% 1% 0% —53%

29% 28% 29% 27%

D

3%

L 7%
12% 9%

44% 46% 13% 15%  15% 13%
2018 2017 % Changes
—E-N\F —E—+F BEADL
HKS$ million B &8
Continuing operations BiEREER
Revenue WA 2,920 2,700 +8%
Gross profit EM 423 368 +15%
Operating profit gEmR 264 220 +20%
Profit for the year from FEREHERE
continuing operations EFE 7 m A 218 190 +15%
Loss for the year from FERBBKI
discontinued operations TR 7 B8 35 21 +67%
Profit attributable to equity shareholders 1 zm 58 A &)@ 7 183 168 +9%
Total assets BEAE 2,644 2,337 +13%
Shareholders’ equity e T 1,188 1,079 +10%
In Million R
Number of shares B 1,995 1,996 -
Per Share Data BRER
HK cents B
Basic earnings FLA 5 ) 9.2 8.4 +10%
Diluted earnings EEG R A 9.1 8.4 +8%
Total cash dividends BB E 8.9 6.5 +37%
HK$ B
Net asset value per share BREEFE 0.6 0.5 +20%
Financial Ratios B i LL &
Gross profit margin (%)* EERER (%)* 14.5 13.6 +7%
Net profit margin (%)* ERAH] (%)* 7.5 7.0 +7%
Net current ratio Fn e 1.8 2.0 -10%
Net quick ratio R EP L K 1.4 1.5 7%
Net gearing ratio (%) HIRITEE HE (%) 29.8 30.1 1%
Interest coverage* SR S 3 21.2 23.9 11%
Dividend payout (%) EBLLE (%) 96.7 77.4 +25%
Revenue to net bank borrowings* W A BRI THE B L R+ 8.3 8.3 —
Non-current assets to total equity (%) JE/tE) & B g m
BEE (%) 75.8 79.3 4%

* Include continuing operations only
REREFEREER

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 32l BEIFR =i A IR A &




Financial Highlights
BB =

DEFINITIONS E&E

Basic earnings Profit attributable to equity shareholders e ARGRT

BIRER G

per share Weighted average number of shares DNEF 5 A&
Diluted earnings Profit attributable to equity shareholders SRR BRFEARERN
per share Diluted weighted average number of shares ' HOE A9 AR 2
Net asset Va]ue Net assets iH&igF \\_?g‘@ EE}\%TE
per share Number of shares as at year end ' FIRRE
Gross profit from REFERE
Gross profit continuing operations . B 2ER
. x 100% BRER (% R X 100%
margin (%) Revenue from o EARRNOY remmmEEs O
continuing operations ZWA
Profit for the year from FEREFELE
Net profit continuing operations \ E2m A
. x 100% PR AR (% —— X 100%
margin (%) Revenue from o ARREACO REFELEER ’
continuing operations ZHA
Current assets - mBEE
Net current ratio FmE L S
Current liabilities o MEEIE
Net auick i Current assets less inventories T RBOEERFE
et quick ratio AR = :
d Current liabilities ' N mEBRE
Bank borrowings and obligations FITEERREHET
Net gearing under finance leases less cash and SRR EERE SN
ratio (%) bank deposits b SR (%) RITER
Total equity BmiaE
Earnings before interest expenses, tax, REBELLEBZ
depreciation and amortisation MERFB - BE -
Interest coverage from continuing operations FlEHE R FE N HEAT RN
Interest expenses from continuing operations REFELRERBL
MBS
ivi Dividend per share . Bl L
Dividend enep x100%  JRBLLE (%) o x 100%
payout (%) Earnings per share BRE )
Revenue from continuing operations REFELLEBZBA
Revenue to net : 2 WA B CEETERE
bank borrowings Bank borrowings and obligations under SERITIE R R ﬁEfTTE!, \)}ﬁﬂﬁ@;f
finance leases less cash and bank deposits EAERER & MRITER
Non-current Non-current assets EneEEHE FRBEE
assets to total Total equity R BEL R (%) EmeE

equity (%)
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Chairman’s Statement

'Q' ERE®E

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND RESULTS FEXBRFEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group was principally #HZE=ZZT—N\F=A=+—HIt AEE=E

engaged in: ERE:

Continuing Operations BFEREER

— Metal and Plastic Business (“M&P”): manufacturing and — F&BBEK(RALBRE]): 2ER
sale of metal and plastic products, including server HELE RERBER  BEMAMRSEN
casings, moulds, plastic and metal parts and household HoBAE BRESEBBGLREE
products; mE

—  Electronic Manufacturing Services Business (“EMS”): — SBFHERIEHK(EFHRI)) &
manufacturing and sale of magnetic tape data storage, ENHEM T RBURR TR - Wk
point-of-sale (“POS”) system, medical products, office - BRER PRAEXEEMR
automation products and other computer peripherals; Hitv B ARER

—  Real Estate Business: urban renewal, real estate project — REHEXR : EHdE  BHEEH
investment, property leasing and development; and BRE WERHEERTR K

FEBBER

AR B Metal and plastic business

Server casings

Automatic
Vending Machine

ETEERITEK
Electronic manufacturing
services business

W SR 2 A
POS system

FHER
Storage product

D2 KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 327 EIBR 2R 5 IR 2 A)




Discontinued Operations
Consumer and Services Business: building of “Fullhouse
World” Brand, provision of relevant services, such as

catering services and sales of themed gifts. During the
year ended 31 March 2018, the Consumer and Services
Business segment was disposed of to a related party and

the results of this segment have been classified as
discontinued operation of the Group.

Business Review

Results

Continuing Operations

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the revenue of
the Group was HK$2,919,880,000 (for the year
ended 31 March 2017: HK$2,699,638,000),
increased by approximately 8% when compared
with the corresponding period of last year, while
profit for the year from continuing operations of the
Company amounted to HK$217,707,000 (for the
year ended 31 March 2017: HK$189,553,000),
increased by approximately 15% when compared
with the corresponding period of last year. The
increase in revenue was mainly due to the
improvement in revenue from both M&P and EMS.
The profit for the year from continuing operations of
the Group recorded a sound growth, which was
mainly due to the merging of plants and the
continuous deepening of automation application, as
well as the enhancement of production efficiency.

In addition, for Real Estate Business, we recorded
revenue of approximately HK$48,540,000 for the
year (for the year ended 31 March 2017:
HK$4,186,000). Such increase in revenue was
mainly attributable to the recognition of revenues
from the sale of more than thirty units situated at
Area B, Castfast Villas (32325 EB & ). As the Real
Estate Business was still under development and at
the pre-sale stage, it has not yet made substantial
contributions to the Group’s profits for the year.

BRIEREEK

— HBERRBEER  2ulmEER]
b REERRGE REETER SR
EHRERE - B#EZE_FT—-N\F=A
=t—BLEFER HEERRBE
EBOWOETHET - Bt X
BRI A ARE D KR IEEERT -

(=) EHOE

¥EFE
HE-_ZTZ-N\E=ZA=+—H81t
FE - AKEB2EEREAR
2,919,880,000/8 T(#H & = =
—+tF=ZA=+—HLFE:
2,699,638,000 7% 7T ) ¥ & F [7] Hf
EFH8% MARBFERE
TELEEB2FERNAB
217,707,000 8 L (BE T —+
FZA=Z+—B LFE:
189,553,000 7 7T ) 82 = 4F [7] Hf 4%
MTH5%  EEBLEATFER
FeBBRETRINEEES
LA - SEFERBFELE
B FE B TEIEE =
ZERHRBEAMH  BERLEE
B - WAIEEBESTE »

o BHIEEKIE - RNFE
SRS & ¥ 5 548,540,00078 7T (B
2 —+F=HA=1+—HIHF
€ :4,186,000/8 ) * &%
FEFrERBAHE=TZEzE
SEBEEMKA - BHEER
MEERRKEERE  WAFE
MABEBEFNRHERNER
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Chairman’s Statement

ERE®E

Discontinued Operations

In order to avoid the risk of continued losses of
Consumer and Services Business and allow putting
efforts for concentrating resources on the
development of core businesses such as M&P, EMS
and Real Estate Business, the Company entered into
an agreement to dispose of its Consumer and
Service Business on 12 January 2018. The
completion of disposal took place on 29 March
2018. Accordingly, the results of the Consumer and
Service Business were classified as discontinued
operations during the current year. For the year
ended 31 March 2018, the loss for the year from
discontinued operations was HK$35,414,000 (for
the year ended 31 March 2017: HK$21,341,000).
Such increase in loss was mainly due to the rapid
changes and the extraordinarily intense competition
of the industry.

M&P and EMS (“Industrial Business”)

Revenue for 2017/18 increased by approximately

7% when compared with last year, which was

mainly due to:

(@ Revenue of the M&P for the year ended 31
March 2018 increased by approximately 10%
to HK$1,576,143,000 (for the year ended 31
March 2017: HK$1,436,843,000) when
compared with the corresponding period of
last year. The increase in revenue was mainly
due to the increase in the shipment resulting
from the rising demand for server chassis
products.

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 32l BEIFR =i A IR A &

B IFA & 3T
AREEBERRGEERFE
EBEZRBREERETERER
BB EFRINKEHEZERS
EROER  ARRRZZT—N
F-ATZARTENHENE
ELRBEEY  PEFHEER
T2 N\EFE=ZA-t+HIBEEK-
Bt HEERIRGEXEBOE
BRAFENDBAECRIELESR
o BE-_ZT-N\F=A=+—
HILFE  FERBERILELS
¥7% 2 FEEER35414,000%
T(BEZE—tF=A=+—
B IEFE 21,341,000 7T )
EIEENETEEANITEZ LR
REHFEBBIZIFTE -

Te¥BRETFTRI(IEE
#%1)

Tt/ \FEEEERE
FLEAL7% EBR:

@ IeBBREE—_Z—N\F
“A=+—BILFEZEE
BERAFRBLEATH10%
%1,576,143,000 8T (B2
—E—tF=ZA=+—HI
F JZ:1,436,843,0007%
L) BEELEA FER
AAREEF KL  BHEE

=1 e




(b)

Revenue of the EMS for the year ended 31
March 2018 slightly increased by
approximately 3% to HK$1,294,778,000 (for
the year ended 31 March 2017:
HK$1,256,973,000) when compared with the
corresponding period of last year, which was
mainly due to an increase in sales of magnetic
tape data storage product, which was resulted
from the integration of the storage product
market driving the increase in customer
demand; and some of the increase was
partially set off by decrease in revenue from
POS system and the decrease in the
manufacturing of lower profit margin products
by the Group. The drop in revenue of the POS
system was due to the delay in delivery from
the customers.

The Group’s Industrial Business achieved
fabulous remarkable results and played a
leading role in the international server casing
manufacturing market. It also passed the ISO
certification and the more stringent
Responsible Business Alliance (“RBA”) Code
of Conduct audit smoothly within a short
period of time after the plant merging, which
made the Group maintain good
competitiveness and leading position among
the industry peers. The results of which are
shown as follows:

(i) Plant integration: the Group has
improved the effectiveness of its
production equipment, speeded up the
process for solving engineering problems,
and reduced the time required for moulds
fabrication and the frequency of mould
repairs, which in turn increased work
efficiency and saved both working hours
and manpower.
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“A=t—HILFEZEH
R EFRHEAEM A T4
3% % 1,294,778,000/% T
(Bz-_Z2—+tt&F=A
=+ — 8 Ik F E:
1,256,973,0007870) - £ &
BHRREFEMMISEES &
FRPFSIG I - MB B
SRR HTRERIHER
EFH AWM EAEREX
USRI R 2 358 Tk
AEERDEEERNBER
EREDAEE - BWERK R
SEERETRERRPIEER
HE PR

REBz IEXBEARIE
B NERAIRESIMNREE
M5 R BN - I B
EEMENERER - BX
JIE A58 38 1SO 7238 & 5B BA%
WEEREBBETRER
(Responsible Business
Alliance [RBA|) % %~ f&
REBRFREHEEN - H
EENERE - FEERR

(i) BB &/IT
HEEREBA - MR
R TR RE ROR D
TREERERER
R e BN T AR
MK EhETIERH
RAF °
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ERE®E

(if)

Continuous deepening our automation
initiatives: the Group succeeded in the
full implementation of automated
production in the riveting and stacking
process. Automation and integration
were also achieved in welding,
secondary processes such as degating of

SER LB K
SEEXNEEET
NETRHETERD
fbEE: BEE X
BYIKAORBEE =
KMIIF BRT
B&{ - —81-

3% 5% B B E g
#E KK BRREE
BERFELRNIERE

reduce the rising wage pressure. 5 e

plastic parts and pad printing.
Accordingly, the improvement of scope
and level of automation can effectively

AFEAHLLAFLER

Comparison between Manual Mode and Automation Mode

I EBAATRERA BEEERN MEREFIREE
Production - —
processes Manual mode Automation Mode Efficiency Improvement

used previously

ABRSBREEFA

FoomMBEET RE

. . . _ HEE R R LRTHE 400%
Sticking a ¥ @ & Workers involved have been
rubber mat : : = A, 5 B2 reduced from 5 to nil, while

the efficiency and direction
accuracy has been greatly
improved by 400%

ANBRA60% @ BELE

= { % T8 250%
HET BB \ . - & - Manpower has been
Automated ; - : =8 reduced by 60%, while
production in -\ ~d T v efficiency has been
the riveting N | improved by 250%

process

B8k R X BRI
mE - LB REEE

Automation: inspection
with optical technology
shall be more accurate
than visual inspection
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Chairman’s Statement

(iii) Efforts to expand research and

(iv)

development of products: the Group
successfully developed a series of
product technologies, which significantly
strengthened its capability to deal with
the production of various parts and thus
broadened its business scope inclusive of
upstream moulds export, personal
medical product and consumer products.

Human resources development: the
Group introduced a new human
resources system platform and started up
the talent pool project; strengthened
training on performance management,
and strived to establish the system of
talent cultivation and echelon
construction in order to enhance team
capabilities, and set up a reserve core
talents to meet the needs of business
development of the Group. In addition,
the Group has successfully implemented
Key Performance Indicators (KPlIs)
performance appraisal so as to effectively
promote the evaluation mechanism for
objectives realization of each business
unit as well as the fair and objective
performance of the same.

(iii)

(iv)

EREHE

BHRMERITE:
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(v) Improvement of the production system:
The production department introduced
the Manufacturing Execution System
(MES), which was a set of workshop
production information management
system and built a solid, reliable and
comprehensive manufacturing
collaboration management platform for
the Company, hence the products quality
and customer satisfaction were improved
since production and outflow of defective
products were reduced.

The Group continuously strived to maintain its
position as a global leading mechanical parts
manufacturer. The Group’s major customers
were leading enterprise of the industry from
the international market. Having been working
together with these customers for more than
15 years, the Group has maintained a good
relationship of cooperation and has also
signed orders for a new generation models,
with these customers, which lay a better
foundation for future earnings; in addition, the
Group has still been striving to become a
supplier to other international technology
enterprise customers and actively made

approaches to potential Chinese customers to
expand the market in the PRC.

HEERT (2017 SEHEREE]
the Best Supplier Award 2017

from Inventec

NEC Corporation 8% [ FE & {E
B#E2017] %

2017 52
Partner of the Year 2017
from NEC Corporation
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Chairman’s Statement

EE®RE

[Il. Real Estate Business . FEiEXER

The Group achieved better utilization of land AEBERLHER  BRELH
resources to maximize the value of the land and to BE FOEMEER: ARde
expand Real Estate Business. To cope with the FHEXRBER  ~AEECHEAR
development of Real Estate Business, the Group had EEEMEXBER  BHESE
a well-established professional Real Estate Business BER/REBRABKEN S —K
team. It was believed that the Real Estate Business R MEERB OB AAE
would definitely be another revenue source of the BE R R - RRBE B RASE
Group. As such sector has started bringing in BRI o

revenues to the Group, potential contributions
would gradually emerge in the future.

2LHEFHRBRRAECAERB_ASEEM
Over 200 units of the development project under the New Cooperation Agreement
have been pre-sold

1.EEEZESN  AHNEEEEREETERITRE
The substructure works of Phases 4 & 5 of Castfast Villas are
under progress
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'Q' ERE®E

Its main development projects include: HIZMERELBRE

(1) The Guanjingtou Plant modification project (E (1) EBEHBERMEIERER :
HEEMENEEE )
In responding to the local government’s urban, AIBB R BN =8
plant and village policy, the old Guanjingtou BUERER - BR=RMEH
Plant in Fenggang, Dongguan has been REHFRERZREMEE
relocated to Yuquan, Fenggang, Dongguan. R WERZT—RFIEF
The relocation was completed successfully in e RAEFERE L
2016. The original Guanjingtou plant had a & 49/360,000% F 75K
site area of approximately 60,000 square A 212 E E A& 4) 120,000 F
meters and a gross floor area of approximately K BERRREERE
120,000 square meters, which will be £M- AMNEEER - B
developed into a residential project for the EESER TIZFFAlE @ I
Fourth and Fifth Phases of Castfast Villas (521 EITERTRE  EERE-

SRE). Currently, it has obtained a substructure
works permit, and has carried out substructure
works with good progress having been
achieved.

017 FERTTEERESEN - APEESEN
Groundbreaking Ceremony held for Phases 4 & 5 of Castfast Villas at the end of 2017

1 e

AN, T Wy
= - " ?&‘ :

- -




(2)

(3)

New Cooperation Agreement Development
Project:

The Company has invested HK$140,000,000
in the residential project of the Third Phases of
Castfast Villas (52 ¥ 5 EE) which was jointly
developed with the Company’s substantial
shareholder. The project covered an area of
approximately 32,000 square meters, which
could be developed into a total of more than
600 residential units with a floor area of over
61,000 square meters. The Company would
enjoy 50% of the profits derived from this
development project under cooperation
agreement. The main building of this project
has been completed. The greening works are
currently under progress. The first batch of
units have launched for pre-sales which
received enthusiastic response with over 200
units having been pre-sold. The Board
believed that it will soon bring significant
returns to the Group.

Refurbishment Project of 47 residential units
The 47 residential units in Area B, Castfast
Villas (12 = EEB[&), Fenggang, which were
purchased and refurbished in 2016, have a
floor area of approximately 3,600 square
meters. More than 30 units have been sold,
some of which were recorded during the
current year, and the remaining units will be
sold successively.

@)

3)

HEElp#RRER

ek N/NCTPNL B R (e
B REBREFZHNEE
BHEH ARRAKESRE
140,000,0008 7T * L H#b
& 49 532,000 75 oK - B
REMBEEL61,000F 75
K EHROHNBZEFESE
i - RRRIZEZEEHZE
BRI B FT13 8 50% 4 7
o HEWEZEBEEYD
FERK + B IEETTRIMAR L
& WE—#EMELTE
B REZRZ -FEEER
WA ZEEN - EFEE
ERRAREEHREF K

=~ o
I

BFT I EFEEIHE
RZT—RFEA - W
# Bl 3 B X BEBE AY
U+ EF=EEn - EEmA
HE4A3,600% F 75K o 3]
EEH=THEEALL - 51H
RAFEEAR - R TFEBEAG
FEETHLE -
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(4)

(5)

ERE®E

.....

EMNEEREERRER 2l - REEFTEHRIRE
The substructure works are under progress on the site of the Boluo County residential project
located in Huizhou

Boluo County residential project (1&#& 811 £
HH)

In February 2017, the Group won the tender
of a piece of land in Boluo County of Huizhou
for a residential development project, with a
gross floor area of approximately 30,000
square meters. Demolition work has been
done on the site on which is conducting
foundation pit work. Substructure works have
been commenced and satisfactory progress
has been made.

Yantian Plant (JEF R )

Regarding the approximately 20,000 square
meters land plot of the idle Yantian Plant in
Fenggang, Dongguan, the Group is actively
discussing on the plan of the change in land
use and modification of the old plant buildings
to better use the land resources so as to
enhance the potential value of the land with
the relevant local authorities. It is hoped that
an agreement can be entered into as soon as
possible to enrich the Group’s real estate
projects.

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 3= F| BB 42 A IR A 7
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(5)
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Conclusion

Industrial Business remains the core focus of the
Group. It may continue to grow steadily and its
result is encouraging. The Group has been striving
to achieve the vision of “becoming the most
sophisticated mechanical parts manufacturing
solution and value-added electronics assembly
services provider within global industry”. To stand
out from many strong competitors, except for
emphasizing the value of “proactive, services and
commitment,” the Group shall also have the ability
to break through adversities. To own such ability,
the Group shall embrace the concept of
“confluence of excellence and breaking new
ground”, following which turn the plight into an
opportunity under the highly competitive business
environment; then experience metamorphosis,
subsequently innovate, so as to flourish. Finally,
achievements can be successively maintained, and
the Group may grow into a centennial enterprise.

ke
I%%%W%KEIWI% g
BEBERBEKE RESAH
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Confluence:

It represents a collection of exquisite
things, including talent, design,
production, materials, quality and
facilities, etc., to meet the growing
demands from customers. Accordingly,
the Group can maintain long-term
good cooperation relationship with
international prestigious brands;
meanwhile it aims to reduce the risk of
customer concentration and to expand
its customer base through developing
new potential customers of technology
enterprise internationally and
domestically.

The exquisite design needs talented
people to contemplate, the intelligent
plants need talented people to operate
and the premium products need
talented people to develop and
research. Therefore, the Group attaches
great importance to establish the
system of talent cultivation and echelon
construction. Moreover, the Group
continually provides high-quality
training to improve the quality of its
talents. The Group believes that
gathering of excellent talents may
inherit the development achievement
which shall be passed down in the
future.

The Group maintains strong business
activities to focus on the development
of core Industrial Business and the
promising Real Estate Business which
may further improve profitability.
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Innovation: By continually bringing up innovative
ideas and breaking through the
traditional framework, the Group
constantly underwent various
innovation and transformation as time
changes. The Group has expanded and
implemented plant integration;
meanwhile it continuously deepened
the automated production, which made
its production become standardized,
digitized, analyzable data, integrated
and comprehensive. Intelligent
production mode has been established
to increase efficiency and reduce costs.
Meanwhile, such mode can also
improve customer satisfaction, which
in turn can maintain a sustained
increase in orders.

Finally, in order to increase revenue
sources, the Group also commenced
Real Estate Business. Such sector
enabled the release of the value of the
old plant and significantly increased
the profitability of the Group, which
facilitated better profits for the
shareholders.

Dividend Policy

The Board has adopted a set of “New Dividend Policy”
in the announcement of results for the first quarter of
2006/07, which outlines the factors that should be taken
into account in determining any dividend for distribution,
such as the profit attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company, cash flow and investment budgets. After
careful consideration of the aforementioned factors, and
given that the Board maintains the Company’s track
record of paying dividends continuously to our
shareholders every year the Board has decided to
recommend to pay a final dividend of HK4.75 cents per
share of the Company (“Share”) to our shareholders
whose names appear on the register of member of the
Company on 31 August 2018.
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3.  Geographical Distribution
The Group has always adopted a diversified approach in
shipping its goods and does not rely on one single
market. Details of the Group’s geographical distribution
are set out in the segment report in note 5 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements of this annual report.

4. Prospects
I. Industrial Business

To align with its high efficient feature, the Group
has been regarding “Made in China 2025” as its
development guideline. The Industrial Business
remains the core business of the Group which shall
not be overlooked. After surpassing the changes in
2017 to 2018, the Group will meet new challenges
with new opportunities. Therefore, in the coming
years, the Group will take the following issues as its
first priority:

(i)  To consolidate the existing Industrial Business,
exploit markets for potentially profitable
products, open up new market space by
leveraging on the improved production
capacity achieved after automation to meet
the needs of business development;

(i) To promote the use of logistics chain (suppliers)
intelligent systems, improve the
comprehensive management of procurement,
quotation, production costs and sales prices,
so that the management can be more cost-
efficient, as well as timely reflect the current
status, in order to rapidly respond to the fast-
changing environment;

(iii) To promote staff training and introduce
external professional training, enhance the
professional skills of team talent pool, upgrade
the quality of talents, further optimize the
human resources, hold a reserve of sufficient
talents, establish cooperation between different
tiers of staff, so as to reduce talent loss and
make the Group more competitive;

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED = F| BB A IR A A
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Chairman’s Statement

(iv) To implement continuous deepening of
automation application, especially automation
in plastic injection and assembly, whereby it
can meet the diversification, individualization
and technical requirements of our customers,
as well as improve shipping capacity,
production flexibility and quality inspection to
achieve a more solid foundation for its
Industrial Business; and

(v) To optimize and improve the internal
management system, increase the
development of new product technologies,
enhance the competitiveness of the Group in
undertaking new business, and gradually move
towards standardization, regularization and
institutionalization, so as to improve efficiency
and quality and to realize costs reduction.

Under a highly competitive industry environment, the
Group will constantly spare no efforts to achieve
outstanding performance, continue to deepen automation
applications, reduce operating costs, enhance efficiency,
build talent teams, improve product range, maintain
competitiveness, so as to stay ahead of the competition
among industry peers.
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Il.  Real Estate Business

The Group’s real estate projects are located in the
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Bay Area (the “Bay
Area”) which is one of the four biggest bay areas in
the world. The Bay Area forms a closely-connected
urban group through well-developed infrastructure
facilities. Complying with the complementary
advantages and economic integration of the Bay
Area, the Group’s real estate development projects
have unique potentials. The Group is confident that
these development projects will bring substantially
rich results to the Group.

Overall Outlook

Looking forward, the Group is committed to maintaining
stable and lasting growth. It will capitalise on its success and
achieve continued success in the future. The Group will gather
excellence, stay innovative, seize the opportunity, transform
into flourish, and strive to engage profitable projects and
businesses. The Group also actively develops its Real Estate
Business when sticking to the Industrial Business, so as to
increase corporate value and bring substantial results to
shareholders. Furthermore, in addition to pursuing profitable
growth, the Group pays more attention to the quality of profit
growth, and at the same time fulfills social corporate
responsibilities, implements cleaner production, coexists in
harmony with society, and takes sustainable development as
its mission to lay the cornerstone for Karrie to become a
centennial enterprise.

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED = F| BB A IR A A
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Chairman’s Statement

FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Borrowings

With the commencement of Real Estate Business, net interest-
bearing borrowings® as at 31 March 2018 were approximately
HK$353,749,000 and the net interest-bearing borrowings ratio
(being the proportion of total net interest-bearing borrowings
over total equity) was 30% (as at 31 March 2017: net interest-
bearing borrowings were approximately HK$324,565,000 and
net interest-bearing borrowings ratio was 30%). The financial
position of the Group remains healthy.

: Represent bank borrowings and obligations under finance leases
less cash and bank deposits (“net interest-bearing borrowings”)

Non-current Assets to Shareholders’ Fund Ratio maintaining
below the level of 1

The non-current assets to total equity ratio as at 31 March
2018 maintained at the healthy level of 76% (as at 31 March
2017: 79%), which represents the Group’s non-current assets,
such as plant and machineries are using its stable total equity
as a support.

Capital Expenditure (“CAPEX”)

The initial estimate of the CAPEX Budget for the financial year
2018/19 is approximately HK$115,000,000, of which
HK$110,000,000 relates to the Industrial Business and
HK$5,000,000 is for the investment property. The CAPEX was
mainly used for acquiring new machinery and equipment and
upgrading computer system.
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ERE®E

Resources Available

Currently, total interest-bearing borrowings are approximately
HK$625,902,000. The Group is confident that with the cash
in hand and bank deposits of approximately HK$272,153,000
and the unutilised banking facilities of HK$1,025,005,000, it
is able to meet its current operational and capital expenditure
requirements and to make strategic investments when
opportunities arise.

Exchange Rate Exposure

Most of the Group’s assets, liabilities and transactions are
denominated in HKD, USD and RMB. Foreign currency risk
arises from commercial transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities and net investments in foreign operations that are
denominated in a currency other than the Group’s functional
currency, which in turn exerts pressure on the Group's
production cost. To mitigate the impact of exchange rate
fluctuation of RMB on its business, the Group will actively
communicate with its customers in order to adjust the selling
prices of its products and may use foreign exchange forward
contracts to hedge against foreign currency risk (if and when
necessary).

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 March 2018, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities.
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Chairman’s Statement

TEA-BREAK WITH INVESTORS

We are glad that the “tea-break with investors institutional or
individual)” has been successfully held for many years. The
Group adheres to the principles of “openness, fairness and
equality” and believes that all investors should have the same
right to get access to the Company’s information. With these
principles in mind and considering that the tea-break remains
to be an effective and efficient way for the Company to
communicate with its investors, the Group will continue to
organise tea-break with individual investors. The next tea-
break is scheduled on 25 August 2018 from 12:00 noon to
2:00 p.m. at East Ocean Seaview Restaurant, 11/F., One
Peking Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Interested investors are invited to visit the Group’s website at
www.karrie.com for more details. Application form can
be downloaded from the website or obtained by calling
2411-0913 during office hours. Only investors whose
applications are confirmed can join the function. Investors are
encouraged to grasp this opportunity to communicate directly
with the management of the Company.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group had approximately 3,910 employees on average
(an average of 4,060 employees in the corresponding period
last year) during the year. With a good reputation in the local
community, the Group has rarely encountered major
difficulties in recruiting employees.

Employee remuneration packages are determined in
accordance with prevailing market standards and the
employee’s performance and experience. The Group may also
grant bonuses and share option to employees with outstanding
performance based on its own audited business performance
and the appraisal and reward system. Other employee benefits
include medical insurance and mandatory provident fund.

In addition, to cope with domestic development in PRC and
the actual need for talent-retaining, the Group establishes a
“Favorable Offer for Employees Buying Flat Scheme” to
encourage and finance potential elites in buying a flat locally
as a means to retain talents who may otherwise be lost in the
competitive labour market.

Performance Based Incentives

The Group adopted performance based bonus system and
objective performance assessment. Employees with
outstanding performance will now receive more bonus than
before the new system was implemented.

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 32l BEIFR =i A IR A &

EBERFMBER
REERAFEANFLHESREEL3,910A
(EFREFH4,060N) c AR AEEBEE
Y T RIFHNES - R BIEAB LI
KB ERREE -

BEFMIIRE RN SEERER 2RR
LiEHERE  ARBYEREARCERDY
XEEBRETNEBER HERFRANE
TEREALERE HEtETHEMNEEE
BRE LRI RES

o BEEGBERNEREERREATS
2 KSEREIBIRFEENE] &8
IREH S - S M EB AR ERBIEASE
EHEXR  RBEFARNAATSERBLE
AT °

RERK
AEBEFRARBHBN RS RREFENHR
Bt AEBERAMNETRIGEEL AT
FRAEBmES -




DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended to pay a final dividend of
HK4.75 cents per Share (2016/17 final dividend: HK4.2 cents
per Share and a special dividend of HK1 cent per Share), to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company on 31 August 2018. Together with the interim
dividend of HK1.6 cents per Share and special dividend of
HK2.55 cents per share (2016/17 interim dividend: HK1.3
cents per Share), total dividend paid/payable for this year
amounted to HK8.9 cents per Share (2016/17: HK6.5 cents
per Share). The final dividend will be subject to the approval
of the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual
general meeting (the “AGM”) of the Company to be held on
24 August 2018.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee currently
made up of one non-executive Director and three independent
non-executive Directors whose duties include resolving issues
in relation to audit such as reviewing and supervising the
Company’s financial reporting process and internal control
systems. The audit committee and the management have
reviewed the accounting principles and major policies
adopted by the Group and have discussed the auditing,
internal control and financial reporting in the current year with
the external auditors. The audit committee has reviewed the
consolidated annual results of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2018.

APPRECIATION

I would like to thank our customers, suppliers, bankers,
shareholders and others who have extended their invaluable
support to the Group, and my fellow Directors, managers and
all staff for their considerable contributions to the Group.
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APPENDIX 1
Special Characteristics of Our Industrial
Business Model

A Hypothetical Example (Simplified and
generalized for easy understanding)
1. Quotation Phase
- Around 12 to 15 months prior to
shipment, Customer A sends out Quotation
Request for Qﬂuotat.i(.)n (RFQ) -for,fi @ ﬁ[}%ap;e&
project to all “qualified suppliers”.

Around 2 months
. . . #2184
2. Project Confirmation Phase

— Customer A confirms the )
placement of the project to us; Project
. Confirmation
- Customer A also provides

shipment forecast for the next 18

to 24 months, which is the normal
life cycle of a project.

Phase
ZEERE

V Around 3 months
#3167

3. Moulds and Prototype Making Phase

- According to Customer A’s Moulds &
specification, we start to perform @ Prototype
the design works, make the
moulds and prototype;

—  This process would take around 6
to 12 months;

—  Customer A would also work with
our purchasing department on W Around 6 months
materials and the list of qualified #6183
suppliers for such materials.

Making Phase
BERER R

4. Shipment Phase

—  Customer A finalizes and revises :
the final shipment schedule; Shipment
. . Phase
-  We start manufacturing and ship NERE
goods to just-in-time (JIT)
inventory warehouses.

Around 4 months
A 4 #4181 A
5.  Sales Recognition and Payment

—  Customer A takes goods from JIT Sales

warehouses; Recognition &

w i O Payment

- e get paid after the normal _ Payment
HERAREE

credit period.
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GENERALISED FLOW CHART OF THE SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
HEEEERG - REFEREE

Customer

'R

Project awarded:
Design, engineering and
development works —

around 6 to 12 months

Warehouses
[ BN 132 |

Payment %5

BAEE DeSIgnf:lted
WERDRE - TRRE SL':_[‘)pllers
BB TERR BEMER
KL=+ @A 5

Contract \ o

Manufacturers

BRBGER

Paymen;

Karrie )

jplastic and
,“er'\:\\s ‘
7)
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Some or all of the following characteristics apply to our
dealings with customers. Such characteristics have been
generalized/simplified to enable easy understanding:

1. We deal with projects, which can take one year from
initial project confirmation, development and
engineering works to final shipment of goods. A project’s
shipment cycle can run for 18 to 24 months.

2. We do not normally have a large order backlog because
the customers’ adoption of either the just-in-time
inventory (JIT), rolling forecast, or Electronic Data
Interexchange (EDI).

3. Usually we are the sole supplier for a particular project
and therefore have the obligation to ship goods to
customers even if the sales volume is much higher than
the initial projection.

4. Most of our customers are not retailers, but manufacturers
themselves. Some of them even have factories in China.
Most of the materials are either sourced through the
customers or their designated suppliers.

5. Our customers are mostly multi-national companies.
Thus we frequently encounter such situation like project
originated in Japan, components assembled in China
while the final products shipped to Asia or Europe. Our
definition of breakdown by market is by shipment
destination rather than country of origin of the customers.
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APPENDIX 2

An unbroken 22 years’ record of dividend payment

B 85 —

Dividend and Dividend Policy:
e KB E K

=+ = F SRR B B K e

The Group’s policy to distribute 30% or more of its profits attributable to shareholders as dividend

FEBBREREBRARRESET 30% A EABERS
All dividend paid shown below is in HK cents per Share

TIERRDIKE ZREZBTE

Interim Final Special Dividend
Interim Final  Subtotal Special Special  Subtotal Total Payout Ratio
i KB HHRE BE
T R Pt BERE  BRRE et &t IR =E
(excluding)*  (Including)*
(FEfE
R (BEER)?
1996/97 Nil & 5.40 5.40 Nil & Nil & Nil & 5.40 24%  N/ATEHR
1997/98 Nil & 1.00 1.00 Nil & Nil & Nil & 1.00 13% N/ADEA
1998/99 2.00 2.00 4.00 Nil 4% Nil 4% Nil & 4.00 58% N/ATEMA
1999/00 2.20 2.20 4.40 Nil & Nil & Nil #& 4.40 77% N/ATEA
2000/01 1.10 3.80 4.90 Nil £ 6.20 6.20 11.10 69% 156%
2001/02 5.00 5.90 10.90 5.00 14.10 19.10 30.00 50% 138%
2002/03 8.00 11.00 19.00 Nil £ 5.00 5.00 24.00 60% 75%
2003/04 8.00 12.00 20.00 Nil & Nil & Nil & 20.00 87% N/ATEA
2004/05 8.50 12.50 21.00 Nil 4% Nil 4% Nil & 21.00 58% N/ATEMA
2005/06 9.00 13.00 22.00 Nil £ 3.00 3.00 25.00 48% 55%
2006/07 8.50 3.00 11.50 Nil & Nil & Nil £ 11.50 38% N/ATEHR
2007/08 0.75 Nil & 0.75 Nil 4% Nil 4% Nil & 0.75 27% N/ATER
2008/09 Nil & 1.50 1.50 Nil & Nil & Nil & 1.50 39% N/ATEHR
2009/10 Nil & 1.00 1.00 Nil & Nil & Nil #& 1.00 45% N/ATEHR
2010/11 Nil & 1.10 1.10 Nil & Nil & Nil £& 1.10 32% N/ATEAR
2011/12 Nil & 1.00 1.00 Nil & Nil & Nil #& 1.00 38% N/ATEHA
2012/13 Nil & 1.20 1.20 Nil & Nil & Nil & 1.20 61% NATEA
2013/14 Nil 4 1.00 1.00 Nil 4% Nil 4% Nil & 1.00 58% N/ATEMA
2014/15 0.50 1.80 2.30 Nil £ 1.00 1.00 3.30 61% 87%
2015/16 0.75 2.75 3.50 Nil & Nil & Nil & 3.50 59% N/ATEHR
2016/17 1.30 4.20 5.50 Nil £ 1.00 1.00 6.50 65% 77%
2017/18 1.60 4.75 6.35 2.55 Nil £ 2.55 8.90 69% 97%
Remarks: * Excluding special dividend # Including special dividend
et * DEIERRIRE F BIERRIR S
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APPENDIX 3 gk =
Inventory & Debtor Turnover Days
FEREWRIRBEH

No. of days —— Inventory Turnover 17 & /8%
H¥ —4}— Debtor Turnover & Y1855 £
100 ¢

90 |

80 |

70 |

60 |

50 |

40 |

30 T T T T T 1

12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18

(No. of days) (B &) 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18
Inventory Turnover
FRBEH 40 45 64 50 59* 56*
Debtor Turnover
JRE W5 e 3 4 52 54 40 41 43 50

Inventory turnover (Base on year end inventory value/Cost of 17 & B8 B (L F & FEEMWAKAE)x
revenue) X 365 days 365 H

Debtor turnover (Base on year end debtors/Revenue) x 365 — FEUIR A 5 (LA 42 B UOIR I ) x 365
days H

Inventory Turnover Days 77 & 38 & 1

(No. of days) (B &) 16/17* 17/18* Change # 1
Raw Materials R & 19 18 -5%
Work-in-progress ¥ 24X ia 5 8 +60%
Finished Goods 225X ih 35 30 -14%
Total &5t 59 56 -5%

* Include continuing operations only
REREFEREER
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APPENDIX 4 Bt & /9

Gross Profit Margin & Net Profit Margin
BEENRMARESE

(%) —{3— Gross Profit Margin ¥ EF(%)

—F—  Net Profit Margin 2B AEFI(%)
30

25

20 r

12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17* 17/18*
(%) 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18
Gross Profit Margin
BEER 10.6 14.3 11.0 12.1 13.6% 14.5*
Net Profit Margin
BER AR 1.7 1.6 2.9 4.0 7.0% 7.5%

HK$(million) ( & &#&T)

Revenue

WA 2,291 2,033 2,591 2,898 2,700% 2,920%
Profit for the year

FEHEN 39 33 76 117 168 182

* Include continuing operations only
REREFEREER
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APPENDIX 5 P 85 1
Capex
= s N
BEEERE
Eégg [ ] l:rﬁdius;%l Business
®& Real E Busi
HKS$/000 %efmésg% usiness
FHET . .
consumer and Services Business
250,000 - HEE KRR EER .
200,000 + b
{03

150,000 | .

100,000 B

50,000 B

0 T
13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19*

Capex
S 106,450 164,956 126,264 65,461 80,253 115,000
BN
-3
Profit attributable 34,291 76,298 117,076 168,333 182,563 ?

to equity shareholders

A AREET

* Budget only
*JBE
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are committed to
achieving high standards of corporate governance to safeguard
the interests of shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
and to enhance corporate value and accountability.

For the years ended 31 March 2018 (the “Year”) the Group has
applied the principles of the recently promulgated Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and
complied with the code provision (the “Code Provisions”) of the
CG Code; save for the deviation from Code Provisions A.2.1,
A.4.1, A4.2 and A.5 of the CG Code. This report describes our
Group’s corporate governance practices and explains the said
deviations from the CG Code.

Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. The Company does not
segregate the roles of its Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
and Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai (“Mr. Ho"”) currently holds both positions.

Being the founder of the Group, Mr. Ho has substantial
experience in the manufacturing industry, as well as in the
property development estate and culture related industries. At the
same time, Mr. Ho has the appropriate management skills and
business acumen that are the pre-requisites for assuming the role
of the Chief Executive Officer. The Board believes that vesting the
roles of both the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer in the
same person would provide the Group with strong and consistent
leadership and allow the Group to be more effective and efficient
in developing long-term business strategies and executing
business plans. Hence, the Board considers that there is no need
to segregate the roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer and both roles should continue to be performed by Mr.
Ho.
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According to Code Provision A.4.1 of CG Code, non-executive
director should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election. Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming was re-designated as Non-executive
Director on 1 June 2007 and he was appointed as Deputy
Chairman on 1 May 2011 without a specific term. Mr. Ho Kai
Man was re-designated as the Non-executive Director on 1
November 2012 without a specific term. Although Mr. Ho Cheuk
Ming and Mr. Ho Kai Man are not appointed for a specific term,
they are subject to retirement by rotation according to the Bye-
laws of the Company.

Moreover, Code Provision A.4.2 of CG Code stipulates that every
director, including those appointed for a specific term, should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

According to the Company’s Bye-laws, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being or, if their
number is not 3 or a multiple of 3, the number nearest to one-
third but not greater than one-third shall retire from office
provided that notwithstanding anything in the Company’s Bye-
laws, the Chairman of the Board and/or the Managing Director of
the Company shall not, whilst holding such office, be subject to
retirement by rotation or be taken into account in determining the
number of Directors to retire in each year. Furthermore, any
Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to
the Board should hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting and would then be eligible for re-election. The
Chairman and/or the Managing Director of the Group will
consider to voluntarily retire at the annual general meeting at
least once every three years in line with Code Provision A.4.2 of
the CG Code. As such, the Company considers that sufficient
measures have been taken to ensure good corporate governance
of the Company.
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According to Code Provision A.5 of the CG Code, the Company
should establish a nomination committee, which is chaired by the
chairman of the Board or an independent non-executive Director
and comprises a majority of the independent non-executive
Directors. The Company has not established a nomination
committee due to the fact that the function of the nomination
committee was delegated to the Board, which is responsible for
reviewing its own structure, size and composition in accordance
with the board diversity policy adopted by the Company (the
“Policy”) annually; considering the re-appointment of Directors;
evaluating the Policy as well as assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors. The Board has taken
sufficient measures to avoid the conflict of interests in carrying
out such functions. For instance, the relevant Director would
abstain from voting for any resolution relating to his or her own
re-appointment. As such, the Board is of the view that the
members of the Board possess the necessary experience and
knowledge to discharge the functions of a nomination committee.
The Board shall review the composition and operation of the
Board from time to time and shall consider establishing a
nomination committee if such need arises.

The Company will continue to review its practices from time to
time to achieve high standard of corporate governance.
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A. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1.

The Board of Directors

1.1

1.2

As at 31 March 2018, the Board consisted of
nine Directors, comprising Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer), Ms.
Chan Ming Mui, Silvia, Mr. Zhao Kai and Mr.
Chan Raymond as executive Directors; Mr. Ho
Cheuk Ming as a non-executive Director and
Deputy Chairman; Mr. Ho Kai Man as a non-
executive Director and Mr. So Wai Chun, Mr.
Fong Hoi Shing and Mr. Yam Chung Shing as the
independent non-executive Directors. The Board
has the collective responsibility for the leadership
and promotion of the success of the Group’s
business by directing and supervising the Group's
affairs.

The Board is committed to the Group’s objectives
of enhancing the Shareholders’ value and
provision of superior products and services. The
Board is collectively responsible for formulating
the overall objective and strategy of the Group;
monitors and evaluates its operating and
financial performance and reviews the standard
of corporate governance of the Group. It also
makes decisions on matters such as approving
the annual results, interim and quarterly results,
connected transactions, appointment and re-
appointment of Directors, declaring dividends
and adopting accounting policies. The Board has
delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing business strategies and
management of the daily operations of the
Group's businesses to the management.
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1.3 The Board conducts regular scheduled meetings
on a quarterly basis. Ad-hoc meetings are
convened when circumstances require.

The Board had met seven times for the Year and
considered, reviewed and approved the Group's
annual results for the year ended 31 March 2017,
quarterly and interim results of the Group for the
Year.

The attendance records of Board meetings and

1.3

TRERRES

ExeeFRTENERE
TRERFERR BRSNS
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EEeNAFERNDETL
REFH - LEEE - FH M
HESEHE _T—tF=
A=t—BZ2FRELR
RER 2 FERPHRE

NTRAFEEEEEANL

general meetings held during the Year are set out fRER RS H B 40 8%
below:
Attendance of individual Directors
at Board meetings and general
meetings during the Year
FEEEEERRRASER
BRESNHEER
No. of board No. of general
meetings meetings
attended/ held attended/held
EEEHE RERAKEHE
RE/ BEBRE  REEBRE
Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai e S A4 717 1/1
Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia e 7 N | 717 1/1
Mr. Zhao Kai el A 7/7 1/1
Mr. Chan Raymond BRIR S A 7/7 1/1
Non-executive Directors FHITEE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming IR D e 7/7 1/1
Mr. Ho Kai Man ARSI A 717 11
Independent Non-executive — BV FEHITEE
Directors
Mr. So Wai Chun FRERETE 717 11
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing Papi=2 vt 717 11
Mr. Yam Chung Shing EEHEE 717 1/1
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TEERREE

1.4

A list of Directors and their role and function was
posted on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

To maximize the effectiveness of the Board and
to encourage active participation and
contribution from Board members, the Board has
established an audit committee and a
remuneration committee. Detailed descriptions
of each of these committees are set out below.
All of these committees adopt, as far as
practicable, the principles, procedures and
arrangements of the Board in relation to the
scheduling and proceeding of meetings, notice of
meetings and inclusion of agenda items, records
and availability of minutes.

The Board has devised its specific written terms
of reference setting out its duties, responsibilities,
powers and functions which include the
following:

e  developing and reviewing the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate
governance and making recommendations
to the Board;

e reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management;

e taking responsibility for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of the
financial statements in accordance with the
prevailing accounting standards and laws,
approving the financial statements and
appointing and liaising with the Group’s
external auditors;

e reviewing the Company’s compliance with
the code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report in its Annual Report;
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e overseeing management in the design
implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems;

e liaising with all regulatory authorities and
organisations on all matters relating to the
Group, and monitoring changes in their
policies relating to and affecting the Group;
and

e ensuring accountability towards and
sufficient communication with the Group’s
shareholders.

2.  Board Composition

2.1

2.2

As at 31 March 2018, the Board comprises nine
Directors: four executive Directors, two non-
executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors. Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming, a non-
executive Director, is the younger brother of Mr.
Ho Cheuk Fai, the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer. Mr.
director, is the nephew of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai,

Ho Kai Man, a non-executive

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company and the son of Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming, a
non-executive director and deputy chairman of
the Company.

The attributes, skills and expertise among the
existing Directors are considered appropriate so
as to effectively lead, supervise and manage the
Group, taking into account the scope and nature
of the operations. The Directors have a mix of
core competencies in areas such as accounting
and finance, business and management,
production and quality control techniques,
supply chain management, industry knowledge
Details of the
experience and qualifications of Directors and

and marketing strategies.

Senior Management are set out in the section
headed “Senior Management Profile” in this
Annual Report.
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REAHRES

Board Diversity

Pursuant to Code Provision A.5.6 of the CG Code, the
Company has adopted a board diversity policy, which
sets out the purpose and principles regarding board
diversity for the purpose of achieving the Company’s
strategic objectives of balanced diversity at the Board
as for as practicable. Directors’ appointment will be
based on merit and candidates will be considered
against measurable objectives, taking into account the
Company’s business and development.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity criteria, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural background and ethnicity, in addition to
educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

During the Year, the Board reviewed the structure, size
and composition of the Board and was of the opinion
that the Board is well balanced and diversified, and
with the appropriate structure, size and necessary
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of
perspectives required for the business of the Group.
The Board also reviewed and evaluated the board
diversity policy.
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4.  Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

4.1

4.2

4.3

At each annual general meeting of the Company
(“AGM”"), one-third of the Directors are required
to retire from office by rotation. The Directors,
since his last election or appointment who has
been the longest in office shall retire and be
eligible for re-election at the AGM. Pursuant to
the bye-laws of the Company, the Chairman and/
or the Managing Director of the Group shall not,
when holding such office, be subject to
retirement by rotation or be taken into account in
determining the number of Directors to retire in
each year. To comply with Code Provision A.4.2
of the CG Code, the Chairman and/or the
Managing Director of the Group will voluntarily
retire at the AGM at least once every three years.

As at 31 March 2018, non-executive Directors
(except Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming and Mr. Ho Kai
Man) including the independent non-executive
Directors are appointed for a fixed term not
exceeding three years and all non-executive
Directors are subject to the requirements of
retirement by rotation and re-election by
Shareholders at the AGM in accordance with the
Company’s bye-laws.

The names and biographical details of the
Directors who will offer themselves for election
or re-election at the forthcoming AGM are set
out in the circular to Shareholders to assist
Shareholders in making an informed decision on
their elections.

4. EENEFE BEE

4.1

4.2

4.3
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L ueinaz

4.4 Since the whole Board participates in the
appointment of new Directors, the Company
does not establish a nomination committee. In
evaluating whether an appointee is suitable to
act as a Director, the Board will consider the
experience and skills of the appointee; as well as
personal ethics, integrity and the willingness to
commit time in the affairs of the Group. Where
the appointee is appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, the Board will also
consider his/her independence. During the Year,
the Board had also reviewed and made
recommendations in respect of the re-
appointments of retiring Directors, which were
approved by the Shareholders at the last AGM.

Liability Insurance for the Directors

The Company has in force appropriate insurance
coverage on directors and officers’ liabilities arising
from the Group’s business. The Company reviews the
extent of insurance coverage on an annual basis.

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development
Every newly appointed Director will be given an
induction. As part of the ongoing process of directors’
training, the Company Secretary continuously updates
all directors on latest developments regarding the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements. All Directors are encouraged to attend
external forum or training courses on relevant topics
which may count towards continuous professional
development training.
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For the Year, all Directors have participated in
appropriate continuous professional development

activities either by attending training courses,
seminars, conferences and forums or by reading
materials relevant to the Group’s business and to
Directors’ duties and responsibilities. Each of them has
provided a record of training they received for the Year
to the Company. A directors’ training course was held
on 19 March 2018 concerning the regulation for the
Listed Companies from the Securities Futures
Commission and the Stock Exchange with relevant
cases. The training each Director received for the Year

is summarized as below:

TRERRES

AEE  2REFHEBHFE
FIERIE - RIS - S MwmIER
Bl ARE XN NE SRR M
AHBEHZ A 2R EZE
XBRRBIES - AFE B
NERRETARAMEX 2
EER —T—-NF=A+ 1A
BT -EAEFEIIRE - AT
FANEEE MBI LT AR
MEE RERBARD - KFEESE
EERIEJlzMENT

Attending
training
courses,

seminars,

Reading conferences
materials and forums
HFE IR -
mae 2%
RMERABEER Kiwig
Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai Al I 5T & v v
Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia BRAE IR/ NE v v/
Mr. Zhao Kai Il E v v
Mr. Chan Raymond BRIR S A v v
Non-executive Directors FHITEE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming ] EERSE A v v
Mr. Ho Kai Man Al RS SE A4 v v
Independent Non-executive BYFBITEE
Directors
Mr. So Wai Chun ErEREE v v
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing api=2 bt v v
Mr. Yam Chung Shing EEHLLE v v
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7.  Corporate Governance and Chairman and Chief
Executive
The Chairman should be responsible for ensuring that
directors receive adequate, clear, complete and
reliable information in a timely manner.

The chairman should:

e ensure that the board works effectively and
performs its responsibilities, and that all key and
appropriate issues are discussed by it in a timely
manner;

e ensure that good corporate governance practices
and procedures are established;

e encourage directors with different views to voice
their concerns, allow sufficient time for
discussion of issues and ensure that board
decisions fairly reflect board consensus;

e ensure that appropriate steps are taken to provide
effective communication with shareholders and
that their views are communicated to the board
as a whole; and

e promote a culture of openness and debate by
facilitating the effective contribution of non-
executive directors in particular and ensuring
constructive relations between executive and
non-executive directors.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules, the Company has appointed three independent
non-executive Directors and one of them has
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise. Pursuant to
Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, the number of
independent non-executive Directors of the Company
represents no less than one-third of the Board.

The Company has received from each of its
independent non-executive Directors an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and the Company considers that all
of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

Any re-election of an independent non-executive
director who has served the board for more than nine
years, his further appointment should be subject to a
separate resolution to be approved by shareholders.

B. BOARD COMMITTEE

Remuneration Committee (“RC”)

1.1  The Board has established the RC in June 2005
with terms of reference, comprising a majority of
independent non-executive Directors, which
meets at least once a year. It is chaired by Mr. So
Wai Chun and comprises two other members,
namely Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming and Mr. Yam Chung
Shing. All RC members, with the exception of
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming (non-executive Director),
are independent non-executive Directors. The
quorum necessary for the transaction of business
by the RC is two. The terms of reference of RC
have been updated in March 2012 to comply
with the new requirements set out in the CG
Code and were posted on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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1.2 The principal responsibilities of RC are:

e to formulate remuneration policy of the
Group, review and make recommendations
to the Board in respect of the remuneration

policy;

e to consider salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and
responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

e to conform to any requirement, direction,
and regulation that may from time to time
be prescribed by the Board or contained in
the constitution of the Company or imposed
by the Listing Rules or any applicable law;
and

. to determine the remuneration and
incentive scheme of the executive Directors
and the senior management.

1.3 The RC met once during the Year and reviewed
its terms of reference, the remuneration policy of
the Group and the remuneration packages of
Directors and senior management staff. It also
assessed the performance of the Directors and
evaluated the remuneration policy. The
attendance record of the meeting of RC during
the Year is set out below:

1.2

1.3

Yz Ee X 2R

e HIEAKEF MK
B BLE BB AE
Bt MEFESEL
e

o EERBAFXMNH
BB AN H AR
EBE UREERA
H b B A B ARAT

e TREFETHKHETE
EARNBHEBERET
By AT etk £ AR R s
{E 0] 38 FOE ) A B Py
EHEMER - B5R
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s EEWTEFMSMH
BB 2 K R
atEl e

FHMEBERAFEERG
—REEEL  ABMER
HGE - AEEOFMER
REENBRELEZH
B e EERNER
BITEHMEE - HMER
BRAEE T LS
M

No. of attended/held

HERE ERRH
Mr. So Wai Chun (Chairman) EEEE(FE) 11
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming TSR 1/1
Mr. Yam Chung Shing EEHRE 11
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR EEREREEAESHH
MANAGEMENT

The particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and BiE FAAR RIS 16 ETHER
the five highest paid employees as required to be AEEHE R IEETES
disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules ZHE— W IBEHN A ERTE 2
are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial IRE BTSRRI EE29 o

statements in this annual report.

Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the RIFEPEEEGTA 2 RIEX
remuneration of the members of the senior B15 BHEZE=ZFT—\F=H
management by band for the year ended 31 March =+—HIE - BEMERIEIS 2
2018 is set out below: BREEABHMEIIOT

Number of persons

Remuneration bands (HK$) AR (B AE
1 to 1,000,000 121,000,000 2
1,000,001 to 2,000,000 1,000,001 2 2,000,000
2. Audit Committee (“AC”) 2. EHRERE
2.1 The AC’s membership, with the exception of Mr. 21 BE_Z-N\F=A=+—
Ho Cheuk Ming (non-executive Director), H #Z88(BRA=H
comprised the independent non-executive EECGERITER)INER
Directors as at 31 March 2018: B IEITE R
Mr. So Wai Chun (Chairman) BB E(TE)
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing =2 Fivtes
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming fa] 2B S A
Mr. Yam Chung Shing EEHELE
The Board is of the opinion that members of the EZeRA BRREEK
AC have sufficient accounting and financial SR ERET MG ERE
management expertise or experience to discharge HE MBS - BT
their duties. FZ TS -
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2.2 The operations of the AC are regulated by its 22 BREZEGQZEEXBESD
terms of reference. The terms of reference have BERE  BESHEIN=-Z
—NFHABIFAFELE
A SPRIPREGIIRE - B%ZE
BEeRMzBESED TIH
RARB Rz E
Company and the Stock Exchange. The main N BZREEZETERR
duties of the AC include: BFE

been updated in April 2016 to comply with the
new requirements set out in the Revised Code.
The updated terms of reference of the Audit
Committee were posted on the websites of the

56

to review and supervise the Group's
financial reporting process including the
review of quarterly, interim and annual
results of the Group;

to review the external auditors’
appointment, remuneration and any matters
relating to resignation or termination;

to examine the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control which involves regular
review in various corporate structures and
business process;

to realize corporate objective and strategy
by taking into account the potential risk
and the nature of its urgency in order to
ensure the effectiveness of the Group’s
business operations. The scope of such
reviews includes finance, operations,
regulatory compliance, internal control
systems and risk management; and

to discuss the risk management and internal
control systems with management to ensure
that management has performed its duties
to have effective systems.
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2.3 The AC met two times during the Year and
reviewed the interim results of the Group for the
six months ended 30 September 2017 and the
annual results of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2017. The AC had also reviewed the
Group’s financial reporting system, internal
control system, risk management system and
associated procedures to ensure their adequacy
and effectiveness. The Company Secretary of the
Company keeps all minutes of the AC. The
attendance record of the meeting of AC during
the Year is set out below:

TRERRES

23 BREZEERAFERITM
maﬁ WEHTEEHE
T—t+tFNA=+H*+H
&@Z*? +tF=A
=+ —HLEFENEFE
B BREZBEGNEHNTA
SEMPBRESE - W
THIFIE - B E IR R A
MR - LBRERS
MBI %V§AE
HEgRCBHATNA
MEFE ° %ﬁ§A5W$
FEGHREFIHOAT :

No. of attended/held

HERE, EFRE
Mr. So Wai Chun (Chairman) BEEREE(FE) 2/2
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing Wapi=2 it 2/2
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming AT SRR 2/2
Mr. Yam Chung Shing EEHSLE 2/2

C. SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

1.1

1.2

The Company has adopted a Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of the Group (the
“Company’s Model Code”) on terms no less exacting
than the required standard set out in Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules.

Having made specific enquiries to all Directors, they
have confirmed that they had complied with the
required standards set out in both the Company’s
Model Code and the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 March 2018.

C. EEETRERS

1.1

1.2
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D. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

1.

Financial Reporting

1.1

1.2

1.3

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for
preparing the Group’s accounts which gives a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group on a going concern
basis, with supporting assumption or
qualification as necessary. In preparing the
accounts for the Year, the Directors have selected
suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgments and estimates that
are prudent and reasonable.

The management provides explanation and
information to the Board as to enable the Board
to make informed assessments of the financial
and other information put before the Board for
approval.

The Board endeavours to ensure the making of
balanced, clear and understandable assessments
of the Group’s position and prospects and
extending the coverage of such information to
include annual, interim and quarterly reports,
price-sensitive announcements and financial
disclosures as required under the Listing Rules,
reports to regulators as well as any information
that is required to be disclosed pursuant to
statutory requirements.
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Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of
internal controls and is committed to managing
business risks and maintaining sound and effective
internal control systems to safeguard the Shareholders’
investment and the Group’s assets.

During the Year, the Internal Audit Department under
the supervision of the Board and the Audit Committee,
has reviewed and reported on the adequacy of
effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group, covering financial,
operational, compliance and risk management control
functions annually. Based on the results of the review,
the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems are still effective and adequate.

The Board adopted the risk management policy and
three-year internal risk management audit plan,
including structure and system of risk management of
the Group. Internal Audit Department together with
the Audit Committee will review the adequacy of the
effectiveness of the risk management at least once a
year.

The Board’s annual review had considered the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function.

The internal control system is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance of no material
mis-statement or loss and to manage instead of
eliminating risks of failure in operational systems and
achievement of the Group’s objectives.
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The Internal Audit Department performs regular audit
reviews and report of the risk and key controls of the
Group to the Board and the Audit Committee. The
responsible Department Heads will be notified of the
control deficiencies noted for rectification. For the
Year, the Internal Audit Department conducted audit
over human resources, contract management and
compliance management and other items with high
risk index. The audit results have been presented to
the senior management, the Audit Committee and the
Board.

For the purpose of handling and disseminating inside
information pursuant to Rules 13.09 and 13.10 of the
Listing Rules and Part XIVA of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), the Group has taken various procedures and
measures, including arousing the awareness to
preserve confidentiality of inside information within
the Group, signing of confidentiality agreement,
sending blackout period and securities dealing
restrictions notifications to the Directors and relevant
employees regularly, disseminating information to
specified persons on a need-to-know basis and
observing the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information” issued by the Securities and Futures
Commission in June 2012 stringently.
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3. Risk Management 3. EREE

Risk Management System — EREERL

The Company established an enterprise risk
management system for ensuring the appropriate
control and governance on the principal risks
that are exposed to the Group, which includes:

e specifying the concept of risk management,
and determining the scope of risk
management.

e specifying the risk reporting process and
establishing risk governance framework to
identify and assess the possible impact on
the Group.

e establishing risk governance control points
for establishing relevant countermeasures
against the main control matters involving
risks.

e establishing monitoring plan in terms of
priority, conducting monitoring and review
twice a year.

Risk Management Framework

The Board is playing the role as an overseer, and
the Audit Committee is responsible for risk
governance, report the effectiveness of the risk
system of the Group to the Board and the actual
risk executor is the person in charge of each
department. The Board assigns the representative
of Executive Committee the responsibility of
being in charge of implementing the risk
measures. The internal audit department of the
Group will conduct an independent annual
review on the risk management system of the
Group according to the audit plan on risk
management, and submit the report to the Board.
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. Risk Identification = REEE
The Group identifies risk through a mixture of AEBRABE LM TMET

top-down and bottom-up approaches, thereby
conducting analysis and appraisal on risk, and
identifying the source, type and index of risk.

For top-down approach, the representatives of
Executive Committee and Risk Management
Department have to conduct risk identification
once every two years through questionnaires,
and once every three years by way of workshop.

For bottom-up approach, the person-in-charge of
the risk will collect the risks from each
department, complete the risk register under the
assistance of risk executor, and submit to risk
management department or report to respective
management personnel.

Risk Assessment

The risk is classified into two levels, namely
intrinsic risk and residual risk. The risk
assessment calculates the risk index on these two
levels according to the established methods in
respect of the possible impact of each risk on the
Group. It controls the sum of all risk indices on
residual risk within the risk limit pre-set by the
Group through taking control action and
mitigation measures.
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V. Risk Handling

The sum of risk indices shall at no time exceed
the cap of risk preference of the Group. The
control measures shall be taken to conduct risk
governance on any risk with high risk index in a
timely manner. The governance aims at reducing
the possibility of occurrence or mitigating the
impact of risk (and may not be fully eliminated).
Each of the proposed risk management/
countermeasure is assigned to a person in charge
with estimated date of completion, so as to
enable the person in charge of risk easier to
monitor the process of management to ensure
risk countermeasures are come into force.

Auditors’ remuneration

During the Year, the fees paid to KPMG, the Group’s
external auditor HK$3,050,000 for audit services of
the Group and for non-audit related services
approximately HK$680,000, representing mainly
taxation services and other non-audit service fees.

E. COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

1.

The Company strives to convey to Shareholders
pertinent information in a clear, detailed, timely
manner and on a regular basis and to take into
consideration their views and inputs, and to address
the Shareholders’ concerned. Their views are
communicated to the Board comprehensively.

The Company adopted a Shareholders’
Communication Policy and will review it on a regular
basis to ensure its effectiveness. The purpose of this
policy is to ensure the Shareholders are provided with
prompt and equal access to information about the
Company (including but not limited to its financial
performance, corporate goals and strategies, significant
developments, corporate governance and risk
exposure), in order to enable the Shareholders to
assess the Company’s overall performance, exercise
their rights in an informed manner and engage actively
with the Company.
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The Company communicates with the Shareholders
through the publication of annual reports, interim
reports, circulars, results announcements and releases.
All communications to Shareholders are also available
on the Company’s website at www .karrie.com.

We had provided sufficient notice for Shareholders on
all general meetings. The AGM provides a useful
platform for Shareholders to exchange views with the
Board. The Chairman of the Board and the Board
members will make an effort to attend to answer
Shareholders’ questions. External auditor is also
available at the annual general meeting to address
shareholders’ queries about the conduct of the audit.

Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings
on each substantially separate issue, including the
election of individual Directors.

All votes of the Shareholders at a general meeting must
be taken by poll according to the Listing Rules. The
chairman of the meeting will therefore demand a poll
for every resolution put to the vote of the AGM
pursuant to bye-law 66 of the Bye-laws.
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F. INVESTOR RELATIONS

1.

Results announcement

The Board recognizes that effective communication
with investors is the key to establish investor
confidence and to attract new investors.

Annual reports and interim reports are prepared and
issued to all Shareholders within the prescribed period
stipulated by the Listing Rules. All results
announcements and reports are posted on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
The Company can still provide the Shareholders and
investors with an adequate degree of transparency and

information of the financial position of the Company.

Media and analysts briefings

Press releases are made for media on the same day
immediately after the interim and annual results
released via the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company. Briefing for analysts by way of
presentation at luncheons, receptions or telephone
conferences are organized thereafter. During the
briefing, the Group’s management provides an in-
depth analysis of the Group’s performances in respect
of the relevant periods and ensures that the financial
performance and accounts of the Group are well
understood. There is also ample opportunity for the
analysts and media to ask questions and interact with
the executive Directors and senior management.

Tea-Break with individual investors

Since the first quarter of 2004/05, the Group has been
arranging tea-break with individual investors to build
up an interactive and direct communication channel.
This allows individual investors talking to the
management of the Group. Meanwhile, the Group
would give an update about the status of the Group’s
development and share of their feelings toward the
Group. Last year, a tea-break was held on 26 August
2017.
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Website

The Group regularly releases corporate information
such as awards received, and the latest news of the
Group’s developments on its Company’s website. The
public are welcome to give their comments and make
their enquiries through the Company’s website, the
management will give their prompt response.

G. SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

1.

Procedures for Shareholders to convene a Special
General Meeting

Pursuant to Section 74 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, members holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or
the Secretary of the Company, to require a special
general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionists,
or any of them representing more than one half of the
voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a
meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be
held after the expiration of three months from the date
of deposit of the requisition.

Procedures for which enquiries may be put to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to
the Board in writing at the Company’s head office and
principal place of business or the Company’s website.

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 32l BEIFR =i A IR A &

#uk
AEBEHRARR R @AM A
BB - PlanHE prELS 8208 R
SEBRZEFBEEF - AEE
B RBMA LB BAR AR
HERREH EEESENE
BROE o

G. BR#EF

1.

BRREFMBRRIBFAAEZREF

RIBARERRIEE 7416 NE
2EFAHRBAENPRARAH
ABRKR(MBERRRBBRRAE
FORBEN) + 02 —HER—%
SIA ERIBR - BRI ]
FRAMNEFENRTIMEELE
HERF BREFEARABRRE
ARE NREEBMZFTHENA
MEMEIE: MABAKEANRT
REFSERMEARNERT - NE
ZERENEFEEX A B
Tt RARHFAFRBRERIA
T E2EFARNEREBAME
BEE—FUALE22F A A8
TREFEEGE  BEABEEERZ
G ANEFEE AL
AR RETT -

MESSREEANEF

PR AT BE R A S EB B AR B4R

MERREELEFRMWHAARF
BUREEERLEH -




Corporate Governance Report

3. Procedures for putting forward proposals by

shareholders at the shareholders’ meeting

Pursuant to Section 79 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, shareholders representing not less than one-
twentieth of the total voting rights of all shareholders;
or not less than 100 shareholders may make requisition
in writing to the head office and principal place of
business of the Company:

(@) to give to shareholders of the Company entitled
to receive notice of the next annual general
meeting notice of any resolution which may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved
at that meeting; and

(b) to circulate to shareholders entitled to have
notice of any general meeting sent to them any
statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that
meeting.

Any enquires or suggestions by Shareholders can be
sent in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary
at our head office and principal place of business or
email to the Company.

H. COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company
and has day-to-day knowledge of the Group’s affairs and
assists the Board in functionary effectively. All Directors also
have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary. During the Year, the Company Secretary has
confirmed that he has taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training.

I. CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
During the Year, there is no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.
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EREBEAEZBEAER

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. HO Cheuk Fai, aged 72, was appointed as a Director of
the Company in October 1996 and is the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company as well as the founder of the
Group. He is also the director of certain subsidiaries of the
Group. Prior to founding the Group in 1980, Mr. Ho had over
10 years’ experience in factory management and in running
operations specialised in manufacturing plastic, metal and
electronic products. He is responsible for the Group’s overall
corporate strategies and objectives. He is also a director of
New Sense Enterprises Limited and Honford Investments
Limited, a corporate substantial shareholder of the Company,
and the brother of Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming, who is a non-
executive Director and Deputy Chairman, the husband of Ms.
Ho Po Chu, who is a member of management team and the
uncle of Mr. Ho Kai Man, a non-executive Director of the
Company.

The solid business knowledge and working experience gained
by Mr. Ho throughout the years are recognized by the
academic. He was awarded with fellow membership of the
Asian Knowledge Management Association in September
2003 and Honorary Fellowship by Canadian Chartered
Institute of Business Administration and Honorary Doctorate
in Management by Lincoln University in April 2007.

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 32l BEIFR =i A IR A &

S

BITES

fAE@EE £+t -m R NhREF+A
EZAB/ARAES  WARNRREFERIT
BARERANKEOEIRA - RITRAKES
THBARZES - R—NN\TFRILAE
R REEBATEFIREERERE 8
HETEMMNELR NAREEZERD
EREE N BR - RARNRBEE AR New
Sense Enterprises Limited & Honford
Investments Limited Z & F » N &3 fA] £ B 5E
E(RRBIZIFATERRRETR) 2nEk
MERZ T (EEEBRKBZ ) 2K &
ARERABOULE (RRARZIFNITES)
=

LB FRAANRERR RHE
BRTHEARZAEE R_TT=_FhAKE
TMNABERBERLTRE - SR _TT+
FOAENEREESERRRRER LHRE
BME RSRREEERIELRHE -




Senior Management Profile

Mr. Ho was appointed as member of the 10th Guangdong
Provincial Committee of Political Consultative Conference in
January 2008 and was reappointed as a member of 11th
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, Dongguan
City, Guangdong Province in January 2007. He was also
awarded as the Honorable Citizen of Dongguan City and
Honorable Citizen of Yixing City. He was also the Honorary
Vice-Chairman of Hang Seng Management College —
Foundation and the Honorary Director of Hong Kong CPPCC
(Provincial) Members Association Foundation. Mr. Ho
currently participates in affairs of different social and
commercial associations, which include Overseas Friendship
Association of Dongguan, The Seventh Former Dongguan
Provincial CPPCC Members Association, Guangdong Overseas
Chinese Enterprises Association, Hong Kong Metals
Manufacturers Association, World Dongguan Entrepreneurs,
China Association of Enterprises with Foreign Investment,
Dongguan City Association of Enterprises with Foreign
Investment, Dongguan City Fenggang Association of
Enterprises with Foreign Investment, Federation of Hong Kong
Guangdong Community Organisations, Dongguan Wedding
Trade Association, Jiangsu Yixing Association of Enterprises
with Foreign Investment, Hong Kong Fenggang (Dongguan)
Natives Association Limited, The Hong Kong Chinese
Importers” & Exporter’s Association, Dongguan Foundation for
the Disabled and Dongguan City Fenggang Industrial
Development Association ((RZEMBlMEFXEREES).

Ms. CHAN Ming Mui, Silvia, aged 46, was appointed as an
executive Director in November 2010, and is the General
Manager — Human Resources and Administration of the
Group and responsible for the overall operation of human
resources, administration and IT department of the Group. Ms.
Chan is one of the members of the Executive Committee and
Internal Audit Committee of the Group. She is also the director
of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Ms. Chan graduated from
The City University of Hong Kong majoring in Public
Administration and Management. She joined the Group in
1996 and has over 20 years’ experience in administration and
management.
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Mr. ZHAO Kai, aged 43, was appointed as a Director of the
Company in November 2012. He has been appointed as the
General Manager and the Convener of Executive Committee
in Manufacturing Sector of the Group with effect from 1 April
2013, responsible for overall manufacturing management and
operation of the Group. Mr. Zhao graduated from Xihua
University (formerly known as Sichuan Institute of Technology)
in the PRC with a Bachelor Degree in Foundry Engineering.
He had 15 years’ experience in metal plastic, mould
engineering and project management and more than 10 years’
experience in production management and operation. Mr.
Zhao joined the Group in December 2011.

Mr. CHAN Raymond, aged 51, was appointed as an executive
Director in June 2016. He is also the Marketing Executive
General Manager and a member of the Executive Committee
of the Group, responsible for the Group’s marketing and
business development. He is also the director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. He joined the Group in 1985 and
has over 25 years’ experience in sales and marketing.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. HO Cheuk Ming, aged 64, was re-designated as a non-
executive Director and Deputy Chairman of the Company
with effect from 1 May 2011. He is also the director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Ho was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company from October 1996 to 31
May 2007, and was a Deputy Chairman and Chief Operation
Officer as well as the Convener of the Executive Committee of
the Group. He was re-designated as a non-executive Director
of the Company with effect from 1 June 2007. He is
responsible for the overall supervision of the Group’s
operation business. He joined the Group in 1980 and has over
20 years’ experience in factory production. He is also the
brother of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, who is one of the executive
Directors, the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, the brother-in-law of Ms. Ho Po Chu, who is a
member of the management team and father of Mr. Ho Kai
Man (one of the non-executive directors).
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Mr. HO Kai Man, aged 37, was appointed as an executive
Director from 12 July 2012 to 31 October 2012 and was re-
designated as a non-executive Director in November 2012.
He joined the Group in November 2005. He has been
appointed as the Assistant General Manager, Corporate
Planning and Executive Committee member and is responsible
for handling internal and external business and political
contact, establishing of communication platform, promoting
energy-saving, environment protection and cleaner production
etc and maintaining the Group’s sustainability. He is also the
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Ho graduated
from Auckland University of Technology majoring in
Computer Science. He had engaged in the works of various
departments of the Group so that he has familiarized himself
with the business operation of the Group. He is the nephew of
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company and is the son of Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming, a non-
executive director & deputy chairman of the Company.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. SO Wai Chun, aged 69, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company in July 2001. Mr. So
has been doing business in Hong Kong and the People’s
Republic of China for over 20 years. His businesses are mainly
specialized in financial services and international trading. In
2000, Mr. So was appointed as the China Representative of
Forestry New Zealand Limited, which is a subsidiary of
Evergreen Forestry Limited listed in New Zealand.

Mr. FONG Hoi Shing, aged 54, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in December 2004. He
has extensive experience in accounting, finance and
management. He holds a master degree in professional
accounting, a postgraduate diploma in corporate
administration and a higher diploma in accountancy from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is an associate member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
an Associate of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators.
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EREEAEZEAESR

Mr. YAM Chung Shing, aged 58, is a President of Dongguan
City Association of Enterprises with Foreign Investment, the
Honorable Citizen of Dongguan, Standing Committee of
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, Dongguan
City and an Executive Vice President and Secretary of
Association of the Hong Kong Members of Dongguan’s (Hong
Kong & Macau) Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference Committee. He has invested and developed
several projects. He has extensive experience in business
management and project investment.

MANAGEMENT

Ms. HO Po Chu, aged 69, is the Director of Administration of
the Group. She is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Group. Ms. Ho is one of the founding members of the Group
in 1980. She is mainly responsible for supervising human
resources and overall administration of the Group. She is also
the wife of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, who is one of the executive
Directors, the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, and sister-in-law of Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming, who is a
non-executive Director and Deputy Chairman.

Mr. CHOI Wai Hin, Henry, aged 38, joined the Group in
August 2014 and has been appointed as the Chief Financial
Officer responsible for overseeing the Group’s finance,
accounting and investor relations functions. He is also a
member of the Executive Committee of the Group. Mr. Choi
graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a
bachelor degree in accountancy. He is a Fellow of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Prior to joining
the Group, he worked in KPMG for more than ten years. He
has extensive experience in auditing, accounting, financial
management and has been involved in a number of initial
public offering transactions and capital market transactions.

Mr. LO Wai Kit, aged 48, is the General Manager —
Marketing of the Group and a member of the Executive
Committee of the Group, responsible for the Group’s business
development and product management. Mr. Lo graduated
from The Hong Kong Baptist University with a Bachelor of Arts
(Honors) in Sociology. Prior to joining the Group in 2001, he
had over 15 years’ experience in Sales & Marketing.
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Senior Management Profile

Mr. CHAN Wabh Ying, aged 53, is the General Manager —
System Integration and a member of the Executive Committee
of the Group. Mr. Chan graduated from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University) with a higher certificate in Manufacturing
Engineering. Prior to joining the Group in 1992, Mr. Chan had
over 13 years’ experience in quality management in an
electronic manufacturing company.

Ms. YIU Yuet Fung, aged 53, is the General Manager of
Human Resources and Administration in the PRC service
business and a member of the Executive Committee in service
business of the Group, responsible for the overall personnel
and administration management in the PRC service business.
She joined the Group in 1984 and has over 18 years’
experience in managing the production process of
manufacturing industries and 15 years’ experience in overall
personnel and administration management.

Mr. HO Man Chung, Philip, aged 61, the General Manager of
Dongguan Karrie Properties Development Company
Limited( 3R 5t 32 8| 5 #b Z= 7 % B R 2 7)), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, is responsible for the coordination
and planning of real estate business for the Group. Mr. Ho
joined the Group in 2011. He had engaged in service business
for more than 15 years and has over 20 years’ experience in
project planning, operation and management of hotel and
property development. He is expertise in various projects
development and management, especially in property
development project.

EREEAEZBAER

REREE A +=m A5BRGEER
KERWITEEEKE - REEERERES
BTSERABEAEIRE)  FHRET
EafEE ER—NAAZFNAREE
Al AR+ =FRETREQFTNREE
B o

BARNE - Bt =5 AEEPEREE
ANBRRITBAAEBERRBEERNTEES
KB - BETBEREEANERLITHER
B - MR —NN\HEMALER - HEHE
TNAFRHUERLERFEELRETAF
ANBERRITHEREELR

AXBEE  NtT—5 RRERAIFHE
REBRAR(ARRZZ2EMERR)H
BKIE  BERBAKBEFEMESRT - A%
ERZFE——FMAKRERE - REEFRFH
TEIERTRFERERB— THBE K
BMBERR S  KEREELR - &
DEENEEHEBERLER  LHIZAH
MEBERIAR -

ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18 53R

73



74

Report of the Directors

EEEHE

The Board has the pleasure of presenting the report together
with the audited financial statements of the Group for the
Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is an investment holding company. The Group
is principally engaged in

Continuing Operations

— Metal and Plastic Business (“M&P”): manufacturing and
sale of metal and plastic products, including server
casings, moulds, plastic and metal parts and household
products;

— Electronic Manufacturing Services Business (“EMS”):
manufacturing and sale of magnetic tape data storage,
point-of-sale (“POS”) system, medical products, office
automation products and other computer peripherals;

— Real Estate Business: urban renewal, real estate project
investment, property leasing and development; and

Discontinued Operations

— Consumer and Services Business: building of “Fullhouse
World” Brand, provision of relevant services, such as
catering services and sales of themed gifts. During the
year ended 31 March 2018, the Consumer and Services
Business segment was disposed of to a related party and
the results of this segment have been classified as
discontinued operation of the Group.

Further discussion and analysis of the Group’s activities as
required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), including a discussion of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, an
indication of likely future developments in the Group’s
business and an analysis using financial key performance
indicators, can be found in Chairman’s Statement on pages 12
to 40, in Report of the Directors in pages 74 to 107 and
Financial Highlights on pages 9 to 11.
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Report of the Directors

A discussion on the Group’s compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group is contained in Corporate Governance Report on pages
41 to 67 of this Annual Report.

The Group’s turnover by principal product business segment
and geographical locations for the Year are set out in Note 5
to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

DIVIDENDS

The Board has recommended to pay a final dividend of
HK4.75 cents per share of the Company (the “Share”) (2016/17
final dividend: HK4.2 cents per Share and special dividend of
HK1 cent per Share), to a shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on 31 August
2018. Together with the interim dividend of HK1.6 cents per
Share and special dividend of HK2.55 cents per Share
(2016/17 interim dividend: HK1.3 cents per Share), total
dividend paid/payable for this year amounted to HK8.9 cents
per Share (2016/17: HK6.5 cents per Share). The final dividend
will be subject to the approval of the shareholders of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the
“AGM”) of the Company to be held on 24 August 2018.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

Details of the Group’s results for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 123 of this
annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group and of the Company during the Year are set out in
Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in Note
19 to the consolidated financial statements.
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RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during
the Year are set out in Note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company’s reserves of
approximately HK$433,919,000 mainly representing the
contributed surplus and retained earnings were available for
distribution to the Company’s shareholders.

DONATIONS
Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the

Year amounted to HK$210,000.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Due to the fact that the share price of the Company is unable
to fully reflect its intrinsic value, the Company repurchased
7,142,000 Shares on the Stock Exchange during the Year at an

i tE
AEERARRERFE 2 HHRESHBERE
RERE P IwRMEE21 -

HE - \F=ZA=+—H81t " &A
ﬁ“ﬁ%$®7k$mﬁﬁﬁu3m9mo
BT BERABBIREBHEF -

B
REFBRAFEE
210,000 7T ©

BE - HElERERSG

ERARABRMNEBRREZARBRASE
B ARRRAFERNEHZEE
7,142,000 it - #23Z 1E{E % 8,701,900

e

T2 E&ZE REMBR

aggregate consideration paid of HK$8,701,900 and these Bt ' MZEMHEEHANR R o F4H
Shares were subsequently cancelled by the Company. Details & &40 Tt
of these transactions are as follows:
Number of Shares Highest price Lowest price
Month/year repurchased paid per Share paid per Share Total paid
L AE) e BRROEMN BRERHEN
£/8 #E REER RIEE® T H R
(HK$) (HK$) (HK$)
(FB7T) (#&7T) (FBT)
April 2017 230,000 1.04 0.96 230,300
—ZE—t+FMA
May 2017 3,836,000 1.26 1.18 4,658,400
—t&F1A
August 2017 1,106,000 1.16 1.15 1,279,220
—+FN\A
January 2018 1,686,000 1.30 1.28 2,177,660
—ZT-/\F—A
February 2018 284,000 1.29 1.22 356,320
—N\&EZHA
7,142,000 8,701,900
Save as disclosed above, the Company has not redeemed any [ FiftFrigEEIN - AR BRAEE I L EE

of its shares during the year. Neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company’s
shares during the Year.
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Report of the Directors

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group has realized the importance of good utilization of
resources long time ago and not to exploit the rights of using
resources for the next generation. The Group adheres to the
concept of Chairman Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, with heartfelt
dedication in all details, and saves resources for the next
generation. As such, the Group’s production adheres to the
concept of reducing energy or material consumption from the
sources with the adoption of various environmental friendly
measures and addition of energy-saving equipment. With the
concept of green and cleaner production implemented in
practice, the Group continues to formulate policies for green
production and energy-saving policies, while introducing
different kinds of environmental friendly equipment to attain
the objectives of cleaner production and environmental
protection and to comply with relevant environmental
regulations. It is of paramount importance to have effective
communication and understanding between the Group and its
stakeholders including shareholders, partners, employees,
suppliers, regulators and the public in coming up with
benchmarks and regarding key issues.

In according with Rule 13.91 and the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report Guide contained in Appendix 27 of
the Listing Rules, the Company’s Sustainability Report will be
available on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s
website within three months from the publication of this
annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and the risk of noncompliance with
such requirements. The Group has been implementing system
and allocating staff resources to ensure ongoing compliance
with rules and regulations.

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the
Company’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong and the mainland
China while the Company itself was incorporated in Bermuda
and its shares are listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. Our establishment and operations
accordingly shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in
Hong Kong, Bermuda and the PRC.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

The Group ensures all staff are reasonable remunerated and it
regularly reviews and improves its policies on remuneration
and benefits, training, occupational health and safety.

The Group maintains good relationship with its customers. A
customer complaint handling mechanism is in place to
receive, analyse and study complaints and make
recommendations on remedies with the aim of improving
service quality.

The Group is in good relationship with its suppliers and
conducts a fair and strict appraisal of its suppliers.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group adopts an integrated top-down and bottom-up
approach in identifying risks and thereby conducts risk
analysis and assessment to identify the sources, categories and
indicators of risks. The followings are the key part of the risks
and uncertainties identified by the Group:

(1) Finance:
The Group’s investment in financial instruments are
subject to various risks (such as market risks) and it may
result in losses and affect the cash flow of the Group.

In managing the respective risks, the Group formulated
the following counter-measures for the corresponding
principal risks:

e all financial instrument contracts are subject to
discussion by senior management, and submit for
approval by the board of directors;

e financial instrument contracts that are purchased
through banks are subject to the account authorized
signatory designated by the Company before
becoming valid;

e strengthen the training on senior management on
risk control and knowledge regarding investment
management through the internal and external
resources of the Group; and
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Report of the Directors

develop assessment mechanism for financial
derivatives, and conduct risk assessment by
qualified persons.

(2) Operation:

()

(if)

High concentration of businesses and clients
The customers of the Group are mainly
concentrated in global leading technology
corporations. The Group may be unable to attract
new customers if no new product has been
developed. The concentration of customers and/or
the concentration of geographical location that
exceeds an acceptable level may increase the
business risk and may reduce the market share of
the Group. The Group may also be exposed to the
risk of significant reduction in profit in case a few
important clients are lost.

IT Strategy

Owing to the complications of the business process
of the Group, more time is needed for testing for the
customized reform of the system. Lack of sufficient
and effective testing on the new IT system may lead
to a failure in coordinating with the operation
process of the Group, and thus affect its operation
effectiveness. The IT system may not be able to
update timely and effectively to adapt to the
changes of the operation process of the Group.

The Group has already adopted the following
corresponding measures to mitigate operational
risks:

(i) High concentration of businesses and clients:

e develop new clients through multi-
channel and optimize designs, as well as
develop new products; and

e expand to other sectors for business
diversification of the Group and broaden
the income stream.

(2)

(if)
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3)

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 3z i) B2 42

(ii)  IT Strategy
e the Group engaged a professional
consulting company at the preliminary
stage of system development and
upgrading, and had formulated a detailed
scheme; and

e Before and after the upgrading and
during the whole process, the IT
department focused on targeted training
of every related department, collected
and handled problems found during the
actual operating process one after
another, and at the same time, feedback
the problems to the consulting company
in solving them systematically.

Business Diversity:

The Group endeavors for business diversity. However, it
may encounter the risks of insufficient relevant
operational experience in the new business during the
process of business diversity. Moreover, the competition
of new business could be intense, the inability to break-
in, failure to achieve the income target or market
popularity rate in market of new business, and
underestimate the impact of business costs may adversely
affect sustainability and profitability of new business.

The Group has already adopted the following
corresponding measures to alleviate the risks brought by
new business:

e conduct preliminary research and feasibility test on
newly developed business, and at the same time,
put a cap of the fund invested for new business.

e engage management teams with professional
knowledge and experience, such as project
manager, engineer and financial team.

* re-assess the new business of the Company
comprehensively, for business with poor market
prospects, contract the business gradually or re-
adjust its operation concept and direction.

e strengthen employees training in meeting the
requirements and operation mode of new business,
shorten its run-in period so as to bring profits to the
Group.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted on 24 August 2012 (the
“Share Option Scheme”). Details of the Share Option Scheme
are summarized as below:

(i) (@ The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive
scheme and is established to recognise and
acknowledge the contributions which the eligible
participants have made or will make to the Group
or invested entity.

(b) The Share Option Scheme will provide the eligible
participants with an opportunity to have a personal
stake in the Company with a view to motivating the
eligible participants to utilise their performance and
efficiency for the benefit of the Group or invested
entity; and attracting and retaining or otherwise
maintaining an ongoing relationship with the
eligible participants whose contributions are or will
be beneficial to the long term growth of the Group
or invested entity.

(ii)  The Board may at its discretion grant options to:

(@) any director (whether executive, non-executive or
independent non-executive director), employee
(whether full time or part time employee),
consultant, customer, supplier, agent, partner, joint
venture partner or advisers of or contractor to the
Group or invested entity; and

(b) any discretionary trust whose discretionary objects
include any director (whether executive, non-
executive or independent non-executive director),
employee (whether full time or part time employee),
consultant, customer, supplier, agent, partner, joint
venture partner or adviser of or contractor to the
Group or invested entity.
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(iii) The total number of shares that may be issued by the

(iv)

Company if all options granted under the Share Option
Scheme have been exercised is 35,730,000, which
represents approximately 1.79% of the existing issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of this annual
report.

The overall limit on the number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes for the time being of
the Company shall not, in aggregate, exceed such
number of Shares equaling to 30% of the Shares in issue
from time to time. No option may be granted under the
Share Option Scheme or any other share option scheme
of the Company if it will result in the above-mentioned
30% limit being exceeded.

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the
Shares in issue as at the date of approval of the Share
Option Scheme by the Shareholders (the “Scheme
Mandate Limit”), unless Shareholders’ approval has been
obtained. Options lapsed in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme or any other share option
scheme of the Company will not be counted for the
purpose of calculating the Scheme Mandate Limit.
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Report of the Directors

(vi)

(a)

Unless approved by Shareholders in a general
meeting, no option may be granted to any eligible
participant which, if exercised in full, would result
in the total number of Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all options already granted
or to be granted to such eligible participant
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in the 12-month period up to and including
the date of such new grant exceeding 1% of the
Shares in issue as at the date of such new grant.

Any grant of options to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company or its
subsidiaries or any of their respective associates
under the Share Option Scheme must be subject to
the prior approval of the independent non-executive
Directors (excluding any independent non-
executive Director who is a grantee of the relevant
options).

Where any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company or any of their respective
associates would result in the Shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of all options already
granted and to be granted (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such
person in the 12-month period up to and including
the date of such grant:

(1) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the
Shares in issue, and

(2) having an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the Shares at the date of each
grant, in excess of HK$5,000,000.

then such further grant must be subject to the
approval by Shareholders at a general meeting
taken on a poll.

(vi)

(a)
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(vii) The period within which the options must be exercised

will be specified by the Company at the time of grant,
but shall expire no later than 10 years from the relevant
date of grant.

(viii) At the time of grant of the options, the Company may

specify any minimum period(s) for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised. The Share Option
Scheme does not contain any such minimum period.

At the time of the grant of the options, the Company may
specify any performance target(s) which must be
achieved before the options can be exercised. The Share
Option Scheme does not contain any performance
targets.

A non-refundable remittance of HK$10 by way of
consideration for the grant of an option is refunded to be
paid by each grantee upon acceptance of the opinion.

Subject to adjustments made in a situation contemplated
under the Share Option Scheme, the subscription price
in respect of any option shall be at the discretion of the
Board, provided that it shall not be less than the highest
of:

(@) the closing price of a Share as shown in the daily
quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date
of grant (which must be a business day) in respect
of such option;

(b) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as
shown in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the relevant date of grant in respect of
such option; and

(c) the nominal value of a Share.
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(xii) Details of share option movements during the Year under  (xii) RIEFEAIERT B R AFE 2 B ES
the Share Option Scheme are as follows: EFFIBWT
Number of
Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Number of options  Number of
Price at options options options [apsed/ options
Exercise Closing Price exercise  outstanding granted exercised cancelled  outstanding
Date of Price Exercise  hefore date date of at1 April during during during  at 31 March
Name Grant per Share Period of grant options 2017 the year the year the year 2018
Zg-tf —2-NF
RERE  RERE  BA-A REEE  RAEE  RAEE ZA=t-8
SRER RiAAz Az HARTRE  BETE EE KWEE  HAGE
i3 RiLAs TRk (L & E#  BREHE g REHE BREHE  ERE¥A
(HKS) (HKS) (HKS) ('000) ('000) ('000) ('000) ('000)
(BT) (BT (BT) () () () () ()
(i) Directors/Chief Executives
EERREIHAR
Mr. Zhao Kai 11/08/2014 0419 01/08/2015- 0.420 118 5,000 - (2,500) - 2,500
iy 10/08/2024
11/08/2014 0419 01/08/2017- 0.420 - 5,000 - - - 5,000
10/08/2024
Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia 271012016 070  01/07.2017- 0.69 124 1,500 - (1,500) - -
RAskE 26/102026
271012016 070  01/07/2018- 0.69 - 1,500 - - - 1,500
26/10/2026
271012016 070  01/07/2019- 0.69 - 2,000 - - - 2,000
26/10/2026
Mr. Chan Raymond 271012016 070  01/0712017- 0.69 115 1,500 - (1,000) - 500
REOUEE 26/10/2026
271012016 070  01/07.2018- 0.69 - 1,500 - - - 1,500
26/10/2026
271012016 070  01/07.2019- 0.69 - 2,000 - - - 2,000
26/10/2026
Mr. Yam Chung Shing 2711012016 070 01/07/2017- 0.69 - 150 - - - 150
fEERRELE 261012026
271012016 070  01/07/2018- 0.69 - 150 - - - 150
26/10/2026
271012016 070  01/07/2019- 0.69 = 200 - - - 200
26/10/2026
(ii) Other Eligible Participants
EtAER2EE
Employees 11/08/2014 0419 01/08/2015- 0.420 - 4,000 - - - 4,000
8 10/08/2024
11/08/2014 0419 01/08/2017- 0.420 - 4,000 - - - 4,000
10/08/2024
271012016 070  01/0722017- 0.69 1.22% 4110 - (1,470) - 2,640
26/10/2026
271012016 070  01/07.2018- 0.69 - 4110 - - - 4110
26/10/2026
271012016 070  01/07.2019- 0.69 - 5,480 - - - 5,480
26/10/2026

*  Weighted Average Il ¥ 2
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A professional actuarial firm has been engaged in the REBBRETS —HAEXRGERF
year of 2014/15 and 2016/17 to perform a valuation of AR —_F—N,/ —HAFER-F
the share options granted under the Share Option —RNEFEEEZTRAARZ
Scheme. BAEEE -
According to the Hong Kong Financial Reporting REBEMBHREENE —_R(EFE
Standard 2 (“HKFRS2”), the fair value of the share option PSSR EAER2 ) - BRENE T B
on the date grant should be amortised in profit or loss as M AFEAREGBHEDHNEE (S
expenses over the period from the date of grant until they R B ZER AR ITRERE) - #5H
are exercisable by the grantee. The expense required to XHERERRFPGK - AAR-Z
be reported for share options granted from 1 April 2018 —NFHA-BE_T_TF=A4
to 31 March 2020 would be estimated as follows: ST -HEREHBREMELN T
FERHET

Financial Year

HHREE
2014/15 2015/16  2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20
(Actual) (Actual) (Actual) (Actual) (Estimated) (Estimated) Total

2014/15  2015/16  2016/17  2017/18  2018/19  2019/20
(B (BR) (B  (BK) (&) () o

P&L expenses BaREx
(HK$'000) (F57T) 1267 1,000 2561 2908 1213 235 9204
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Employee share option expenses charged to the
consolidated profit or loss are determined with the
trinomial model valuation model based on the following

assumptions:

(1) The share options were granted on 11 August 2014:

Date of valuation

Date of grant

Option value

Market price at date of grant

Exercisable price
Risk-free interest rate
Life of options

Expected Volatility (120 months)

Expected Dividend yield

11 August 2014

11 August 2014

HK$0.176 —
HK$0.194

HK$0.405

HK$0.419
1.97%
10 years

52.84%

2.47%

N

EEEHE

BRERTMR 2R
RIBATRE LR =B B

FRRRE

HERH

R B

REEEE

RIEEBZ

miGEE

1IfE(E

2\ ) 2R

R WA H

TEER R IR
(12018 8)

BHERARE

ERRERE

() RZE-—HFNA+—BREZ

—EF—UF
NA+—H

—E—U4F
NA+—H

0.176 /87T —
0.194 % 7T

0.4057 7T

0.4197%8 7T

1.97%

TF

52.84%

2.47%
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(D) RZE—RF+A=-++BEH

(2) The share options were granted on 27 October

38

2016:

Date of valuation 27 October 2016

Date of grant 27 October 2016

Option value HK$0.239 —

HK$0.271
Market price at date of grant HK$0.70
Exercisable price HK$0.70
Risk-free interest rate 1.00%
Life of options 10 years
Expected Volatility (120 months) 51.27%
Expected Dividend yield 5.00%

Note: The vesting of the share options is subject to the
performance of the Group.

There are several relevant measures that may be
considered to assess the financial impact of the
share option schemes, including the expense of
share-based transactions under generally accepted
financial reporting standards (e.g., HKFRS2). The
expense of the share-based transactions is attributed
over the period from the original transaction date
(i.e., grant date) to the date when the recipient’s
entitlement to the payment has been fully realized
(i.e., vested).
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Report of the Directors

The expected volatility is based on the historic
volatility, adjusted for any expected changes to
future volatility based on publicly available
information. Change in the subjective input
assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.

The result of the trinomial model can be materially
affected by changes in these assumptions so an
option’s actual value may differ from the estimated
fair value of the options due to limitations of the
trinomial model.

In assessing the value of the share options granted
during the Year and the expense of share-based
transactions under HKFRS2 requirement, the
trinomial option pricing model has been used. The
trinomial model is one of the generally most
accepted methods used to calculate the value of
options and expense of share-based transactions.

The parameters of the trinomial model include the
risk free rate, dividend vyield, exit rate and trigger
price multiple. The risk free rate has made reference
to the yield of exchange fund notes as at the grant
date. The dividend yield makes reference to the
dividend history and it is assumed that the grantee
will exercise the option in accordance with their
sub-optimal exercise policy.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of Bermuda.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
shares in the Company.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 276 of
this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract s concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company’s Bye-law provides that the Directors shall be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against any
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses as a
result of any act or failure to act in carrying out their functions.

The Company has arranged directors’” and officers’ liability
insurance cover in respect of legal action against the Directors
during the year.

SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set
out in Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 March
2018 are set out in Notes 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Report of the Directors

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Directors who held office during the Year and up to the
date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia

Mr. Zhao Kai

Mr. Chan Raymond

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Ho Kai Man

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. So Wai Chun

Mr. Fong Hoi Shing

Mr. Yam Chung Shing

Mr. So Wai Chun, and Mr. Yam Chung Shing entered into an
appointment letter with the Company for a term of one year
with effect from 1 July 2018 and 1 November 2017
respectively; Mr. Fong Hoi Shing entered into an appointment
letter with the Company for a term of half year with effect from
7 June 2018 subject to extension by mutual agreement and
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meeting of the Company as and when required under the Bye-
laws.

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws and
paragraph A.4.2. of the Corporate Governance Code as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, Mr.
Zhao Kai and Mr. Chan Raymond will retire from office by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting. All such
Directors, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the Company
which is not terminable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the below section headed “CONNECTED
TRANSACTION”, no contracts of significance to which any of
the Group companies was a party and in which a Director was
materially interested, either directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year, the Company had the following connected
transactions, certain details of which had been disclosed in
compliance with the requirements under Chapter 14 of the
Listing Rules.

The Disposal of Full Benefit Global Holdings Limited

On 12 January 2018, the Company and The Wedding Square
Company Limited (“The Wedding Square”), entered into the
agreement, pursuant to which the Company has agreed to sell
and The Wedding Square has agreed to acquire one share of
Full Benefit Global Holdings Limited, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability (“Full
Benefit”) representing the entire equity interest in Full Benefit
(“Sale Share”) at an aggregate consideration of
HK$51,000,000 (“Disposal”).

Full Benefit is principally engaged in consumer and services
business under the brand of “Fullhouse World”, such as
provision of catering services and sales of themed gifts in
Hong Kong, the PRC and Malaysia.

As at the date of the agreement, Mr. Ho, his family and Ms.
Ho Po Chu together have 97% interest in The Wedding
Square. Mr. Ho is a Director, the chairman of the Board, chief
executive officer and a substantial shareholder of the
Company, whereas Ms. Ho Po Chu is the spouse of Mr. Ho.
Accordingly, The Wedding Square is a connected person of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and the
Disposal constitutes a connected transaction of the Company.
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Report of the Directors

As the applicable percentage ratios (as defined in the Listing
Rules) in respect of the Disposal are less than 5% but more
than 0.1%, the Disposal is only subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements and is exempt from the circular,
independent financial advice and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Disposal of Full Benefit would enable the Group to avoid
risks of persistent loss of the Consumer and Services Business.
Further, the Company would like to focus its resources on
development of its core business segments, namely metal and
plastic business, electronic manufacturing services business
and real estate business. Therefore, the Directors (including
the independent non-executive Directors) are of the view that
the terms of the Disposal of Full Benefit was entered into on
normal commercial terms, and are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Shareholders of the Company as a whole.

DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVFE S
INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 March 2018

The interests and short positions of the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company in the shares and the underlying
shares of the Company and any associated corporations (as
defined in Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO")) (a) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO; or (b) as otherwise notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the
“Model Code”) were as follows:
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(A) Interests in the Company () REDT 2R

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

BREFI AT ZEERBE
Personal Family ~ Corporate/ Total % of issued
interests interests  Other interests interests  share capital
EEER
HAER FEER At AR BRAMH
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai Bt 278,712,000 110,350,000 1,077,608,000 1,466,670,000 7353
(Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 2)

(FftaE—) (FitEE—) (=)

Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming BEE: = 11,400,000 817,608,000 829,008,000 41.56
(Note 3) (Note 2)
(HzE=) (FzE=)

Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia  FR % #k/)\ 8 6,000,000 -
(Note 4)
(BHFE)

6,000,000 0.30

Mr. Zhao Kai ik Fitea 12,300,000 -
(Note 5)
ESN)

12,300,000 0.62

Mr. Chan Raymond BRI 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 0.25
(Note 6)
ER)

Mr. Yam Chung Shing & %4 500,000 -
(Note 7)
(Fizt)

500,000 0.03

Mr. Fong Hoi Shing hbicdi bt 4,000 - 4,000 0.00

Ms. Ho Po Chu BES S an 110,350,000 538,712,000 817,608,000 1,466,670,000 73.53
(Note 8) (Note 8) (Note 2)
(FEEN) (FEEN) (D)
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Notes:

1.

Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai’s personal interest consists of 278,712,000
Shares. He is deemed to be interested in 110,350,000 Shares
held by his spouse, Ms. Ho Po Chu, as beneficial owner.

The 1,077,608,000 Shares comprised (i) 487,608,000 Shares
held by New Sense Enterprises Limited (“New Sense”); and
(ii) 330,000,000 Shares held by Castfast Properties
Development Co., Limited (“Castfast Properties”), 87% of the
issued share capital of which is beneficially owned by
Honford Investments Limited (“Honford Investments”). New
Sense and Honford Investments are each wholly-owned by
TMF (BVI) Limited (“TMF”) as trustee for a discretionary trust,
The Ho Family Trust, and (iii) 260,000,000 Shares held by
The Wedding City Co., Limited (“The Wedding City”), 90%
and 10% of the issued share capital of which is beneficially
owned by Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu,
respectively. Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai is deemed to be interested in
the 817,608,000 Shares in (i) and (ii) as founder of The Ho
Family Trust and in 260,000,000 Shares in (iii) through The
Wedding City. Ms. Ho Po Chu and Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming are
the discretionary objects of The Ho Family Trust and are thus
deemed to be interested in the 817,608,000 Shares held
under The Ho Family Trust. Therefore, the interests of Mr. Ho
Cheuk Fai, Ms. Ho Po Chu and Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming in the
817,608,000 Shares duplicate with each other.

The personal interests of Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming comprise
11,400,000 Shares.

The personal interests of Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia comprise
2,500,000 Shares and 3,500,000 outstanding share options.

The personal interests of Mr. Zhao Kai comprise 4,800,000
Shares and 7,500,000 outstanding share options.

The personal interests of Mr. Chan Raymond comprise
1,000,000 Shares and 4,000,000 outstanding share options.

The personal interests of Mr. Yam Chung Shing comprise
500,000 outstanding share options.

The personal interests of Ms. Ho Po Chu comprise
110,350,000 Shares. Ms. Ho Po Chu is also deemed to be
interested in (a) 278,712,000 Shares held and 260,000,000
Shares deemed to be held by her spouse, Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai,
and (b) 817,608,000 Shares duplicate with each other as
referred to Note 2 above.

GEX

J\

EEEHE

AiEBrtEZzZ@AEBES R R
278,712,000 B A% 17 o fa] {52 38 50 A5 4
RERBERBAERZTEAER
A AFEE 2 110,350,000 AR -

1,077,608,000 % i% 19 22 4% (i) B New
Sense Enterprises Limited ([ New
Sense ) A 2 487,608,000 % A% 15
(iVEEHEREBER AR (=8
B i ZE 1) 8 2 330,000,000 % f%
e HBE BT R A 287%J) #
Honford Investments Limited
([Honford Investments|) Bz A °
New Sense } Honford Investments
TMF (BVI) Limited ([ TMF]) {E & 2 ##
{Z7E The Ho Family Trust Z Z7EAZ
EHARGNEYBBR AR ([1EY
¥ 1) ¥4 7 260,000,000 P& A% 1 E
BEITRE AR 2 90% K2 10% 7 Bl /3 ] 42
BAERMBRZTELRES © A8
¥& %2 A YE /5 The Ho Family Trust,Z 8l
A R BRZ%E 817,608,000 1%
% 15 7R 48 A () B Gi) M (i) 18 40 3 2
260,000,000 A% f% 15 = # %5 o fa] B Tk
4 A £ B %5 & & The Ho Family
Trust Z 2HESZ A BUEAE AR The
Ho Family Trust#§ /& = 817,608,000
PR RS 17 R B A 2% o BUUL - {18 ¥8 5T
£ MERZERASELEERZE
817,608,000/ %10 2 iEm R I B & -

Al 2 BR S 4 2 {8 A 25 R 11,400,000
&A% 1 48K o

FR 22 1k /)N B 2 {8 A #E 25 R 2,500,000
A% B% 17 % 3,500,000 & AR 175 2 8 i%
REAERK -

S 5 A 2 8 A #E % R 4,800,000 AR
%15 %2 7,500,000 1 A& 17 5 2 B A& A&
4R -

PR %% 3 9t A& 2 18 A #E 2= F8 1,000,000
fi% B% 19 X2 4,000,000 18 7 17 15 2 B8 B
REARAK -

EE W5 A 2 8 A2 F 500,000 [
RITEEZ AR HEZRAK -

Al Bk 2 £ 2 8 A 25 /A
110,350,000 % f% 17 4B AX o 7] B ZR 22
THRAEE @ HEREBAIEE LA
VERE=ER AFH 2278,712,000
% A% 19 % 260,000,000 I A% 15 &
(b)817,608,000 i f% 17 = #E 2 » AR
BBk (WM ) 8
Z[Al—#Ez o
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¢ EEEHE

(B) Interests and short positions in associated corporations () RIEBEB 2 EZR KR
()  Karrie Industrial Company Limited (“KICL”) )y ZMERERATD(ENERID

Number of non-voting deferred shares

BREBELROEA

Corporate/ % of issued % of issued
Personal Family Other Total share Short share
interests interests interests interests capital Positions capital

EEESS
BAER ZEED Hitis AitEE BRAEML e BRESL
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai 43,000 43,000 43,000 43,000 85.98% 43,000 85.98%
fEgEE (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 1) (Note 2)
(M- (WE-) (M=) (iE—) (D)
Ms. Ho Po Chu 7,000 7,000 7,000 7,000 13.99% 7,000 13.99%
gLt (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 1) (Note 2)
(M- (WE) (M=) (iE—) (HED)
(i) Karpo Technologies Limited (“KTL") (i) BEMBBRAF(EERED

Number of non-voting deferred shares

BREBETROHE
Corporate/ % of issued % of issued
Personal Family Other Total share Short share
interests interests interests interests capital Positions capital
EEREES
BAER ZEER Hitis RitEE RRAESL e BRESL
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 99.90% 10,000 99.90%
ek s (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 3) (Note 1) (Note 3)
(M- (WE) (ME=)  (WE—) (WE=)
(iii) Karrie Properties Management Limited (formerly (i) ENEHESEERLT (AR
known as Karrie Investment Holdings Limited) ENREZBRBERXA) ([ZF
(“KPML") BHE])
Number of non-voting deferred shares
RERREERABA
Corporate/ % of issued % of issued
Personal Family Other Total share Short share
interests interests interests interests capital Positions capital
EEESR
BAEzE  FEEE  RtfE SRR BRESH HE RRESL
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai 1 1 1 1 8.33% 1 8.33%
s (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 4) (Note 1) (Note 4)
(M- (WE) (MEEm)  (BE—) (M)
Ms. Ho Po Chu 1 1 1 1 8.33% 1 8.33%
g kLt (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 4) (Note 1) (Note 4)
(M=) (MEE—) (PEEm) (PEE—) (PEm)
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Notes:

1. Karrie International (B.V.l.) Limited (“KIBVI”), a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has been
granted options to acquire from Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and
Ms. Ho Po Chu their non-voting deferred shares in
each of KICL, KTL and KPML. Accordingly, KIBVI is
taken to be interested in these non-voting deferred
shares in respect of which Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms.
Ho Po Chu have each created short positions. In
addition, by virtue of (i) their interests in the Company;
and (ii) the interests as referred to in Notes 1, 2 and 8
under the section headed “(A) Interests in the
Company” above, Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po
Chu are each deemed to be interested in the long
positions that KIBVI has in these non-voting deferred
shares. Such interests are duplicated with their
personal interests in these non-voting deferred shares.

2. The entire issued share capital of KICL comprises
50,000 non-voting deferred shares and 10 ordinary
shares.

3. The entire issued share capital of KTL comprises
10,000 non-voting deferred shares and 10 ordinary
shares.

4. The entire issued share capital of KPML comprises 2
non-voting deferred shares and 10 ordinary shares.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and any associated corporations which
were (a) recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO; or (b) otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies.
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EEEHE

BYEE

— + Karrie International (B.V.l.)
Limited ([KIBVI]) » &K QX & 2
HEZENBAR  BERFR
A e 0 ] A R S A RN (] BB B
ZEIRENER BERER
EHEEMBEENEREER
JERR D » B PAA] A 88 5 A i {a]
BT E AT TR E
MEBEEFBZXE * KIBVI
BEHEZSERZRETRD
ZHEE-BE FAOERSHE
KRB ZHERF RG)R Lt
[(F)RARE 2] Z KT
— - ZRNAR - B % A F
B R & 8 #H5E ARKIBVI
RZEESERELERD AT
BORTHAREZR ZS5ER
BHEHEARZSEREERET
BOERES -

= EAESBETRSHS50,000
A% 2 A SRR TR D K 10 %
2 EEAR A4 o

FEMRE#TRII A 10,000
Bz EARERER AR () S 10 BX
ZE BN ARK

M mANEREETROA2KRZ
BREERLERND X100 ZE
AP AERK

BREXFIEI ARARBESE K&
BITRABYEEEEARBREM
HEOCEE D - HERN RESFE
PRI NMORR  MxFREMAR
@BREBEC(EF &P E352FATHF
ZERMAREE b ERERE
<RI B AR A A) K B 32 o
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EEEHE

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING

BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2018, Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu
were interested in certain companies established in the PRC
(the “Competing Companies”) which are or are likely to,
directly or indirectly, compete with the business of the Group.
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu are also the directors of
these Competing Companies. Details of the interests of Mr. Ho
Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu in the Competing Companies

are as follows:

Date and place

EERNGFERB2ES

SR

REZ—N\F=A=+—8  fAEELER
A B IR L IR E AR BIR AL 2 A B3 AT
EEEARERHBRERIEREF Z AR
(MEFMRR]]) FEAED o (IS5 4+ R A
BERUTTABLBRFNRRZES - A1
BEERAIERLETNZEHRFIE AR 2E

Name of Competing Company  of establishment Principal business Shareholdings
BEELARAEE AEMAR L B A Rt B TEEH K&
Dongguan Castfast 2 August 2001, Property investment and Castfast Properties: 95%
Door and Window the PRC provision of property
Products Co., Ltd. management and consultancy
(“Dongguan Castfast”) services in the PRC
SREMERR “TE-H/\AZH" RPEETNRRER REFME  95%
BRAANRE=EE]) HE REMEEE R A ARY

Yixing Yongtai Electronic
Technology Co. Ltd.
(“Yixing Yongtai”)

HEAREFHR
BRAAN(EEKZE])

25 March 2008,
the PRC

—FF\F=A=+EA "

e

7 September 2000,
the PRC

“ETTFAALE
il

Property development
in the PRC

RAPEETYRAE

Property investment and

development, manufacturing
and sales of computer related

electronic devices
MERERRE - £ER
HEBKEEE B
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Castfast Properties: 75%
Dongguan Karrie
Resort Limited: 25%
REFEUE  75%
REBAMBERAE
BRAF : 25%

Kar Info Property

Limited:100%

E G N
BREAR 100%




Report of the Directors

As at 31 March 2018, Dongguan Castfast had developed a
residential and commercial property project located at
Dongguan, the PRC with a site area of approximately 48,600
sg.m. and a total gross floor area of approximately 233,700
sq.m.

As at 31 March 2018, Yixing Yongtai had developed a
commercial property project located in Yixing, Jiangsu, the
PRC. This project occupied a site area of approximately
107,340 sq.m. and comprised offices, staff quarters and
canteens.

As at 31 March 2018, % % % &l # cooperates with Massive
Era Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company to
develop a residential property project located in Dongguan,
the PRC. This project occupied a site area of approximately
32,000 sq.m. with a total gross floor area of approximately
61,000 sgq.m..

The power to make material business decisions for the Group
is vested in the Board. Whenever the Board considers that
there may be a conflict of interest between the Group and any
Director, such Director will be required to abstain from voting.
Therefore, the Board is capable of carrying on the Group’s
business independently of, and at arm’s length, from the
business of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu.

EEEHE

RZZE—NF=ZA=+—H Bx=BEH
B-REURPERZEZ2TEREAYFEIE
B G EE L A 48,600F F K - maEE
T & A1 4 5 233,700 SF 7 K o

RZZE—\F=ZA=+—H BEXZFEH
B-REURPBEIIHEER  EAYEIE
B ZIBEGHEELNR107,340F 5K
WHEFTE BIEEREREMEK -

RZZE-—NF=ZA=+—H Hxm=lHH
Massive Era Limited (KA B 2 =B B R
A)EEER—BRUNRTRARZETEME
IR EFE 49 532,000 F 7K MAEEE
4 561,000 F K e

AEBZEARNERENETESES  EH
W EEFER/ARHRAEFEAEK
BENZERE  ZREZTHERERE -
Bt - EF @B MDA FRAEE AL
RATBIRZ T HEH & E AR E 2 K55 ©
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EEEHE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2018

The interests or short positions of the persons (other than a
Director or Chief Executive of the Company) in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO are as follows:

FERER

RZE—-NF=A=+—H
UMTALT(TEEEZERARAZESITH
AB)RARERH MABBER DT HEERE
RABRE(EFEDDEIZIFTFEZER
fit 2t ROR B -

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

BREEIEBIZEERYAE
Corporate/ Shareholding
Name of Shareholder Personal interests ~ Other interests percentage
EEERH
RERER B A H bz ERESL
New Sense 487,608,000 - 24.45%

(Note 1 fzE—)

Castfast Properties 32 /&5 b 330,000,000 - 16.55%
(Note 2 Bz =)

The Wedding City 240 4% 260,000,000 - 13.04%
(Note 3 Mzt =)

Honford Investments

TMF

- 330,000,000 16.55%
(Note 2 fizE =)

- 817,608,000 40.99%
(Note 4 M15EPM)
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Note:

The entire issued share capital of New Sense was owned by TMF as
trustee for The Ho Family Trust.

87% of the issued share capital of Castfast Properties is beneficially
owned by Honford Investments. The entire issued share capital of
Honford Investments was owned by TMF as trustee for a
discretionary trust, The Ho Family Trust. The interests of Honford
Investments duplicate with those of the Castfast Properties.

260,000,000 Shares were beneficially held by The Wedding City.
90% and 10% of the issued share capital of which is beneficially
owned by Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu, respectively. The
interests of The Wedding City therefore duplicate with those of Mr.
Ho Cheuk Fai referred to in Note 2 to the section “Directors’ and
Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares — (A) Interests in the
Company” above.

TMF is deemed to be interested in these Shares held by New Sense,
Castfast Properties and Honford Investments by virtue of acting as
the trustee for The Ho Family Trust.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, no person,
other than the Directors and chief executives of the Company,

whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’ and Chief

Executive’s Interests in Shares” above, had an interest or short

position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
that was required to be recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

EEEHE

BIEE

— - New Sense 2 2 & B 317 I T 1 TMF LA1S
#EfX The Ho Family Trust#§ 75 °

T EBEMWEERITRA Z287%T) H
Honford Investments & z # A& ° Honford
Investments 2 & &0 B 217 A& 45 b BB TMF /E
2R {55 The Ho Family Trust 2 %55 A
¥ A ° Honford Investments 2 # %5 £ 52 12
EHEZERER -

B4 E 253578 260,000,000 A i% 175 - HE
BT AR 2 90% 2 10% 70 Bl i ] ke 488 S0 A=
MABHRZLTESHEAE - Ut - IBYHZ
WA AMEBLERUNEEERE
BITBRABZRMOiERZ — (F)RARF
2R M Tl RS EE

Mg~ TMF#48 /3 A The Ho Family Trust2 % 5F
A B 1% B New Sense + = 18 B ith & &
Honford Investments £ 45 /8 % 10 7R # 5 #&

)
s o
I

BREXRESERGESITBRAER [ESE k&K
SITBRABZRNOER] PEREN RZF
—NE=ZF=+—08 TEALHEEARRQT
ZBRHRBERGD 2 ERIAR - MxEE
WA B BIRIB(EHIEO) FE 336 KA THE
BrEmMmeTae: -
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EEEHE

UPDATES ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION R ETRBE13.51B() HREL 2
UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES  EE=EHEF#H

Change of information of the Directors, which is required to  1R#& Em#EBIZE 13 51BN KETHRECE
be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules  SH&REEHEII0T -

are set out below:

Name of Director

Detail of Change

EEgE BEHFE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai annual salary increased from HK$4,676,400 to HK$4,736,400 (excluding
e A4 discretionary bonus) with effect from 1 July 2017

Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia
R& gk NE

Mr. Zhao Kai
LT AE

Mr. Ho Kai Man
AR A

Mr. Chan Raymond
RE S

Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming
(QGEEE S

FHHH4,676,4008 TTIEINZE 4,736,4008 0 (TNBEIEMELA) B
—+F+ B4

annual salary increased from HK$818,496 to HK$842,496 (excluding
discretionary bonus) with effect from 1 July 2017

FH 818,496 B LI NE 842,496 BT (T BEEMEL) B_E—+
FEA—HEX

annual salary increased from HK$983,556 to HK$1,179,456 (excluding
discretionary bonus) with effect from 1 August 2017

F 983,556 B TTIEMET,179,456 BT (T EEMERLLL) B=F
—tFN\HA—B4ER

annual salary increased from HK$426,000 to HK$438,000 (excluding
discretionary bonus) with effect from 1 July 2017

% $7H3 426,0008 TTIE N E 438,000 B L (M EEMEEL) BT —+
FEtA—BEX

annual salary increased from HK$960,000 to HK$984,000 (excluding
discretionary bonus) with effect from 1 July 2017

% %71 960,000 /8 TLIE SN ZE 984,000 B T (T BIEMEEL) - E-F—t
FEA—BEX

annual salary increased from HK$100,000 to HK$220,000 (excluding
discretionary bonus) with effect from 1 November 2017

% %763 100,000 % 735 H1 £ 220,000 B T (T EFEMERL) BT —+
Fr—A—B4&EX
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DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF
THE LISTING RULES

(M

On 26 July 2016, four subsidiaries of the Company,
namely Karrie Industrial Company Limited, Hong Kong
Hung Hing Metal Manufacturing Company Limited, Karrie
Technologies Company Limited and Karwin Engineering
Company Limited, as borrowers, and the Company and
two subsidiaries of the Company, namely Castfast
Industrial (Yan Tien) Limited and 2Bl E=EERE RS
B PR & 7], as guarantors, entered into a facility letter
issued by Hang Seng Bank Limited, whereby the following
bank facilities with total limit up to HK$373,377,777.65
and US$23,000,000 are granted to the borrowers: (i) a
term loan facility up to HK$180,000,000 for a term of 3
years from the date of drawdown; (ii) the outstanding term
loans of HK$5,555,555.44, HK$12,222,222.25,
HK$39,999,999.96 and HK$27,500,000 with final
maturity date on 28 April 2017, 15 May 2017, 4 June
2018 and 13 October 2016 respectively; and (iii) other
facilities, including overdraft, documentary credits, trust
receipt, import trade loans, revolving loan facility, treasury
product facility and corporate credit card, up to the limit
of HK$108,100,000 and US$23,000,000. The above
facilities imposes, inter alia, a condition that the borrowers
undertake and ensure that Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, the
controlling shareholder of the Company, shall not pledge
his shares in the Company without Hang Seng Bank
Limited’s prior written consent.

EEEHE

BELETRAUF 1321 RIEH 2R

(M

R-Z—XNFELA-_+/xH AQ7
NEWB AR - BEFERBRAR
EEESBHMAERATR - BZAIR
KBS BRARIRZERMTEAR
NEl(ERERF ) BART RAR A
WEKBAR  EREZEZBRAS
BMERAGERZEBMBEELRAS
BRARI(ERERA)FIIHEBEER
TERAREH 2 BE KM - Btk M
BRABRE TIBEBRER S E
373,377,777.657% 7T % 23,000,000 3
TLZIRITELE ¢ (i) & % ¥ 180,000,000
BT EHERRE  BREMERAR
=t &8 = & : (ii)5,555,555.44 %8 JC *
12,222,222.25%7T ~ 39,999,999.96 /8
7L % 27,500,000 8 L2 REETEEHE
o BRERIBHESMA T —LFM
A=+N\B ZF—+FHA+HA -
ZE-N\FARNAOBRZE—RFT
A+ = H8: KGR 8 & % &
108,100,000 % 7t & 23,000,000 37T 2
Hihgh&  BEE®E  EAK .
ERRE - EOBSER  BRER
BE EREMMERARGEATR -
A ERERTER 2 HR — & HRER
FAEHERERAKCEERITER A A
ELREEMRAER - AN AIERAR R M
EREERTISERBRART 2R

1/\ ®
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EEEHE

2)

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 3z i) B2 42

On 26 September 2016, Karwin Engineering Company
Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, as borrower
entered into a facility letter issued by China CITIC Bank
International Limited, whereby China CITIC Bank
International Limited agreed to make available to the
borrower a term loan facility up to HK$150,000,000 for
a term of three years from the date of the drawdown. The
facility letter imposes, inter alia, a condition that the
borrower shall ensure that the Company undertakes that
(i) the major shareholder, Ho’s family, does not reduce
the shareholding of the Company below 50.01% and
maintains management control over the Company at all
times and (ii) Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai,
shareholder of the Company and an executive director
(the Chairman of the board of directors and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company) or his direct family
member shall continue to be a director of the Company.

a controlling

On 20 December 2016, Castfast Industrial (Yan Tien)
Limited (a subsidiary of the Company) as borrower (the
“Borrower”) and the Company and Karrie International
(B.V.l.) Limited (a subsidiary of the Company) as
guarantors (the “Guarantors”) entered into a facility
agreement (the “Facility Agreement”) with Hang Seng
Bank Limited (the “Bank”), whereby the Bank agreed to
make available to the Borrower a term loan facility up to
HK$240,000,000 for a term of 48 months from the date
of Facility Agreement.

The Facility Agreement imposes, inter alia, conditions
that each of the Borrower and the Guarantors shall
ensure and procure that (i) Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and his
associates together have and will maintain not less than
65% direct or indirect shareholding in the Company; and
(if) Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and his associates will not create or
permit to subsist (or agree to create) any security over
any of their shares in the Company without the Bank’s
prior written consent.

BAERAT

=— ijLH*Jr/‘TEI PiN/NE]
TBARRERWM IEAR AR (E
PN
GIk:3

I\‘

7) Timqﬂf*fﬁfw<lﬁﬂ)*ﬁﬁﬁ
2 B & A %F&tﬂhﬁf&'
B BRARIRERER TR &

% # 150,000,000 7T 2 E HHE R mﬂ
Z ERDEZARTABH=-F @&
TR 2 P — TG RIER A A
R R BFGE () X ZRFMERIE
TR EMBAQFREZER
50.01% E—B#FHHEARNRRZER
EH RG)VARAIERRRRAITE
EMEBEE (RARRESFGEER
TR IEERFBEEERAR
BlZ7EE o

“D»EN%
Jmtt:“tl\

RZE—RNFE+A=+H &2Q
ZWE AEES Jﬁ_ﬁﬁ%ﬂimﬁﬁﬁ
NEl(ERfEHRA) [EXRAD - AA
7&$ATZWE Al Karrie
International (B.V.l.) Limited ({E&¥E{R
AN)([ERADBEBEERITBERRAA
(TZRTDIIvmEHE( B E %
&) BEZEITRE MBS R
% %3 240,000,000 7 7T 2 7E HI B 5K A
- BmEpZAHeT AR+

@A

BEWZEIA (HRBRE) GYHAE
R RIERAES B EAR KR )M
IEREEAEREBEAGRXREERR
BERNLRARA IR 65% B # sk M % IR
R R (i) A R E B8 AT
EHERKCZBTEAZSERENBNR
THEERAR QG 2 R0 IE R E
HRATHFE (KRABELER) -
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On 23 March 2017, Dongguan Karrie Properties
Development Company Limited (R55 8l FHEREH
R 2 A]) (a subsidiary of the Company) as borrower (the
“Borrower”) and the Company, Castfast Industrial (Yan
Tien) Limited and Karrie International (B.V.l.) Limited (a
subsidiary of the Company) as guarantors (the
“Guarantors”) entered into a facility agreement (the
“Facility Agreement”) with Hang Seng Bank (China)
Limited (the “Bank”) , whereby the Bank agreed to make
available to the Borrower a term loan facility up to
RMB270,000,000 for a term of 48 months from the date
of first draw down.

The Facility Agreement imposes, inter alia, conditions
that each of the Borrower and the Guarantors shall
ensure and procure that (i) Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and his
associates together have and will maintain not less than
65% direct or indirect shareholding in the Company; and
(ii) Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and his associates will not create or
permit to subsist (or agree to create) any security over
any of their shares in the Company without the Bank’s
prior written consent.

As at the date of this annual report, the above specific
performance obligations by the controlling shareholders of the
Company continue to subsist.

EEEHE
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EEEHE

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year ended 31
March 2018 attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and
customers are as follows:

Purchases
The largest supplier 45%
Five largest suppliers combined 67%
Sales
The largest customer 39%
Five largest customers combined 91%

None of the Directors, their associates, or any shareholders
(which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owned more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had a beneficial interest in
the Group’s major suppliers or customers noted above.

DIVIDEND AND CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF
MEMBERS

Assuming that the final dividend is approved by the
shareholders of the Company at the AGM, for the purposes of
ascertaining the entitlement to the final dividend, the register
of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 30
August 2018 to Friday, 31 August 2018 (both dates inclusive)
during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In
order to qualify for the final dividend, all properly completed
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and
transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 29 August
2018. It is expected that the final dividend will be payable and
issued to those entitled on or around Tuesday, 18 September
2018.

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 32l BEIFR =i A IR A &
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Report of the Directors

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND CLOSURE OF
REGISTER OF MEMBERS

To ascertain the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM to
be held on 24 August 2018, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Monday, 20 August 2018 to
Friday, 24 August 2018 (both dates inclusive) during which
period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to
qualify to attend and vote at the AGM, all properly completed
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and
transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 17 August 2018.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report, based on public
information available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, the Company maintained
sufficient public float, being 25% of the issued share capital of
the Company as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS
The financial statements have been audited by Messrs. KPMG
who shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment.

A resolution for their re-appointment as auditors of the
Company will be proposed at the AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Ho Cheuk Fai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 June 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B AR

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Karrie International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Karrie International Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 121 to 275, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2018, the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2018 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in Bermuda, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

R CTE e

BARENER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional BIREZEAFENREETS 2 FELHE - RA
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the HARHGEEMBHREZ B RAETELS
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These 18 ° It EEHRAEE SHTREGA VKR
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the HERHAEERKETERIE EZEITZYHEL
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming SHIEREHER I ER -

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Timing of revenue recognition

WA 2 K

Refer to note 27 to the consolidated financial statements and 2474 BB RFN 327 R 52(x).2 2

the accounting policy note 2(x).

The key audit matter
HRETEE

ATER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EE B NMEEZSEE

Revenue from sales of the Group’s metal and plastic
products and electronic products is recognised
when the goods are delivered to the customer’s
designated location which is considered to be the
point in time when the Group transfers the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of goods
to the customers.

BEREHENS NEREMNRETEMIBAEE
mAEEPHEE 2HE  NESENEMMBEL
ZERE R KRN ER T PR R o

The Group’s sales contracts with customers, which
principally comprise large-sized international
technology corporations, have a variety of terms
and conditions relating to goods acceptance. Such
terms may affect the timing of the recognition of
sales to those customers. The Group evaluates the
terms of each sales contract in order to determine
the appropriate timing of revenue recognition.
BEEBETP (X2ERBRAMEBRMRAR) AL
ZHERKNBRARRE MBI Z — RIS TR
R - B RA A e BRI E LR PEITH
EZEH - EEERNESHESOIRRER 2H
RN EET WARRZ BERE

Our audit procedures to assess the timing of revenue
recognition included the following:

EFRIBWAER ZBHE 2 EIEFEEAT

— obtaining an understanding of and assessing the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness
of the Group's key internal controls in relation to
revenue recognition;

— TEREFEESEBERWAMRER Z B REERZ
wRET - B MEEA L

— inspecting key customer contracts to identify terms
and conditions relating to goods acceptance and
assessing the Group’s revenue recognition policies
with reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;

— REBERETFA OB EEMRE R IFR R
&t AR2RBTEAENZERFAEERERLZ
WA TERBUR
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B AR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (continued)

The key audit matter
BEETEE

FAREEITEIE (&)
WAFER R (42)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEZENNNEREZEE

We identified the timing of revenue recognition as a
key audit matter because each sales contract may
have different terms and conditions which increases
the risk of error in the recognition of revenue and
because it is one of the key performance indicators
of the Group and could be subject to manipulation
to meet targets or expectations.

EHFEWABRZ SRS REREAFR  HEH
EBKETA TRMEK SR - B A fEI8 HIABE
RIERZ AR - Rl BWAZESEES AR
REREET AJREXIIARBRAIAZENK B R

Eo

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 32l BEIFR =i A IR A &

comparing, on a sample basis, specific revenue
transactions recorded before and after the financial
year end date with delivery documents with the
customers’ acknowledgement of goods acceptance
and underlying sales invoices to determine whether
the revenue had been recognised in the appropriate
financial period; and

MR BEFRATEE AR LEBRAR S RIAH
HERELRBEFPHERRKE M ERE  UEE
HEARAEREEE < FHRT AR AR

inspecting underlying documentation for manual
journal entries relating to revenue raised during the
year which were considered to be material or met
other specific risk-based criteria.

REERI R R KR SEXRZFERE - flmesto
BRETFHEAST  REBWABB G DM
BASIRIEREER -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Valuation of inventories

R CTE e

BARESEEE)
FEME

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and — 2Fj4r4 B EHEN 7 16 BHT32n)60) 2 €

the accounting policy note 2(n)(i).

The key audit matter
RREITER

FHECE -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEZENNNEREZSEE

The Group is primarily involved in the manufacture
and sale of metal and plastic products as well as
electronic products.
BEEBETENFEENMEERS RBBER AR
== jm]

EfEM-°

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. The Group maintains its inventory
levels based on customer orders and forecast
demand.
FERKAESTFE M BEEEE - &
EiRBE P EMERERERFEFEKTF -

A significant proportion of the Group’s products are
manufactured to meet specific customer
requirements. There is a risk that inventories may
be stated at more than their net realisable value if a
customer experiences financial difficulty or there is
a demand issue with a customer’s product that
includes a component manufactured by the Group.
BEREMARDEME/MEEREP 2 ERMA
Eo MREFPEBMBRE REFPZEMR(BRE
RESRERENAN) FEFKEE  METREF
BRI BE AR B E Al IR FE TR 2 AR o

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of inventories
included the following:

BEERFERECRAEFERA TSR

— obtaining an understanding of and assessing the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness
of the Group’s key internal controls over the process
for assessing provisions for inventories;

— THRAIFEESREERNEFERG AR 2R
AEMZE I RET B RETRRM

— comparing the cost of raw materials with supplier
invoices, on a sample basis;

— WEHLRMHZAARRERAER L 228

—  for work-in-progress and finished goods, challenging
the key assumptions concerning overhead absorption
by assessing the cost of items included in the
overhead absorption calculations, on a sample basis;

— HR¥EEBREKSR EEMEFEREERD
FAEaZRA  EREMEERS G M @R

CEE

— assessing the classification of inventory items in the
inventory ageing report by comparison with supplier
invoices and other underlying documentation on a
sample basis;

— ERWMELLBRBERE NEMBREXY  FEFE
RSN ZTHER DA
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B AR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Valuation of inventories (continued)

The key audit matter
RREITER

BARESEEHE)
FEMEE)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEZENNNERZSEE

Management assesses the level provisions for
inventories required at each reporting date after
considering inventory ageing and other relevant
factors. This assessment involves significant
management judgement and estimation.

BB RFEZIRELREMABERR  RE
E¥kE BeHEPIR T EREE 2 KF - ZeHE S RE
REHE BN R b5t -

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key
audit matter because the Group held significant
inventories at the reporting date and the significant
degree of management judgement and estimation
involved in evaluating the provisions for
inventories.

BEFLFEREIRARENSR  ARERER
BEARAAEBZTE  UREFNEFEEER Y
KT EREIRE b A o

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 32l BEIFR =i A IR A &

selecting inventory items, on a sample basis, at
reporting date and comparing their carrying value to
their subsequent selling prices as indicated in sales
invoices subsequent to the reporting date;
WMEERERREAZFERR  EREKREEER
BERREERELZEE

comparing material slow-moving inventories items
with customers’ orders and production forecasts and
assessing the financial condition of key customers;
and

HREXNGHFERBEEPITERESRR - A
MFHEEREP 2 BB - AR

assessing the historical accuracy of management’s
process for making provisions for inventories by
examining the utilisation or release of the provisions
for inventories made at the end of the previous
financial year during the current financial year.
BEBEENFEREZREFE 2EAREEIBEREK
AP LA RE 8 2 BB S AEHE -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Recoverability of trade receivables

R CTE e

BARESEEE)
B 5 BB WUR R 2 o B Yt

Refer to notes 3(a)(iii) and 14 to the consolidated financial £ 454 B #2013 3(a) i) & B3 14 1
statements and the accounting policies notes 2(p) and 2(m). Hiat2(p) F12(m) 2 @ FTECE °

The key audit matter
REETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEZENNNERZSEE

The Group generates revenue from sales of its
products, and services to customers in several
different jurisdictions including Hong Kong, the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”), North America,
Western Europe and other Asian countries.
BEXEEAEERELS  hEARKME(THE]) 1t
X ARREMDNBERERZZETRBIAEE
BB BREE P HEEMMREMAELWA -

Customers located in different jurisdictions are
subject to different local risks (including political,
currency and interest rate risks) specific to those
jurisdictions in addition to the effects of the global
economic climate.

BT 2MEERR 2 ZEI - LR TR RIAE &R
ZEFEETRMEES 2ER (BERBUERK -
B R MR R ERR) o

Management assesses the level of allowance for
doubtful debts required at each reporting date after
taking into account the ageing analysis of trade
receivables and any other factors specific to
individual debtors concerned and a collective
element based on historical experience adjusted for
certain current factors.
EEEEEEEHRUIRTKZRE DT - E5ER
ANBEZEMEMEAR  URNELEBRRERE
RNEAHEE cARFERBEZEARERR - REE
WE B AN E 2 RIREFHZKF

Our audit procedures to assess the recoverability of trade
receivables included the following:

EERERERGEZ BT EFREENTEIE

— obtaining an understanding of and assessing the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness
of the Group’s key internal controls over the
processes of credit control, collection of trade
receivables and follow up of overdue balances;

— TEIFHEESEEBREEES - BHEBIKRIK
[B] 5 8 B R TR IR < RS 12 ) 2 AR~ B BUETT
BRIt

— evaluating the Group’s policy for making allowances
for doubtful debts with reference to the requirements
of the prevailing accounting standards;

— Z2RATEFHEL FEESERKBEHZBE

— assessing the classification of trade receivables in the
trade receivable ageing report by comparison with
sales invoices and other underlying documentation
on a sample basis;

— EAMBLEHEERIFEAEMMARXME  FEES
FEUIR SRR B R E 2 E P RUIR D 1R
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B AR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Recoverability of trade receivables (continued)

The key audit matter
RREITER

BARESEEHE)
B 5 FE WOk =02 B (B Wt (AF

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEZENNNERZSEE

We identified the recoverability of trade receivables
as a key audit matter because of the significance of
trade receivables to consolidated statement of
financial position and because of the significant
degree of management judgement involved in
evaluating the adequacy of the allowance for
doubtful debts.

FEEREIRF Z AT E 15| RRER R FIE
REZRBEREEGREMBARKR 2ERE - AR
HERRER Z TR S NEAZ EEEHE -

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 32l BEIFR =i A IR A &

obtaining an understanding of the basis of
management’s judgements about the recoverability
of individual trade receivable balances and
evaluating the allowance for doubtful debts made by
management for these individual balances with
reference to the debtors’ financial condition, the
industry in which the debtors are operating, the
ageing of overdue balances, correspondence
between the Group and the debtors and historical
and post year-end payment records;

TR E S E B E R B 5 e U R R E B AR ER A a1
Z AR - W2 RABEBA 2MBENRR - EHf
BRZIT¥  BEFRIAZIRE SXEREBKAZME
ZBBNESE RFREZERGCERTEEEEH
Z AR PR IR SBIRER

assessing the assumptions and estimates made by
management for the allowance for doubtful debts
calculated based on a collective assessment by
performing a retrospective review of the historical
accuracy of these estimates and recalculating the
Group’s allowance with reference to the Group’s
policy for collective assessment; and
BEEPHEEZERBIRIREE S 2 ERNE - I
S2REEERBAS T AFHZBRRENTER
SEZRIREE - EMAHESEHERAS TN
AHERTE IR EEATE 2 RR S flaT + AR

inspecting bank receipts from customers and other
relevant underlying documentation subsequent to the
financial year end relating to trade receivable
balances at 31 March 2018, on a sample basis.
HEREEVRFEERE  KEPUBN _-F
—N\E=ZA=T—BZESRWIRNHRERRE 2B
&E -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

R CTE e

BREHEE (&)

Assessing the net realisable value of properties under ERPEFEERY R 2R FE

development for sale (“PUD”) in the PRC

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and 2 (745 & B i8R FE M 5317 K B3 2(n)ii) .2

the accounting policy note 2(n)(ii).

The key audit matter
HRETSEE

= E%Ef/"l%

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEZENNNEREZSEE

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had a number of
property development projects under development
for sale located in the PRC which were stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value at an
aggregate amount of HK$640,000,000.
RZZ—N\F=A=+—RH  rEER+EHAEEIE
FOAERYEHRIAR - WRANAEEFERE
Z BRI - 485 %R /640,000,000 87T ©

The calculation of the net realisable value of each
property development project at the end of the
reporting period is performed by the Group’s
management.

FEMFERFEERRERNR 2 ATEIFERAE
EEEEFE -

The calculation of net realisable value of PUD
requires estimations, including expected future
selling prices and costs necessary to complete the
sale of these properties.

AEMAERMEZ IS IFEFT M 2550
EMEBRRKHEEB R TRIHEMTERA -

Our audit procedures to assess the net realisable value of
properties under development for sale in the PRC included
the following:

ERFERNPRFEERME A ERFEFTZ
r@?EJ/AT%I,E\ -

— evaluating the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over the
preparation, monitoring and management of the
budgeted construction and other costs for each
property development project;

— FEEEEERZSMEZERER Z?ﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁm
PRS2 B BRI B 2 BB A BRI I 2 R
Bt EERRIE

— conducting site visits to all property development
projects, discussing with management the progress
and comparing the observed progress with the latest
development budgets for each property development
project provided by management;

— HAAEMERERBABETEMHER  HEEES
EH&f&Hﬁﬁ@khZ#ﬂ%%%@ﬁﬁmﬁ
HRBPEEBRSECFLER
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¢ B BT EH

BARESEEHE)
AR ESEEEYE IR REEGE)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Assessing the net realisable value of properties under
development for sale (“PUD”) in the PRC (continued)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EECENNNEREZEE

The key audit matter
RREITER

116

Recent property market cooling measures imposed
by the local government in the PRC could lead to
volatility in property prices.

AT A R BT BUR $ S i E IS B RS AR it -
A BEHEERKE

We identified the assessment of net realisable value
of PUD in the PRC as a key audit matter because
the determination of net realisable value requires
significant management judgement and estimation
in relation to future selling prices and future
construction costs which increases the risk of error
or potential management bias.
BEHFEMERFREEAERYEZAIERFEIR
RRESFEH RETAZRFEFTEHRKHEE
B ROR KRR AT R 2 E 12 [E HIi & fhat
MmAIBEIE MNEE R KB EIEE R R < AR

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 32l BEIFR =i A IR A &

evaluating valuation methodology used by
management and assessing the key estimates, data
inputs and assumptions adopted in the valuations, by
comparing expected future average selling prices
with available market data such as recently
transacted prices for similar properties located in the
nearby vicinity of each property development project
and comparing costs to complete each property
development project with publicly available
construction cost information for similar properties
(taking into account both property type and location)
and sales budget plans maintained by the Group;
BRBEEMFERER 2 A FHIHEE R
15135 BUR (WAL p0 #8313 (& R R AV W) R RO A X
B) LB EYEERIAR TR ANE R AFRERFF
BAMERZEXNAEN (FEBMERBERUE)
REEERAZHEREME  FEEEERAZ
MEDERFEEEMFBZERGEE  BABE
PEE R

re-performing the calculations made by management
in arriving at the year end assessments of net
realisable value, on a sample basis, and comparing
the estimated costs to complete each development
with the Group’s updated budgets; and
BEMEENAEEEEHRRAIZRIFE
B RUREEESHAEEGEZRERTKD
fAEtRA - I

performing sensitivity analysis to determine the
extent of change in those estimates that, either
individually or collectively, would be required for
PUD to be materially misstated and considering the
likelihood of such a movement in those key estimates
arising and whether there was any evidence of
management bias.
ETHREIMTAEEFT RSO ERMETES
Rt - pF A (TwERsia) 2 8(eig
B EEUEHRMASIEZES 2N - RE
MRERRFEEEERR
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in
the annual report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the Directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

R CTE e
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B AR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

— Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal
control.

— Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

BAERAT
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

—  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Directors.

—  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

—  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

—  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B AR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence and, where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Yip Ka Ming, Alice.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

25 June 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MBARRE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (JAFE7L5I7R)

31 March 31 March
2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —T—+F
=A=+-8 =A=+-A8
Note $’000 $'000
ihE=d F Tt
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Land use rights I Hb s A 6 16,663 17,135
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB RRE 7 449,206 439,017
Investment properties &Y 8 336,250 301,710
Intangible assets mpEE 9 9,317 24,760
Investments in associates REEZ N EZ2IE 11 16,562 14,136
Available-for-sale financial assets AR EemEE 15 18,916 18,597
Other non-current assets HiIERE & E 14 46,224 36,676
Deferred tax assets RIS 25 7,354 1,524
900,492 853,555
Current assets REBEE
Inventories T8 16 381,143 384,883
Property development MEER 17 657,428 479,811
Trade and bills receivable B 5 NEEEIIER 14 403,794 321,113
Prepayments, deposits and AN mE Rk
other receivables H i E U IR 3 14 28,469 80,078
Current tax recoverable AR AT F IR 25 138 1,701
Cash and bank deposits Re RIBITHFR 18 272,153 215,363
1,743,125 1,482,949
Total assets EEHAE 2,643,617 2,336,504
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves attributable AABEERFE ARG
to equity shareholders BAR#E
of the Company
Share capital [N 19 199,456 199,620
Other reserves H it 21 287,519 212,604
Retained earnings {R BB 55 A 701,307 666,279
1,188,282 1,078,503
Non-controlling interests FEERER = (1,750)
Total equity ERAE 1,188,282 1,076,753
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TTFII7R)
31 March 31 March
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
=A=+-8 =A=+-H
Note $000 $000
iEsd Fr Tt
LIABILITIES &R
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables Z S REMIRRK 22 208,737 230,309
Accruals and other payables FEATE A R H A ESIRR 22 345,886 315,565
Receipts in advance FEUBR K 65,411 35,191
Bank borrowings RITEE 24 135,002 50,333
Obligations under finance leases BEFHE N AEAE 23 = 17
Amount due to an associate FESTHE &N BIIR X 11 2,587 2,992
Amount due to a related company FETEE A BIIR K 12 123,397 65,067
Current tax payable NHAFE S TR 25 71,727 55,402
952,747 754,876
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank borrowings RITEE 24 490,900 489,467
Obligations under finance leases REHE TARE 23 - 111
Provision for long service payments & HIIRTE S HE 26 7,718 5,642
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEEE 25 3,970 9,655
502,588 504,875
Totalliabilites = %&f®& RSl 1259751
Total equity and liabilities ERkEBHEE 2,643,617 2,336,504
Net current assets REEEFE 790,378 728,073
Total assets less current liabilities EEABRRBAR 1,690,870 1,581,628

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

25 June 2018.

Ho Cheuk Fai

RCE-N\FRA-THARESESHRER

BT

Chan Ming Mui, Silvia

)= 18 BR 2 IR
Director Director
E 3

The notes on pages 132 to 275 form part of these financial

F132E275 B2 M AR EHRE 2 — 5B
statements. 7 e
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mEEER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #E T~ /\F=A=+—HIFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTHI/R)
2018 2017
—E-NE ZFLF
Note $’000 $'000
BEE F T+
(Restated)
(B&E7%))
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEREXK
Revenue A 27 2,919,880 2,699,638
Cost of revenue WA AR 28 (2,497,094) (2,331,434)
Gross profit E¥ 422,786 368,204
Distribution and selling expenses DHENHEER 28 (29,677) (23,194)
General and administrative expenses ~ —R R 1T E 28 (136,885) (129,632)
Other income/gains and (losses) HAB WA, Wzs K (E518) 27 5,889 3,733
Net valuation gain on investment REYFEHEWRRFHE
properties 8 2,078 1,358
Operating profit gegnA 264,191 220,469
Finance income B UA 1,542 1,058
Finance costs R IO N (14,883) (11,579)
Finance costs, net BIIERA B 30 (13,341) (10,521)
Share of profits of an associate =~ BiEBER RN . Y2 &7
Profit before taxation BRERATER 251,722 210,195
Income tax Frig#t 31 (34,015) (20,642)
Profit for the year from continuing FERBEFESEEL
operations 2R 217,707 189,553
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS ERIEREER
Loss for the year from discontinued FREKBEDRILREER
operations Z 518 35 (35,414) (21,341)
Profit for the year FEEF 182,293 168,212

ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18 53R

123



124

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mEEER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BE T~ \F=A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LABLFI7R)

2018 2017
—B-N\F T—tF
Note $’000 $'000
Bt = T T
(Restated)
(BE&7%)
Attributable to: 1L -
Equity shareholders of the Company AAFERFEEA 182,563 168,333
Non-controlling interests FEER R (270) (121)
182,293 168,212
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity RRAEEREE AL
shareholders of the Company RKENTEEZ
arises from: wA (E1E)
— Continuing operations — BB EER 217,707 189,553
— Discontinued operations — ERIEREER (35,144) (21,220)
182,563 168,333
Earnings per share from continuing ~ KA RERFISE AEM
operations and discontinued REFESEERR
operations attributable to equity ERIEREEL S
shareholders of the Company BRER
Basic earnings/(loss) per share SREFRER,(&HE)
(HK cent) (F&4l) 33
— Continuing operations — BBREER 10.9 9.5
— Discontinued operations — DRIERE X 1.7) (1.1)
— Profit for the year — FER A 9.2 8.4
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share BEESRER(BA)
(HK cent) (F&4L) 33
— Continuing operations — BB ER 10.8 9.5
— Discontinued operations — DRI E X 1.7) (1.1)
— Profit for the year — FEHEM 9.1 8.4

The notes on pages 132 to 275 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders
of the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set

out in note 34.
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

SmEBEER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ=%F

Ht 2E WA R

—NF=ZA=1T—HILLFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTHI/R)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
Note $000 $'000
Bt = Fr T
(Restated)
(BE3)
Profit for the year FERA 182,293 168,212
Other comprehensive income FEHM2EBA :
for the year:
Items that will not be reclassified TEEFIREEDZ
to profit or loss: IEHH :
Remeasurement of provision REARBEEEBZ
for long service payments EFEE 26(b) (2,213) 2,017
Items that may be reclassified HIZAJEEH DI E
subsequently to profit or loss: Bm A -
Exchange differences on translation of #2155 5N 3 75 B 75 3R 5% AT
financial statements of overseas EXZHBER
operations net of $Nil tax B|IA 2 FE 21 65,974 (29,876)
Fair value gains on available-for-sale ~ AIftHESBMEE A FE
financial assets, net of $Nil tax W - BmBIIE 2R E 21 223 9
Other comprehensive income FEHM2EEA
fortheyear 63984 27,850)
Total comprehensive income FERXEBALRE
for the year 246,277 140,362
Attributable to: PEAL -
Equity shareholders of the Company — AR RE&mFH A 246,547 140,483
Non-controlling interests FEFE RS e (270) (121)
Total comprehensive income FE2EBAZLE
for the year 246,277 140,362
Total comprehensive income ARATEEREAEMN
attributable to equity REUTEEZ
shareholders of the Company ZHEBALEE:
arises from:
— Continuing operations — FEREER 281,430 161,960
— Discontinued operations — ERIEREER (34,883) (21,477)
246,547 140,483

The notes on pages 132 to 275 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BE T~ \F=A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(A TTHIR)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ARFREREAEE

Non-
Share Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  reserves  earnings Total interests equity
(Note 19)  (Note 21)
Bx At REEH Ak JFEkER BxeR
(FrEzn9) - (BiEE21)
Note $000 $'000 $000 $000 $'000 $'000
M T T T T T T
Balance at 1 April 2016 “E-AENA-AZER 199,620 240,785 576,775 1,017,180 (1,344) 1,015,836
Changes in equity for the year ~ HE-E—+&
ended 31 March 2017: =R=t-Hit
EREZEE:
Profit/(loss) for the year FREMN/(B8) - - 168333 168333 (121) 168,212
Other comprehensive income HEh2EA - (29,867) 2,017 (27,850) - (27,850)
Total comprehensive income 2 ERALE - (29867) 170,350 140,483 (121) 140,362
Liquidation of a subsidiary EEHBERR - - - - (424) (424)
Change in ownership interests B R A AR Z
in a subsidiary without change ) (T & 2 4liE)
of control - - - - 139 139
Dividend paid in respect LTFERERRR
of the previous year 34(b) - - (54895 (54,895 - (54,895
Equity settled share-based PSP
transactions 20 - 2,561 - 2,561 - 2,561
Dividends paid in respect FERERRE
of the current year 34(a) - - (25,951)  (25,951) - (25,951)
Repurchase of shares EEER 21(c)(ii) - (875) - (875) - (875)
Balance at 31 March 2017 “E-+tF=R=1-H
ko 199,620 212,604 666,279 1,078,503 (1,750 1,076,753
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #E T~ /\F=A=+—HIFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAELFI7R)
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
RRARBHAARE
Non-
Share Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  reserves  earnings Total interests equity
(Note 19)  (Note 21)
kx  HitRk REET B FERER BHLE
(W&E19)  (W&E21)
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
i3s3 Fr i Fr Fr Fr Fr
Balance at 1 April 2017 “E-tFmA-Ri8 199,620 212,604 666,279 1,078,503 (1,750) 1,076,753
Changes in equity for the year ~ BZE-Z-N\§
ended 31 March 2018: =R=t-HBL
FEREEE
Profit/(loss) for the year FEREF/(B1]) = - 182563 182,563 270) 182,293
Other comprehensive income ~ E2ERA - 66,197 2,213) 63,984 = 63,984
Total comprehensive income 2 ERALE - 66197 180,350 246,547 (270) 246,277
Dividends paid in respect LTEEERRR
of the previous year 34(b) - - (103,803)  (103,803) - (103,803)
Equity settled share-based DR .2 %2 5
transactions 20 - 2,908 - 2,908 - 2,908
Dividends paid in respect TEEERRE
of the current year 34(a) - - (31,942)  (31,942) - (31,942)
Cancellation of shares BElan) 21(c)(iii) (811) 10,388 (9,577) - - -
Repurchase of shares Bk 21(c)iii) = (8,702) = (8,702) = (8,702)
Issuance of shares upon exercise  {T{FREIRERETRG
of share options 19(c) 647 3,180 - 3,827 - 3,827
Disposal of subsidiaries with HEMBA R RIEERER
non-controlling interests 35 - - - - 2,020 2,020
Release of translation reserve LEMBAR CAERE
upon disposal of subsidiaries R 35 - 944 - 944 - 944
Balance at 31 March 2018 “E-N\E=f=1+-H
2EE 199456 287,519 701,307 1,185,282 - 1,188,282

The notes on pages 132 to 275 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

AERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BlZ—F

—N\F=ZA=1T—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LABLFI7R)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —EF
Note $’000 $'000
Bt = T T
Cash flows from operating activities EEFH2BESHTE
Profit before taxation BR A% A& 216,308 188,854
Share of profits of an associate JEAG & R R & A 11 (872) (247)
Depreciation of property, ME - WERERBEIITE
plant and equipment 7 54,990 58,188
Amortisation of land use rights 3 {6 P M 2 B 8K 6 472 472
Amortisation of intangible assets | EE 9 3,693 3,657
Amortisation of deferred income RIEW A 2 B8 7 - (515)
Equity settled share-based IRt 2 2 5
transactions 20 2,908 2,561
Gain on disposal of property, HEME  BER
plant and equipment w2 W (3,082) (1,095)
Impairment loss on investments REFERRIZIREZ
in associates REEE 27 = 2,490
Impairment loss on available-for- AL EEREEZ
sale financial assets BIEEE 27 = 201
Gain on liquidation of a subsidiary BHEME ARz HEs 27 - (487)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR ZEE 35 505 -
Write-down of obsolete and BRE KB 1R & 2 MU
slow moving inventories 16 - 9,873
Provision for long service payments REARB & & 26 267 245
Net valuation gain on investment B FEHEWEFEE
properties 8 (2,078) (1,358)
Interest expenses FEXZ 30 14,888 11,580
Interest income MEUWA 30 (1,546) (1,063)
Foreign exchange loss/(gain) GNEETE 5 548 (U es) 6,113 (3,973)
Operating profit before working EEESEBAIZ
capital changes carried forward R RR 292,566 269,383
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

AN L=
GERERER
For the year ended 31 March 2018 #E T~ /\F=A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTHI/R)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
Note $’000 $'000
gz T T
Operating profit before working EEESEHAIZ
capital changes brought forward RenfEE 292,566 269,383
Increase in inventories FEIEM (529) (44,172)
Increase in property development YISEEE R 218N (43,387) (253,549)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and B hEEEWNER
bills receivable (3 m),/m (76,357) 7,701
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, B3R ~ & R E b FEU
deposits and other receivables IR ZIFD,(HE0) 61,806 (2,990)
Decrease in trade payables E 5 NIRRZ (23,660) (27,426)
Increase in accruals and FERTE R R EALFER
other payables &R 2 0 5,544 45,507
Decrease in receipts in advance TE IR TR 2 Rk (17,817) (993)
Decrease in amount due to JETHE & A RIR K Z
an associate Ve (405) (3,749
Increase in amount due to FEFTRAE A TIRFRZ
a related party # 0 5,665 1,129
Net cash generated from/(used in) REEE (A2
operations BRE 203,426 (9,159)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ENEBFER (19,214) (25,132)
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded RIEBFBFE/H 1,686 1,218
PRC tax paid B EFSER (1,506) (910)
Long service payments paid ERNRERSEE 26 (404) (239)
Net cash generated from/(used in) REEBEE(FFA)
operating activities Z2EEAES 183,988 (34,222)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

AN N o —1

& conenez
For the year ended 31 March 2018 BE T~ \F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LABLFI7R)

130

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Note $’000 $'000
Bt = Fr T
Cash flows from investing activities ~ REFBHHERE
Payment for the purchase of BEWE - BB K&K
property, plant and equipment 2R (103,319) (63,233)
Payment for additions to investment ~ REIREWE Z (I
properties 8 (282) (2,092)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWME  BEK
plant and equipment Rt TS 3,410 1,294
Proceeds from disposal of HEMBAR 2SR
subsidiaries, net of cash disposal FReHE 48,100 -
Proceeds from capital injection FERERTEZ
from non-controlling interests PTG - 139
Payment for capital injection in TERBE RRZ AR
an associate 11 - (2,131)
Payment for acquisition of WHEBL & E 2 R
intangible assets 9 (741) -
Interest received 2R B 1,147 667
Net cash used in investing activities WEEZHFFAZERS (51,685) (65,356)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

GERTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BZ=-ZF—N\F=HA=+—HIFE

(ABTLHIR)

2018 2017
—E-NE ZFLF
Note $’000 $'000
Bt = T T
Cash flows from financing activites = BEFH 2B ESHTE
Interest paid EASHE (27,148) (18,485)
Payment for the repurchase of shares  [BIfE% 5 2 3K 21(c) (8,702) (875)
New bank borrowings MIRITREE 18(b) 166,200 921,705
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEER 18(b) (80,098) (773,711)
Capital element of repayment EEMENREY
of finance leases PN 4= ) 18(b) 33) (6,856)
Dividends paid 2R (135,745) (80,846)
Issuance of shares upon exercise ITEIBARAE R B AITIR D
of share options 19(c) 3,827 -
Net cash (used in)/generated from RMESEE (A B4
_financing activities ZERE e ||| 40932
Net increase/(decrease) in cash BeERBREEEY2
and cash equivalents FEmMm, R 50,604 (58,646)
Cash and cash equivalents at FOzHRERESE
the beginning of the year £EY 215,363 276,541
Effect of foreign exchange rate SIEERBH o HE
changes 6,186 (2,532)
Cash and cash equivalents FRZRERREEEY
at the end of the year 18 272,153 215,363

The notes on pages 132 to 275 form part of these financial

statements.

F£132F275 Bz M AR K@K 2 — &

7 e

ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18 53R

131



132

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 5B FBAIN -

1

GENERAL INFORMATION

Karrie International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally
engaged in

— Metal and Plastic (“M&P”) Business: manufacturing
and sale of metal and plastic products, including
server casings, moulds, plastic and metal parts and
predominately self-brand household products;

—  Electronic Manufacturing Services (“EMS”) Business:
manufacturing and sale of magnetic tape data
storage, point-of-sale (“POS”) system, medical
products, office automation products and other
computer peripherals;

— Real Estate Business: urban renewal, real estate
project investment, property leasing and
development; and

— Consumer and Services Business: building of
“Fullhouse World” Brand, provision of relevant
services, such as catering services and sales of
themed gifts. During the year ended 31 March
2018, the Consumer and Services Business segment
was disposed of to a related party and the results of
this segment have been classified as discontinued
operations of the Group (note 35).

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda on 29 October 1996. The address of its
registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The shares of the Company have been listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 16 December 1996.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
unit of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), unless otherwise
stated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Br SHB AN -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing
Rules”). A summary of the significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group and the Company. Note 2(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to
the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these financial statements.
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B 5 ¥R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 5B FBAIN -

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2018 comprise the Group and its
interests in associates. The measurement basis used
in the preparation of the financial statements is the
historical cost basis except for investment
properties, available-for-sale financial assets and
employee benefit assets/liabilities which have been
measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 4.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 58 #¢RASM -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(0

(d)

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued several amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group. None of these
impact on the accounting policies of the Group.
However, additional disclosure has been included
in note 18(b) to satisfy the new disclosure
requirements introduced by the amendments to
HKAS 7, Statement of cash flows: Disclosure
initiative, which require entities to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements
to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both changes arising
from cash flows and non-cash changes.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.
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B 5 ¥R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 5B FBAIN -

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

An investment in subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows, and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is
no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group
has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the
Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition
of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any
non-controlling interests either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of
the Company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 58 #¢RASM -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(d

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions, whereby adjustments are
made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity to
reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or
loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset (see note 2(g)) or, when appropriate,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in
an associate (see note 2(e)).
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B 5 ¥R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 5B FBAIN -

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(e)

Associates
An associate is an entity in which the Group has
significant influence, but not control or joint
control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements under the
equity method. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for
any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-
date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any).
Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the post-
acquisition change in the Group’s share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss
relating to the investment (see note 2(m)). Any
acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
investees and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, whereas the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition post-tax items of the investees’ other
comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in the associate, the Group’s interest is
reduced to $nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the investee. For this
purpose, the Group's interest is the carrying amount
of the investment under the equity method together
with the Group’s long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Br SHB AN -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(e)

®

Associates (continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the investees, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment is an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture, retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former investee at the date when significant
influence is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see note 2(g)).

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on
a bargain purchase.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 55 aiBASN -

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

®

(g

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit, or groups of cash-generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment
(see note 2(m)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.

Other investments in equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s accounting policies
for investments equity securities, other than
investments in subsidiaries and associates, are as
follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at
fair value, which is their transaction price unless it
is determined that the fair value at initial recognition
differs from the transaction price and that fair value
is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market
for an identical asset or liability or based on a
valuation technique that uses only data from
observable markets. Cost includes attributable
transaction costs.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Br SHB AN -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(®

(h)

Other investments in equity securities (continued)
Investments in securities which are not held for
trading are classified as available-for-sale securities.
At the end of each reporting period the fair value is
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the available-
for-sales assets revaluation reserve. As an exception
to this, investments in equity securities that do not
have a quoted price in an active market for an
identical instrument and whose fair value cannot
otherwise be reliably measured are recognised in
the statement of financial position at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(m)).

When these investments are derecognised or
impaired, the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified
to profit or loss. Investments are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to
purchase/sell the investments or they expire.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest (see
note 2(k)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a
currently undetermined future use and property that
is being constructed or developed for future use as
investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value, unless
they are still in the course of construction or
development at the end of the reporting period and
their fair value cannot be reliably measured at that
time. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair
value or from the retirement or disposal of an
investment property is recognised in profit or loss.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

@

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are expensed in profit or loss during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Gain or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Construction-in-progress represents buildings, plant
and machinery under construction and pending
installation and is stated at cost. Cost includes the
costs of construction of buildings, the costs of plant
and machinery, installation, testing and other direct
costs. No depreciation is made on construction-in-
progress until such time as the relevant assets are
completed and ready for intended use. When the
assets concerned are brought into use, the costs are
transferred to other property, plant and equipment
and depreciated in accordance with the policy as
stated in below.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 58 #¢RASM -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

@

()

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives. The annual rates used for the calculation of
depreciation are:

Over the lease term
2% to 4%

—  Leasehold land

—  Buildings

—  Fixtures and leasehold

8% t0 33.33%

6.67% to 20%
15%

improvements
—  Machinery
— Moulds and tooling
—  Furniture and computer
equipment 15% to 33.33%
Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value,
if any, are reviewed annually.

Land use rights

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Cost represents
consideration paid for the rights to use the land on
which various plant and buildings are situated for
periods varying from 10 to over 50 years.
Amortisation of land use rights is calculated on a
straight-line basis over the period of the land use
rights.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 5B FBAIN -

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(k)

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a

series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed
period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement

and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.

(i)

Assets acquired under finance leases
Where the Group acquires the use of assets
under finance leases, the amounts representing
the fair value of the leased asset, or, if lower,
the present value of the minimum lease
payments, of such assets are included in
property, plant and equipment and the
corresponding liabilities, net of finance
charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at
rates which write off the cost of the assets or
valuation of the assets over the term of the
relevant lease or, where it is likely the Group
will obtain ownership of the asset, the life of
the asset, in accordance with the accounting
policies as set out in note 2(i). Impairment
losses are accounted for in accordance with
the accounting policy as set out in note 2(m).
Finance charges implicit in the lease payments
are charged to profit or loss over the period of
the leases so as to produce an approximately
constant periodic rate of charge on the
remaining balance of the obligations for each
accounting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B S ¥ R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Br BB AN - LAETTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(k) Leased assets (continued)
(ii) Sale and leaseback arrangement resulting

in finance lease
A sale and leaseback arrangement which
results in a finance lease is a means whereby
the lessor provides finance to the lessee with
the asset as security. To reflect the substance
of the transaction, any excess of sales proceeds
over the carrying amount of the asset, or any
deficit of sales proceeds lower than the
carrying amount of the asset, is deferred and
amortised as an adjustment to the depreciation
of the asset.

(iii) Operating leases

Leases which do not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the
Group are classified as operating leases.
Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased assets.

() Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the
Group are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (see note 2(m)).
Operating rights acquired in a business combination
are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’
estimated useful lives.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18 53R

2 EBESTHBE®E)

(k)

U]

HEEE (&)

(i)

FRmERE 2 ERBRR
Z

FRBEREZ ERARR
SEUALEAAEEIERIE
MAAHEARERE 2
5 RRBZRFEE » %
BEHEMBERRBAER
2 5 SEEEM
SRR ERIREEZ EAT
RS BRI - WIFRY
BENEZRAETIAMNE -

(i) KEHE

W ARER AR BB
HERR M EREREE
HE - AIRBAKELEHE -
FEASEEBKEHER
REEZIFR  AIREEE
R 2 R EHE MR E

SRHHIRA - NEFERE
mX i BEBHEMERERE
EEWRREEEEMESL
Z W R RIERSN -

‘L EE (BREEN)

AEBEE AN Z EMER B ERK
AEEREHEIREBE(R
B iE2(m)) Bk - FEE A GF P
BAZRZRERBERZAFE

FER

c BIVEEZ BN

RiGEHERF RN BRSSO -

145



146

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 55 aiBASN -

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(m) Impairment of assets

(i)  Impairment of investments in equity

securities and other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and
other receivables that are stated at cost or
amortised cost or are classified as available-
for-sale securities are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment.
Obijective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of
the Group about one or more of the following
loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

it becoming probable that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the debtor;
and

a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 32l BEIFR =i A IR A &

2

B TTAIR)

EZEETTBE@#E)

m) BEZRE

(i) REIFZRERAMBER
MR Z IR
VARGZRS ~ B SRR AN D B
AR E B IR 2B &
P SR B M A R IR
KR E— | EHRIERE A
RERBFHEBRETERZ
B BERBERBREAT
—HAZHEERERFTAE
BRI 2 AIBRAE

B A LR ERIK
aSE:

ERAEH PIMTE
THBREANE

BB ANRE O REHKE
S ETEMIEE
48

R miE - EEN
ERBBEHBEAY
BMHEHAELER
T2 &

REBRETAZRT
EREFXRHTURE
{ERERA -




Notes to the Financial Statements

B S ¥ R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA AN - LABITLIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EBESTHBE®E)
(continued)
(m) Impairment of assets (continued) m) BEZRMEE)
(i)  Impairment of investments in equity () BEIBHFRERHMEIR
securities and other receivables (continued) RZRE(E)
If any such evidence exists, any impairment HEAZEBRFE - EAE
loss is determined and recognised as follows: B B 1B 2 R K HE R A
o

For investments in associates accounted
for under the equity method in the
consolidated financial statements (see
note 2(e)), the impairment loss is
measured by comparing the recoverable
amount of the investment with its
carrying amount in accordance note 2(m)
(ii). The impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount in accordance with
note 2(m)(ii).

For unquoted equity securities carried at
cost, the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial asset and the
estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset where the effect of
discounting is material. Impairment
losses for equity securities carried at cost
are not reversed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 55 aiBASN -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)  Impairment of investments in equity

securities and other receivables (continued)

For trade and other receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the financial asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these
financial assets), where the effect of
discounting is material. This assessment
is made collectively where these financial
assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have
not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial
assets which are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective

group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B S ¥ R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Br BB AN - LAETTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(m) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables (continued)
If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the financial asset’s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

— For available-for-sale securities, the
cumulative loss that has been recognised
in the fair value reserve is reclassified to
profit or loss. The amount of the
cumulative loss that is recognised in
profit or loss is the difference between
the acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and current
fair value, less any impairment loss on
that asset previously recognised in profit
or loss.

— Impairment losses recognised in profit or
loss on equity instruments are not
reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of
such assets is recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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B 5 ¥R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 55 aiBASN -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)  Impairment of investments in equity

securities and other receivables (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except
for impairment losses recognised in
respect of trade and bills receivables and
other receivables, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In
this case, the impairment losses for
doubtful debts are recorded using an
allowance account. When the Group is
satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is
written off against trade receivables
directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the
allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in
the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written
off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B S ¥ R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA AN - LABITLIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EBEESHBRE#)
(continued)
(m) Impairment of assets (continued) (m) BEEZREE)
(i) Impairment of other assets iy EBEMEEZRE

Internal and external sources of information AEYSEIY S WP Y hiS =3

are reviewed at the end of each reporting WEHRETRE - ABE

period to identify indications that the following TMIBEEREAEREL

assets may be impaired or, except in the case PR - S BIPTER Z BB

of goodwill, an impairment loss previously EiE(FERMN ZREETR

recognised no longer exists or may have BFEXAIED KR

decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment; — VX BEMERE:

— land use rights; —  hifERE:

— intangible assets; — EREE:

—  goodwill; and — BE: R

— investments in subsidiaries in the — RERBHBARRE
Company’s statement of financial NZRHBARTHRE -
position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s ERERPREBER LS

recoverable amount is estimated. In addition, S BT B EZ AT

for goodwill, the recoverable amount is EHEME - ths) - BEREESR

estimated annually whether or not there is BORENSR - DIRFEGETE

indication of impairment. 227 AW EE(E -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 5B FBAIN -

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (continued)

(if)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

Calculation of the recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect
of cash-generating units are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of the other
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a
pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable) or value in use
(if determinable).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B S ¥ R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Br BB AN - LAETTIIR)
2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EESTHBE®E)
(continued)
(m) Impairment of assets (continued) m) BEZBMEE)
(i) Impairment of other assets (continued) iy HtEEZREE)
—  Reversals of impairment losses —  REEEZ E#E

In respect of assets other than goodwill,
an impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss
in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required
to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months of
the financial year. At the end of the interim
period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial
year (see notes 2(m)(i) and 2(m)(ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim
period in respect of goodwill, available-for-
sale equity securities and unquoted equity
securities carried at cost are not reversed in a
subsequent period. This is the case even if no
loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed
only at the end of the financial year to which
the interim period relates. Consequently, if the
fair value of an available-for-sale equity
security increases in the remainder of the
annual period, or in any other period
subsequently, the increase is recognised in
other comprehensive income and not profit or
loss.
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B 5 ¥R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 55 aiBASN -

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n)

Inventories

(i)

Manufacturing
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out
method and comprise all costs of purchase,
costs of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sales.

When inventories are sold, the carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised as
an expense in the period in which the related
revenue is recognised. The amount of any
write-down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the
period in which the reversal occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B S ¥ R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Br BB AN - LAETTIIR)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(n) Inventories (continued)
(ii) Property development

Inventories in respect of property development
activities are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost and net realisable
values are determined as follows:

—  Property under development for sale
The cost of properties under development
for sale comprises specifically identified
cost, including the acquisition cost of
land, aggregate cost of development,
materials and supplies, wages and other
direct expenses and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling
price less estimated costs of completion
and costs to be incurred in selling the

property.

—  Completed property held for resale

In the case of completed properties
developed by the Group, cost is
determined by apportionment of the total
development costs for that development
project, attributable to the unsold
properties. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price less costs to be
incurred in selling the property.

The cost of completed properties held for
sale comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.
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B 5 ¥R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 5B FBAIN -

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(o)

Joint operation

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the assets, and
obligations for the liabilities, relating to the
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which
exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control.

When a group entity undertakes its activities under
a joint operation, the Group as a joint operator
recognises in relation to its interest in the joint
operation:

— its share of any assets held jointly;

— its share of any liabilities incurred jointly;

— its share of revenue from the sale of the output
by the joint operation; and

— its share of any expenses incurred jointly.

The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses relating to its interest in a
joint operation in accordance with the HKFRSs
applicable to the particular assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation
in which a group entity is a joint operator (such as a
sale or contribution of assets), the Group is
considered to be conducting the transaction with
the other parties to the joint operation, and gains
and losses resulting from the transactions are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of other parties’
interests in the joint operation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 58 #¢RASM -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(p)

(q)

(r

Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and the redemption value being recognised in profit
or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the
effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers.

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value, and are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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B 5 ¥R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 5B FBAIN -

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(s

®

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of
cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the
consolidated cash flow statement.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlement
Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave and
long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period. Employee entitlements to
sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

(i) Pension obligations

Group companies operate a defined
contribution plan under which the Group pays
fixed contributions into a separate entity on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The
Group has no legal or constructive obligations
to pay further contributions if the fund does
not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees
the benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods. The contributions
are recognised as employee benefit expense
when they are due and are not reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees
who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in
the contributions. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash
refund or a reduction in the future payments is
available.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Br SHB AN -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(ty Employee benefits (continued)

(iii) Defined benefit retirement plan — Long

(iv)

service payments

The Group's net obligation in respect of long
service payments to its employees upon the
termination of their employment or retirement
when the employee fulfils certain
circumstances under the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance is the amount of
future benefit that employees have earned in
return for their service in the current and prior
periods.

The obligation is calculated using the
projected unit credit method, discounted to its
present value and reduced by entitlements
accrued under the Group's retirement plans
that are attributable to contributions made by
the Group. The discount rate is the yield at the
end of the reporting period on high quality
corporate bonds which have terms to maturity
approximating the terms of the related liability.
The actuarial gains or losses are credited or
charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income in
the current period.

Other compensations

Other directors’ and employees’
compensations are recorded as a liability and
charged to profit or loss when the Group is
contractually obliged or when there is a past
practice that has created a constructive
obligation and the associated services are
rendered by the employees.
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B 5 ¥R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 5B FBAIN -

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(u)

Share-based payments

The Company operated an equity-settled, share-
based compensation plan, under which the
Company received services from employees in
return for the granting of equity instruments
(options) of the Company. The fair value of the
employee services received in return for the grant of
the options was recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed is determined by reference
to the fair value of the options granted:

— including any market performance conditions;

— excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a
specified time period); and

— excluding the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save).

Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are
expected to vest. The total expense is recognised
over the vesting period, which is the period over
which all of the specified vesting conditions are to
be satisfied. At the end of each reporting period, the
entity revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to vest based on the non-
marketing vesting conditions. It recognises the
impact of the revision to the original estimates, if
any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Br SHB AN -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(u)

(v)

Share-based payments (continued)

The cash received for the shares issued when the
options are exercised is credited to share capital
(nominal value) and share premium, net of any
directly attributable transaction costs.

The grant by the Company of options over its equity
instruments to employees of a subsidiary in the
Group is treated as a capital contribution. The fair
value of employee services received, measured by
reference to the grant date fair value, is recognised
over the vesting period as an increase to investment
in the subsidiary, with a corresponding credit to

equity.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.
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B 5 ¥R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 5B FBAIN -

2

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 3z i) B2 42

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(v)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as the
expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible for
tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the
case of taxable differences, the group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Br SHB AN -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(v)

Income tax (continued)

Where investment properties are carried at their fair
values in accordance with the accounting policy set
out in note 2(h), the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured using the tax rates that
would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying
value at the reporting date unless the property is
depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in the property
over time, rather than through sale. In all other
cases, the amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of
the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Q B 5 ¥R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B a:BASN - SUETLEIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EESHBEER®)
(continued)
(v) Income tax (continued) ) FiiE® (&)
Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and AREATI A4S 64 - BRIE R B 45 ph B
movements therein, are presented separately from MEZEBHHRIIER TEEME
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are i o ERARRIXAEERHES
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax AR TN A AARERIAE EREA
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company HRERE  RFLFRFE T
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set BEIMEM - FEUARBRIBEE
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities HEAHHIARE - RIAELER
and the following additional conditions are met: BEERHEEHRIRRE
— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, — MAHBBEEERAEM
the Company or the Group intends either to = ARAISEAEEEIA
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and FREEARKEEEREA
settle the liability simultaneously; or f& - SBIR & A AN IR (E
BE: %
— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, — WMECEHBEEERAEM
if they relate to income taxes levied by the = e BRI R A
same taxation authority on either: NHEHA—EERAA U P
BHAER :
— the same taxable entity; or — [R—RBEER X
— different taxable entities, which, in each — T RRHMERE HA
future period in which significant AR ATEESKA
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or Yom e E 8 2 R AT
assets are expected to be settled or MBEBEXEEZS
recovered, intend to realise the current BRI A - BT EI DA F R
tax assets and settle the current tax BEXREMEEE N
liabilities on a net basis or realise and AEPHRIEERE A
settle simultaneously. REEVAREESR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Br SHB AN -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(w) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. Where the Group
issues a financial guarantee, the fair value of
the guarantee (being the transaction price,
unless the fair value can otherwise be reliably
estimated) is initially recognised as deferred
income within trade and other payables.
Where consideration is received or receivable
for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance
with the Group's policies applicable to that
category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in profit or
loss on initial recognition of any deferred
income. The amount of the guarantee initially
recognised as deferred income is amortised in
profit or loss over the term of the guarantee as
income from financial guarantees issued. In
addition, provisions are recognised in
accordance with note 2(w)(ii) if and when (i) it
becomes probable that the holder of the
guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim on
the Group is expected to exceed the amount
currently carried in trade and other payables
in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation.
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B 5 ¥R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 5B FBAIN -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(w) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (continued)

(ii) Other provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
or the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

(x) Revenue recognition
Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale of
goods and services in the ordinary course of the
Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of returns
and discounts and after eliminating sales within the
Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity
and specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group’s activities as described below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Br SHB AN -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(x) Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

(if)

(iii)

Sales of goods

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised
when the products are delivered to the
customer, the customer has accepted the
products and the related risks and rewards of
ownership and collectability of the related
receivables is reasonably assured.

Advance payments received from customers
prior to delivery of goods are recorded as
receipts in advance.

Service income

Revenue from the provision of catering
services is recognised when the service is
rendered.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the use of the leased asset.

Sale of properties

Revenue arising from the sale of properties
held for sale is recognised upon the later of the
signing of the sale and purchase agreement
and the completion of the properties, which is
taken to be the point in time when the risks
and rewards of ownership of the property have
passed to the buyer.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.
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B 5 ¥R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(y)

Translation of foreign currencies

(i)

(if)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions during the year
are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the
fair value was measured.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 58 #¢RASM -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(y) Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

(if)

Transactions and balances (continued)

The results of operations with functional
currency other than Hong Kong dollars are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position
items are translated into Hong Kong dollar at
the closing foreign exchange rates at the end
of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the translation reserve.
Goodwill is translated at the foreign exchange
rate that applied at the date of acquisition of
the operation outside Hong Kong.

On disposal of an operation with functional
currency other than Hong Kong dollars, the
cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to that operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when
the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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B 5 ¥R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 55 aiBASN -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(2)

(aa)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the
cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Related parties
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;

or

(iii) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or the Group’s

parent.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 58 #¢RASM -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(aa) Related parties (continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary
is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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B 5 ¥R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(aa)

(ab)

Related parties (continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (continued)

(viii) The entity, or any member of a Group of
which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.
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B S ¥ R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA AN - LABITLIIR)
2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EBEEESHBE®E)
(continued)
(ac) Discontinued operations (ac) DRILBEE

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group’s business, the operations and cash flows of
which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of
the Group and which represents a separate major
line of business or geographical area of operations,
or is part of a single coordinated plan to dispose of
a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired
exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs
upon disposal or when the operation meets the
criteria to be classified as held for sale, if earlier. It
also occurs if the operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued
operations, a single amount is presented on the face
of the statement of profit or loss, which comprises:

— the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

— the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or
on the disposal, of the assets or disposal
group(s) constituting the discontinued
operation.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 5B FBAIN -

3

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 3z i) B2 42

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(@)

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: currency risk, interest rate risk, credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Group’s
Finance and Accounting department (“Group F&A”)
under policies approved by the Board of Directors.
Group F&A identifies, evaluates and mitigates
financial risks in close co-operation with the
Group’s operating units. The Board is responsible
for overall risk management which covers currency
risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative
financial instruments and cash management.

(i)  Currency risk

The Group operates primarily in Hong Kong
and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
and most of its business transactions, assets
and liabilities are denominated in HK$, United
States dollars (“US$”) and Renminbi (“RMB”).
Currency risk arises from commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities
and net investments in foreign operations that
are denominated in a currency that is not the
entity’s functional currency. As HK$ are
pegged against US$, management considers
that the Group is mainly exposed to foreign
currency risk with respect to Renminbi.
Management will continue to monitor foreign
exchange exposure and will take measures to
minimise the currency translation risk. The
conversion rate of Renminbi to foreign
currencies is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC Government.
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B S ¥ R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA AN - LABITLIIR)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 3 B¥ERREEREMIAEAF

VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS B(#&)

(continued)

(@) Financial risk factors (continued) (@ HBBEERBREXEE)

(i)  Currency risk (continued) (i) HNERB(E)

The following table details the currency TRAJAEEAREER
portfolio of the Group’s monetary assets/ M BB AN B R EE
(liabilities) denominated in a currency other Ny EEYEE ()2
than the functional currency of the entity to EHESE - RIRAE - UL
which they relate. For presentation purposes, HE 2 S FEARE BIRENE
the amounts of the portfolio are expressed in MERH 4 - WA ITTIIR ¢

HKS, translated using the spot rate at the end
of the reporting period:

At 31 March 2018

ZE-N\§=ZB=+-H
Carrying
value HK$ US$ RMB Others
IREE BT EY AR Hith
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Mt T T T T Tr

Trade and bills EUPES A

receivable and RRK

other receivables H fth FEUIR 5K 14 442,675 2,910 379,547 60,218 -
Available-for-sale AREESR

financial assets EE 15 18,916 - 18,916 - -
Cash and bank Be MRITER

deposits 18 272,153 92,852 140,913 37,499 889
Trade payables B P ERIR 22 (208,737)  (36,419) (135,527)  (36,423) (368)
Accruals and other [EETBRAK

payables HibEAIRS 22 (345,886)  (61,837)  (1,249) (282,800) -
Bank borrowings RITIEE 24 (625,902) (625,902) = - -
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B 5 ¥R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B a:BASN - SUETLEIR)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 3 B¥RREEREMIAEAF

VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS B#E)

(continued)

(@) Financial risk factors (continued) (@ BBEBREEE)
(i)  Currency risk (continued) (i) HNERBR(E)

At 31 March 2017

176

—T—+F=A=1—H
Carrying
value HK$ Us$ RMB Others
REE BT Er ARE Hith
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
(i3 T T T T T
Trade and bills BHREEBEK
receivable and [
other receivables H th YRR 14 372,099 1,857 322,455 42,274 5,513
Available-for-sale Rt ESH
financial assets BE 15 18,597 303 18,294 - -
Cash and bank Be RFTFR
deposits 18 215,363 35,8610 136,768 41,053 1,732
Trade payables B SRR 22 (230309)  (54,594) (140,886)  (33,450)  (1,379)
Accruals and other FErERAR
payables E AR IR 3 22 (315565  (45,607)  (9229) (256,624)  (4,105)
Obligations under BEME TAE
finance leases 23 (128) - - - (128)
Bank borrowings RITEE 24 (539,800) (539,800) - - -

At 31 March 2018, if HK$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the RMB with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit

for the year and retained earnings would have
decreased/increased approximately $753,000
(2017: $63,000 decreased/increased), mainly
as a result of the net foreign exchange gains/

losses on translation of Renminbi-denominated
trade and other receivables, cash and bank
deposits and trade and other payables.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 58 #¢RASM -

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

(@

Financial risk factors (continued)

(i)

(if)

Currency risk (continued)

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit
after tax (and retained profits) and other
components of equity that would arise
assuming that the change in foreign exchange
rate of HK$ against the RMB had occurred at
the end of the reporting period and had been
applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk, including
inter-company payables and receivables with
the Group which are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currencies
of the lender or the borrower. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2017.

Interest rate risk

Monetary assets/liabilities acquired at variable
rates and at fixed rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk and fair value
interest rate risk respectively. The Group’s
interest rate risk arises from bank borrowings
and bank deposits which are primarily issued
at variable rates.

3
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¢ B 5 ¥R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B a:BASN - SUETLEIR)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 3 B¥ERREEREMIAEAF

VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS =XE=))
(continued)
(@) Financial risk factors (continued) (@ BBRBREEE)
(ii) Interest rate risk (continued) (i) F=mE(E)
The following table details the interest rate TRHAINNREHRAEE
profile of the Group interest-bearing assets and HEREERABGBNXZH
liabilities at the end of the reporting period: o
At 31 March 2018 At 31 March 2017
—E-N\FZA=t+-HBZF—tF=RA=+—H
Effective Effective
interest interest
Note rate % $'000 rate % $'000
BERF= ERA =
lik3 % T % T
Fixed rate interest-bearing B ERMR% S
assets/(liabilities): EE/(8f#):
Time deposits EEES 18 1.38% 1,342 2.20% 9,226
Obligations under BERE TAE
finance leases 23 = = 4.98% (128)
Variable rate interest- FBHAXRFE
bearing assets/(liabilities): EE/(8f):
Cash and bank deposits RITER 0.01% 269,134 0.01% 204,603
Bank borrowings RITEE 24 3.24%  (625902)  2.82%  (539,800)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Br SHB AN -

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

(@)

Financial risk factors (continued)

(if)

Interest rate risk (continued)

At 31 March 2018, with all other variables
held constant, if the interest rate had
increased/decreased by 50 basis points, the
corresponding increase/decrease in interest
expenses on bank borrowings and interest
income from bank deposits at variable rates
will result in a net decrease/increase in the
Group’s post-tax profit by approximately
$1,267,000/$2,586,000 (2017: decrease/
increase by $1,231,000/$2,233,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit
after tax (and retained profits) and other
components of equity that would arise
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the end of the reporting period
and had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to fair value interest rate
risk. In respect of the exposure to cash flow
interest rate risk arising from floating rate non-
derivative instruments held by the Group at
the end of the reporting period, the impact on
the Group’s profit after tax (and retained
profits) and other components of equity is
estimated as an annualised impact on interest
expense or income of such a change in interest
rates. The analysis is performed on the same
basis for 2017.

3
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 5B FBAIN -

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

(@

Financial risk factors (continued)

(iii)

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. The
Group’s credit risk mainly arises from financial
assets and deposits with banks and financial
institutions, as well as credit exposures to
customers, including outstanding trade and
other receivables. For banks and financial
institutions, only independent parties with
high credit rating are accepted.

Customers are assessed and rated based on
their credit quality, taking into account of their
financial position, repayment history and other
factors. The Group has policies in place to
ensure that sales are made to customers with
satisfactory credit history. It performs periodic
credit evaluations/reviews of its customers.
Other receivables are assessed by reference to
the historical information on the default rates
of the counter parties. Individual risk limits are
set by management and the utilisation of credit
limits is regularly monitored. No credit limit
was exceeded during the year,
management does not expect any significant
losses from non-performance by these relevant
parties.

and

There is a concentration of credit risk in
respect of trade and bills receivable as the
Group’s sales are made primarily to a few key
customers. At 31 March 2018, the trade and
bills receivable from five largest customers
accounted for approximately 85% (2017:
89%) of the total trade and bills receivable.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 58 #¢RASM -

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

(@

Financial risk factors (continued)

(iii)

Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk on cash at banks is limited
because the counterparties are banks with
high credit ratings assigned by international
credit rating agencies. Transactions in relation
to derivative financial instruments, if any, are
only carried out with financial institutions of
high reputation. The Group has policies that
limit the amount of credit exposure to any one
financial institution.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and the availability
of funding through an adequate amount of
credit facilities. The Group aims to maintain
flexibility in funding by keeping credit lines
available at all times.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities classified into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at
the end of the reporting period to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within
twelve months equal their carrying balances as
the impact of discounting is not significant.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 3 B¥ERREEREMIAEAF

VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS B#E)
(continued)
(@ Financial risk factors (continued) @ HBEBEEE)

(iv) Liquidity risk (continued) (ivy RBELRAMR(E)

182

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 32l BEIFR =i A IR A &

Between Between
On Less than 1 and 2 and Over
demand 1year  2vyears  5years 5 years
RERX PR—F -—-ZRMF ZEZEF IZFUL
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Fr Fr Tr Fr Fr
At 31 March 2018 R-ZB-N\F
=A=t—H
Trade payables B Z KRR - 208,737 - - -
Accruals and other EETER R
payables Hoh FE IR X - 268,145 - - -
Bank borrowings RITEE - 154,056 319,922 190,983 =
- 630,938 319,922 190,983 -
Between  Between
On  Less than 1 and 2 and Over
demand 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years
RER PR—F —EWMF ZERF RFUEL
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
At 31 March 2017 RZZ—+4F
=RA=+—H
Trade payables B S REUIRIR - 230,309 - - -
Accruals and other T ER R
payables B & R X ~ 255,498 - - -
Obligations under RMEME T RE
finance leases - 23 23 69 37
Bank borrowings RITEE - 62,959 115,995 391,261 -
- 548,789 116,018 391,330 37
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

(b)

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern in order to provide returns for equity
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and
to maintain an optimal capital structure.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the net gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by
total capital. Net debt is calculated as total bank
borrowings and obligations under finance leases
less cash and bank deposits. Total capital is
calculated as the total equity as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group’s strategy, which is unchanged from
prior year, is to maintain an acceptable net gearing
ratio. The net gearing ratios at 31 March 2018 and
2017 are as follows:

3

B S ¥ R B

A TTEIR)

MBEREEREMIAQYF
B

(b)

ELRABEE
AEEESERZ BBRRRER
SERFELEEARBELEL
RS RERFAAWKER
7] By 5% B8 EL b 7 25 40 A & 2 A
@ WHBREZENER -

REFIABRENER  ~&E
SERBINTRERZEE &
BTBRZIBRA - TR
EEEARIKET °

HEERNEMAE - AEEF
RFRITIEEL REREEAR -
S RIRRF B E R AR ER
FHEREEBRARITRERR
R EHE TEEREARS R
THER BEARERBED
A MBBARRAA) -

AEBzREAEFAE - AR
AR AIER ZFRITEEL
Ko R_F-N\FER-F—+F
ZA=T—BZFRTEELE
LUl

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—tF

$’000 $'000

Fr Tt

Total bank borrowings IRITHREERE 625,902 539,800
Obligations under finance leases BhEFHE TN EE = 128
Less: Cash and bank deposits W IRE MIBITER (272,153) (215,363)
Net borrowings FEE 353,749 324,565
Total equity T BE 1,188,282 1,076,753
Net gearing ratio SFIRITEE X 30% 30%
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

(o

Fair value estimation

The carrying value less impairment provision for
trade and bills receivable and trade payables are a
reasonable approximation of their fair values. The
fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure
purposes is estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market interest
rate that is available to the Group for similar
financial instruments.

The table below analyses financial instruments
carried at fair value, by valuation method. The
different levels have been defined as follows:

— Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1).

— Inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level
2).

— Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (Level 3).

The Group has a team headed by the Assistant
Accounting Director performing valuations for the
insurance contracts which are categorised into
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. A valuation
report with analysis of changes in fair value
measurement is prepared by the team at each
interim and annual reporting date, and is reviewed
and approved by the Chief Financial Officer.
Discussion of the valuation process and results with
the Chief Financial Officer is held twice a year, to
coincide with the reporting dates.

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 32l BEIFR =i A IR A &

3
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 3
VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)
(¢) Fair value estimation (continued)
The following table presents the Group's financial
assets that are measured at fair value on a recurring

MBEREEREMIAQYF
B

(0

AFEE ()
N=F—N\EZA=+—H &
EEERMERATEIES

A —
N —

basis at 31 March 2018: W eMEERT :
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
$’000 $'000
Fr Tt
Assets: BE:
Level 3 F=
— Key management insurance —EZERERREN
contracts (note 15) (f¥zE15) 18,916 18,294
18,916 18,294

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices at
the reporting date. A market is regarded as active if
quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group,
pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those
prices represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The
quoted market price used for financial assets held
by the Group is the current bid price. These
instruments are included in Level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the
counter derivatives) is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data where
it is available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required
to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in Level 2.

EEEMSEEzEMTAZA
FERE®RS B 2™5ERET
IR o 1 ¥R (B 7] BDEE K E BRAE 28 5
R X8 B2 ZAA
T EERBEIEERER
B MEEFREKREIFRS
AEBETZCERRERTSERS
B SRR AER - ARE
RAZEMEEZMEBRERE
BETHRE WETABRES
_ o

SAEERRMEEREZERTA
(BIasEIMTETR) 2 2 FEF
REEXNETE - HEXNEE
MARBEMSERE(WE) &
EVIKBEER T EME o fHat
BT AEZRAFEMRTZM
BEAREA/AEREE - Al
ERTAIIAE_E -
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 3 B¥ERREEREMIAEAF

VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS B
(continued)
(c) Fair value estimation (continued) () 2DFEMLEH(E)
If one or more of the significant inputs is not based W—IEkZIREBABIEL IFRE
on observable market data, the instrument is TERTSEE  BZem T A
included in Level 3. FINE=JE -
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial AAEESR T A HEMER
instruments include: e
— Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for — RERTAZMISHREHR
similar instruments. SEMIE
—  The fair value of structured foreign exchange — REBINEEHERZ AT
forward products is determined using Monte BB FEEREE
Carlo simulation, taking into account of E o EERIABRE NS
observable market parameters such as forward 280 PIMNBERAZEH
exchange rates, volatility and interest rates at PEE 2 R ME S A K o

the reporting date.

—  Other techniques, such as discounted cash —  HAbRMr - PIRRRIRE R
flow analysis including dividend growth EDHN BREBREERE
model, are used to determine fair value for the A AUEEE#RE/MTA
remaining financial instruments. ZRNFE -

There were no transfers of financial assets/liabilities F— FHE-ERAFEER

between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 fair value DEzETESREE AFEZ

hierarchy classifications. BAER -

] 86 KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 32l BEIFR =i A IR A &
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 3 BB EREERESBIALQT
VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS =XE=))
(continued)
(c) Fair value estimation (continued) (0 AFREMH(E
Information about Level 3 fair value BEHEFE=EBALEFTEER
measurements
Significant
unobservable
Valuation techniques inputs Range Weighted average
fEER FUHEERYE EE ik RS 2E |
Key management Discounted cash flow Discount rate 2.0% —2.65% 2.22%
insurance contracts model (2017:2.0% - 2.65%) (2017:2.22%)
EZRERERRAYN HRREREA BRE 2.0% - 2.65% 2.22%
(Z2—+%F: (Z2—+F:
2.0% - 2.65%) 2.22%)

The fair value of insurance contracts is determined
using the discounted cash flow model. The duration
of the cash flows and the specific timing of inflows
and outflows are determined by conditions in
accordance with the terms of the respective
insurance contracts. The periodic cash flow is
estimated as gross redemption value and interest
income less surrender charges. The series of
periodic net income for the contracting periods is
then discounted. The fair value measurement is
negatively correlated to the discount rate. As at 31
March 2018, it is estimated that with all other
variables held constant, a decrease/increase in
discount rate by 1% would have increased/
decreased the Group’s other comprehensive income
by $2,829,000 (2017: $2,916,000)

REREH 2N HETIRARERR
EREFEE - HEREZHIR
PARR A B th 2 5 7 B B 0 AR
BEERBRAMNIGRETE - EH
Ren&NhsTRaELEEK
MEBWARRRER - & #HE
Z—BHBFEHFWATI T AN
& AP EREEMRERTIRA
BE- R T N\F=A=+—

EZERT » BRIR KR A /180
1% Em, mORNER 2 HM
2HEIA 2,829,000 (—ZF—+
% 12,916,000 7T) °
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 3 B¥ERREEREMIAEAF

VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BH(#&)
(continued)
(c) Fair value estimation (continued) () 2DFEMLEH(E)
Information about Level 3 fair value ERFE=BAFEFEEN(EZ)
measurements (continued)
The movement during the period in the balance of HANZEE=RATEFEZ#
these Level 3 fair value measurements are as BREFHIOT -
follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —T—+F
$000 $'000
Fr Tt
Key management insurance EEERERBREA
contracts
Beginning of the year FH) 18,294 17,889
Interest income recognised PHE SRR Z MBUA
in profit or loss 399 396
Net unrealised gain recognised FRANEMEEWATER
in other comprehensive ZFAREH W
income during the year 223 9
End of the year FK 18,916 18,294
There were no gains or losses for the years included RZB-NEFR_ZE—tF=H
in profit or loss for these assets held at 31 March =T BFAEELRA WE
2018 and 2017. HEBEBERNEBREA -

‘] 88 KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 32l BEIFR =i A IR A &
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Br SHB AN -

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates may be
different from the actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in future years are discussed below.

(@ Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation for its property,
plant and equipment. The estimates are based on
the historical experience of the actual economic
lives of property, plant and equipment of similar
nature and functions. Actual economic lives may
differ from estimated useful lives. Management will
adjust the depreciation where the useful lives are
estimated to be different from the previous
estimates. It will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold. Periodic reviews could result in
a change in depreciable lives and therefore
depreciation expense in future periods.

4

B S ¥ R B

BAFB TSR )
SR HE R A5

et RABRBBELERIEMRAER
(BREBBRIBERTHEHSREEF2
BIETRA) WEFEEITAS o

REBHRRIEL A RBEK - A5

AT ROEEERERER -
RAMEERRREECEERAE
ZIREEELERARE G RRE
FIERMAT o

@ WX BERREB2IERFH
AEEEEEREDE  BEK
RSB (A AT A A B S A8 RE
FEER - AFRREBEL
BAMRMEE RINEEZWME - B
FERhEEZERERFHET
BERR 2 EBF R e R 2
REMEEE - BT ZARSF
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4 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(b)

(o

(d

Impairment of receivables

The Group makes allowance for impairment of
receivables based on an assessment of the
recoverability of the receivables. Allowance for
impairment is applied to receivables where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be collectible. The identification
of impairment of receivables requires the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the expectations
are different from the original estimates, such
differences will impact the carrying value of
receivables and the impairment loss recognised.

Write-down of inventories

Inventories are written down to the net realisable
value based on an assessment of the realisability of
inventories. Write-downs on inventories are
recorded where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be realised. The
identification of write-downs requires the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference
will impact the carrying value and write-downs of
inventories.

Income taxes and other regulatory provisions

The Group is subject to income tax and other
regulatory provisions in various jurisdictions. There
are transactions for which the ultimate
determination of such provisions is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final
outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax, deferred tax
and other regulatory provisions in the period in
which such determination is made.

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 32l BEIFR =i A IR A &
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4 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(e)

Valuation of properties under development for sale
The net realisable value of properties under
development are determined by estimating the fair
value of such properties as if they were completed
in accordance with the relevant development plan
and then deducting from that amount the estimated
costs to complete the construction, financing costs
and a reasonable profit margin. The valuation
require judgement as to the anticipated sale prices
by reference to recent sale transactions in nearby
locations, rate of new property sales, marketing
costs and the expected costs to completion of
properties, the legal and regulatory framework and
general market conditions. The Group's estimates
may be inaccurate and estimates may need to be
adjusted in later periods.

B S ¥ R B

A TTEIR)

4 ErtHERMEE )

(e)

hERMEZGE

BRPYEZAIERFETBE
EAZFEVWEZ X FEMEE -
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A SRR REERB R —RT
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5

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 3z i) B2 42

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group’s chief operating decision-maker reviews the
Group’s internal reports periodically in order to assess
performance and allocate resources. Management has
determined the operating segments based on these
reports.

The Group is organised on a worldwide basis into three
(2017: four) major operating segments. They are (i) metal
and plastic business; (ii) electronic manufacturing
services business; and (iii) real estate business. Customer
and services business was formerly a major operating
segment until it was disposed of to a related party during
the year ended 31 March 2018 (note 35).

Management considers the business from both a
geographic and products and services perspective. From
a products and services perspective, management
assesses the performance of metal and plastic business,
electronic manufacturing services business, real estate
business and discontinued operations. In addition, there
is further evaluation on a geographic basis (Japan, Hong
Kong, the PRC, Asia (excluding Japan, Hong Kong and
the PRC), North America and Western Europe).
Management assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on operating profit. Segment information
provided to management for decision making is
measured in a manner consistent with that in the
financial statements.

A measurement of segment assets and liabilities is not
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management and accordingly, no segment assets or
liabilities information is presented.

BAERAT

5

AETTIIR)

/\&Biﬁd:
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5 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 5 ZEE|EE)
The segment results for the year ended 31 March 2018 BHE_Z-N\F=ZRA=1+—BILFE
are as follows: ZOEBEEIAT ¢
2018
—E2-N\F
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations Total
BAL
RESEER ReEy At
Electronic
Metal and - manufacturing
plastic services  Real estate
business business business Others Sub-total
ik BETEE EibE
£% RIEH % Hitr et
$000 $'000 $000 $000 $'000 $000 $000
Fr i i Fr i Fr Fr
Segment revenue 2HRA
Reportable segment revenue RN L UN 1,628,292 1,294,778 48,540 419 2,972,029 25,89 2,997,925
Inter-segment revenue DEERA (52,149) = S = (52,149) = (52,149)
1,576,143 1,294,778 48,540 419 2,919,880 25,896 2,945,776

Revenue among continuing and BERELELEE

discontinued operations ES15TON (1,170) = = = (1,170) (242) (1,412)
Revenue from external customers REMPEEZWA 1574973 1,294,778 48,540 419 2,918,710 25,654 2,944,364
Gross profit/(loss) IH/ (8 320,279 83,505 18,778 24 422,786 (24,191) 398,595
Distribution and selling expenses ~ H#ERHEBAR

and general and administrative —-RRTBER

expenses (118,015) (29,599) (18,817) (131) (166,562) (10,625) (177,187)
Other income/gains and (losses) £ #bA /s (8578) 3,334 928 1,626 1 5,889 92) 5,797
Net valuation gain on RENELERGFE

investment properties - - 2,078 - 2,078 - 2,078
Operating profit/loss) FEEN/ (B8 205,598 54,834 3,665 94 264,191 (34,908) 229,283
Operating profit/(loss) includes: Benn/ (R ek
Depreciation E 45,417 3,345 357 = 49,119 5,871 54,990
Amortisation of land use rights TR EE 288 64 120 - 472 - 472
Amortisation of intangible assets BVEE BY 1,293 = = = 1,293 2,400 3,693
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5 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 5 SEWE )
The segment results for the year ended 31 March 2017 BHE_ZT—+F=RA=1+—BHILFE
are as follows: TOEBEENT
2017 (Restated)

“E2—LE(EE)

Discontinued

Continuing operations operations Total
BRLE
BREEEY mexn At
Electronic
Metal and - manufacturing
plastic services  Real estate
business business business Others Sub-total

AR¥E  ETEX FiE
% RIXH % Efth 1t
§/000 §/000 §'000 §/000 §000 $'000 §/000
T Tr T T Tr T Tn

Segment revenue AHEA
Reportable segment revenue DA 1,488,874 1,256,973 4,186 1,636 2,751,669 17,408 2,769,077
Inter-segment revenue AEBEA (52,031) - - - (52,031) - (52,031)
1,436,843 1,256,973 4,186 1,636 2,699,638 17,408 2,717,046

Revenue among continuingand ~ FERBAIHLE

discontinued operations BTN (945) - - - (945) (242) (1,187)
Revenue from external customers ~ REMEIEF 2 U A 1,435,898 1,256,973 4,186 1,636 2,698,693 17,166 2,715,859
Gross profit/(loss) 7/ (£88) 282,716 81,239 3,231 1,018 368,204 (13,528) 354,676
Distribution and selling expenses DR IEEBH R

and general and administrative  —fRRATEER

expenses (114,831) (32,130) (3,890) (1,975)  (152,826) (7,811)  (160,637)
Other income/gains and (losses) ~ EUtA /R (B 1,994 795 951 7) 3,733 (6) 3,727
Net valuation gain on RENEEERRFE

investment properties - - 1,358 - 1,358 - 1,358
Operating profit/(loss) meEn/ (58) 169,879 49,904 1,650 (964) 220,469 (21,345 199,124
Operating profit/(loss) includes: &7 /(55#8) &4 :
Depreciation e 51,190 3,089 145 - 54,424 3,764 58,188
Amortisation of land use rights 3 P 2 B 281 71 120 - 472 - 472
Amortisation of intangible assets &/ AE 2 #H 1,257 - - - 1,257 2,400 3,657
Write-cdown of obsolete and RE R EFEHA

slow-moving inventories 8,382 1,491 - - 9,873 - 9,873
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SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

A reconciliation of operating profit to profit before

taxation is provided as follows:

B S ¥ R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA AN - LABITLIIR)

DEBERE ()
SRS M R =R T AT

wmAEAT

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
$’000 $'000
Fx T
(Restated)
(BE5)
Operating profit from continuing REFEREER 2
operations Fegpngl 264,191 220,469
Finance income B R U A 1,542 1,058
Finance costs B 78 Rk 2N (14,883) (11,579)
Share of profits of associates JEAGHE & R 7 E A 872 247
Profit before taxation from REFELEER
continuing operations B 7 A v A 251,722 210,195
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¢ B 5 ¥R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B a:BASN - SUETLEIR)

5 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 5 SEWE )

The following table sets out information about the TNRINF () A EE 2 WA K (i) AN E
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue and (ii) 2T RRE - ME - BB REE -
the Group’s land use rights, property, plant and REME BREERNRBERTZ
equipment, investment properties, intangible assets and BRE(THEEIFERBDEE ] AEDRZ
investments in associates (“specified non-current assets”). B WAFEERERENNER
The geographical location of revenue is based on the ik RSB ERR DR - $8E
country in which the final destination of shipment is RBEEMEHEZRS WAL
located or services are provided. The geographical WM MR BB M RERIRE
location of the specified non-current assets is based on MEDRBEZEEAT ZFH0E
the physical location of the asset, in the case of land use EREBVEENMNBERATNREIR
rights, property, plant and equipment, investment BHEHM DAL E 2 T

properties and the location of the operations to which
they are allocated, in the case of intangible assets and
investments in associates.

The Group’s revenue Specified
(Continuing operations) non-current assets
EEEZ WA
(FFEKEER) EEFRRDEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\F “F—+F “F-N\F “TLF
$000 $'000 $000 $'000
Fr Tt Fr Tt
(Restated)
(BE&7)
Hong Kong B8 (FriEsh)

(place of domicile) 847,080 761,035 41,216 69,265
Japan AR 366,379 260,004 = -
The PRC H 811,184 745,701 786,760 724,125
Asia (excluding Japan, DM (PBREAR

Hong Kong and HENTE)

the PRC) 78,942 183,192 - 3,358
North America JEEM 437,687 351,899 22 10
Western Europe FaER 378,608 397,807 - -
Sub-total /NF 2,072,800 1,938,603 786,782 727,493

2,919,880 2,699,638 827,998 796,758
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B S ¥ R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA AN - LABITLIIR)
SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 5 ZEERE ()
The Group’s customer base includes three (2017: three) AEEAE=R(ZF—tHF: =ZR)F
customers with whom transactions have exceeded 10% FRRIEBBREBRAZ10% °
of the Group’s revenue. For the year ended 31 March BE_T-/\F=A=1+—HILFE -
2018, the total revenue from sales of merchandise in the REEERSBRBREBLREFHEER
metal and plastic business and electronic manufacturing ITEBzEmBA (BERRAEEMR
services business, including sales to entities which are MEHNZEEF HRAEG 2B H
known to the group to be under common control with ERH) A AE2,414,473,000 0 (ZF—+
these customers, amounted to approximately % :2,253,045,0007T ) * WA A B %
$2,414,473,000 (2017: $2,253,045,000) and arose in all WERZFAEMIBREES - B%E
geographical regions in which the businesses are active. %UEFIZT*EJ—L SHFBERIRN
Details of concentrations of credit risk arising from these B EE 3 (a) i)
customers are set out in note 3(a)(iii).
The Group’s sales are made primarily to a few key AEBZHETZRHABEBRER
customers. For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Mk -HE2E_ZT—NF=ZA=1+—8H
revenue derived from five largest customers accounted IFFE  WARKBEREFPIEAEE
for approximately 91% (2017: 93%) of the Group’s total BUALIN% (ZF—EF : 93%) ©
revenue.
LAND USE RIGHTS 6 TR
2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—LF
$’000 $’000
Fr TT
Net book amount at the beginning FYREFE
of the year 17,135 17,607
Amortisation charged to cost of IR AR
revenue (472) (472)
Net book amount at the end FIRIREDFE
of the year 16,663 17,135
Cost X A% 23,614 23,614
Accumulated amortisation ERg i (6,951) (6,479)
Net book amount at the end FIRREFE
of the year 16,663 17,135

The land use rights located in the PRC are held under
lease terms of 50 years expiring in April 2043 to October
2055.

KRBzt ERENRESHA+
FAEZ_TN=FMAE_THA
FHALL) 2 LMEREMTE -
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B 5 ¥R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B a:BASN - SUETLEIR)

7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7 WE- - BERRE

Furniture and

Machinery computer equipment

L E FREBERR
Fixtures and

Leasehold Construction-  leasehold Tools and
land  Buildings in-progress improvement  Owned Leased  equipment ~ Owned Leased Total

RER

ARt B EEIE DK BA BE IERRE B BE af
000 §000  $000 000 $000  §000  §000 000 F000  $000
iR iR tn i ipr i i i i i

Cost AE:
A1 April 2017 E-+EMA-B 1665 328704 S 98 48547 - 3t 8826 11,033,770
Additions AE - 2,144 24 8,845 34,026 - 12,007 22,924 - 79,970
Disposals e = = . G40)  (60397) SoM) (1,400 S 80
Exchange adjustments gt = = (51) 572 29,859 = 3421 5,360 (18) 39,143
Transfer b = 362 (362) = = = = = = =
Discontinued operations (Note 33) 24 HE& %5 (H15£35) - - - (19877) - - (5488 (25767) (124)  (51,256)
At31 March 2018 ZE-\E=R=1-A 1,663 331,210 192 86,778 488,762 - 38,819 89,373 - 1,036,797
Accumulated depreciation, ~ B3tiTE - BERHE

amortisation and impairment %8 :

losses:
At1 April 2017 “E-tEmA-A 845 59,107 - 50,682 387,504 - 21,468 67,133 14 594753
Charge for the year ERHB 7 69 -9 B o3 9419 7 5499
Written back on disposals HEE o > > (447)  (60,496) = 272 (1,287) - (64502
Exchange adjustments HhRE - - - 3B 15,131 - 1,866 4,059 @ 2412
Discontinued operations (Note 35) 248 T E %4 (H735) - - - (8,845) - - (2,666)  (7,512) (39 (19,002)
At31 March 2018 -5-N\E=f=1-A 72 66021 o 5933 368,084 S 70 - 5e751
Net hook value: REFE:
At31 March 2018 E-/\E=F=+-8 91 265189 19 7455 10678 S0 17560 - 449206
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 58 #¢RASM -

7  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

B S ¥ R B

7 WX BERREE)

A TTEIR)

(continued)
Funiture and
Machinery computer equipment
e GRRERRE
Fixtures and
Leasehold Construction-  leasehold Tools and
land  Buildings in-progress improvement  Owned Leased ~ equipment  Owned Leased Total
4t
RER
BELH BF HEIR hERE B4 BE IARRE B4 i S
$000 $000 $'000 $'000 §'000 §000 §000 §1000 §1000 §000
T T T T T T T T T e
Cost: BA:
At1 April 2016 Z5-7EmA-A 1663 326,704 289 85,012 464902 23,650 26,713 83,916 - 1015449
Additions HE - - 292 12,584 32,804 - 7,761 9,726 142 63,369
Disposals ij - - - (28 22751) - (1,981) (2,430 - (27,190)
Exchange adjustments REE - - - (390 (13,191) - (1,327) 2,950) - (17,858)
Transfer E - - - - 23,650 (23,650) - - - -
At31 March 2017 ZE-tE=A=1-A 1663 328,704 581 97,778 485474 - 31,166 86,262 142 1,033,770
Accumulated depreciation,  EtTE - #ERHE
amortisation and impairment %5 -
losses:
At April 2016 “5-EMA-A 817 52,236 - 50367 372,447 13,270 22,359 03,443 - 574939
Charge for the year EEMR 28 6,671 - 8,551 27,799 4,618 2,001 8,300 14 56,188
Written back on disposals RiE2#E - - - (18) (22,645 - (1,912) (2,416) - (26,991)
Exchange adjustments REEE - - - (218) (7,985) - (980) 2,200) - (11,383)
Transfer g - - - - 17888 (17,888) - - - -
At31 March 2017 “E-tE-A=1-R 845 59,107 - 58,682 387,504 - 21,468 67,133 14 594753
Net book value: REFE:
At31 March 2017 ZE-tE=R=1-A 818 269,597 581 39,09 97,970 - 9,698 21,129 1286 439,017
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B 5 ¥R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 55 aiBASN -

7

B TTAIR)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7 WE- -BERRE#E)
(continued)
Depreciation expense of $46,241,000 (2017: FrEBE AT 46,241,0007T(ZF—+5F :
$48,830,000), $2,878,000 (2017: $5,594,000) and 48,830,0007C ) - 2,878,0007T( — =
$5,871,000 (2017: $3,764,000) has been charged to cost —+ 4 1 5,594,0007C ) X 5,871,000 7C
of revenue, general and administrative expenses and (ZZE—+14F :3,764,0007T) 2 BlEt A
discontinued operations, respectively. WABKA ~ = RATE R RE LI
EERTE
The Group’s interests in leasehold land and buildings at AEBEHETHREF 2 EREH
their net book values are analysed as follows: IREVFEDHTAT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
$000 $000
Fr T
Leasehold land and buildings in REEFAZHEL MR
Hong Kong, held on leases BFI0E50F 2 HE
between 10 to 50 years 2,188 2,293
Buildings in the PRC, held on leases ~ A BFEEF
between 10 to 50 years 10E505F 828 263,792 268,122
265,980 270,415

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases

At 31 March 2018, no property, plant and equipment
was held under finance leases (2017: $128,000). There
was no addition (2017: $142,000) to furniture and
computer equipment held under finance leases during
the year ended 31 March 2018.

Sale and leaseback transaction

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group
entered into a sale and leaseback transaction on certain
machinery. A disposal gain of $1,803,000 had been
deferred and amortised over the lease term of three years.
No amortisation of deferred revenue has been recognised
in profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017:
$515,000).

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 32l BEIFR =i A IR A &

REBREHEREZYE BERR
&

R_E—NFZA=+—8 " A&H
BREMERBZDE  BELZE
(ZZ—+%:128,0007T) - HE-Z
—NFZA=+—HILER ERE
REMERFZEMREKEHE (=
—+4F : 142,0007T) °

E4HEERS
HE_ZT—HNF=A=1+—HLFRN "
REEGETHETVERBERRS o
HE IS 1,803,000 TR = FHEHRR
EEREHE BE-_T—\F=A
=+—HLEFR BETERAZEH
REZBER(ZZ— 1 F 515000
JL) °
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B S ¥ R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA AN - LABITLIIR)

8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 8 WEWHE
2018 2017
—E-N\E T4
$000 $000
T T
Beginning of the year F4) 301,710 316,800
Additions NE 282 2,092
Exchange differences RBpER 32,180 (18,540)
Fair value adjustment N EFE 2,078 1,358
End of the year FK 336,250 301,710

The investment properties are under construction and
located in the PRC under lease terms of 40 years expiring
in August 2050 to January 2051.

Fair value measurement of properties

(i)  Fair value hierarchy
As at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017, the fair
value measurement of the Group’s investment
properties is categorised into Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement.

During the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s
policy is to recognise transfers between levels of fair
value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period
in which they occur.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18 53R

TR 2R R A R IR A
M+ (R -FERF\AZ-FH—
F—AEH) 2 HRSHSE -

Y%z A FEE

(i) RDFERBR
RZZB-NF=A=t—BERY
“E—LF=ZA=t—RH A&
EmEREMEZ AT EFERRE
BB mEERFE 135 [ 2 FE
Bt Bl 2 EBDBREZEBR
FEEBR -

BE_T-\FR-_FT—tF=
A=t—BILLFEAR F—HZE
“ERZELEEE  ME=E
MIVEBHREA - NEE 2]
RERREHREZQXFEER
MWL 28R -
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B 5 ¥R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B

8

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value measurement of properties (continued)

(i)

(if)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The valuation of the Group’s investment properties
as at 31 March 2018 was conducted by RHL
Appraisal Limited, an independent professional
valuer, which has among its staff members of Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors. The investment
properties were valued on the basis that it would be
developed and completed in accordance with the
Group’s latest development proposals. In arriving at
the fair value, direct comparison approach by
making reference to the comparable sales
transactions as available in the relevant market was
adopted. And it had taken into account the
construction costs that would be incurred to
complete the development to reflect the quality of
the completed development. The Chief Financial
Officer has discussion with the independent
professional valuer in the valuation assumptions
and valuation results when the valuation is
performed at each interim and annual reporting
date.

Fair value adjustment of investment properties is
recognised in the line item “net valuation gain on
investment properties” on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements

AR

8

B TTAIR)

REME ()
MEZDNFEFEE)
iy DFEERGE)
RZE-NF=ZA=+—H K
SE R EMEREB L XN
B ok K 1T REE B A IR & Al
B HEEEETEANEMES
S8 - WEMEMHERARH
RHMEREZECERSEE
2RISR SR Z AT E
BEPZEREBRTAGEZAT
B YEERBREZERTRLZ
BEERERA - EBTHEE
FlmERETHER  ARYH
B BB 7 B R A AN A e E R
RN AHEER -

BREMEZ N FHERBIINES
BamK b2 [WEYERMGERS
HFER | —IRRER

(i) BFEAFE=ZBRAFETEZ2ER

Unobservable

Valuation techniques inputs Range
HERD FTUBEREBIE CEE
Investment properties Market comparison Discount rate on 5-10%
— Investment properties in ~ approach quality and location (2017: 5-10%)
the PRC of the properties
BEME S B BFERK 5-10%
— RABZEREME b2 Bh 3R (ZF—t%:
5-10%)
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B S ¥ R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA AN - LABITLIIR)

9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 9 HEEEE
Operating Computer
rights Goodwill software Total
oy HE BT ENe A
$'000 $'000 $000 $'000
Tr T T T
Cost: B
At 1 April 2017 “E—+ENA—H 24,000 1,091 12,269 37,360
Additions NE = = 741 741
Discontinued operations (note 35) B 4% |FA8 & 275 (Fi5E35) (24,000) (1,091) - (25,091)
At 31 March 2018 —E-N\F=ZA=1+—H - = 13,010 13,010
Accumulated amortisation: EiEe
A1 April 2017 —E—t+EmA-A (10,200) - (2,400) (12,600)
Charge for the year EEHR (2,400) = (1,293) (3,693)
Discontinued operations (note 35) B 4% |FA8 & 275 (H 5 35) 12,600 - - 12,600
At31March2008 2 \E=A=T-R - - G G
Net Book value: WREHE
At 31 March 2018 “E-N\F=ZA=1+—H = = 9,317 9,317
Cost: B
At 1 April 2016 and “Z-RFOA-AR
31 March 2017 “E—+EF=A=1—H 24,000 1,091 12,269 37,360
Accumulated amortisation: RTEe
At 1 April 2016 —E-REMA—H (7,800) - (1,143) (8,943)
Charge for the year FENG (2,400) - (1,257) (3,657)
AGTMarch2017 =B AEESASTH (102000 - 2400 (12,600
Net Book value: IREFE -
At31 March 2017 “T—+E=f=+-8 13,800 1,091 9,869 24,760
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B 5 ¥R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B

9

10

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Amortisation of $1,293,000 (2017: $1,257,000) and
$2,400,000 (2017: $2,400,000) was included in general
and administrative expenses and discontinued operations
respectively in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Operating rights represent the rights to use the trademark
“Fullhouse” for the restaurant business in the PRC and
South East Asia. Goodwill arose from the acquisition of
the Fullhouse Group and is allocated to the restaurant
business, which is an identified cash-generating unit
within the consumer and services business segment.
During the year ended 31 March 2018, both operating
rights and goodwill included in the discontinued
operations were disposed of to a related party (note 35).

SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company
as at 31 March 2018 are:

Place of incorporation/

AR

9

10

B TTAIR)

BEEE (&)
HE-_ZT—\F=ZA=+—HLFE -
1,293,000 7T ( == —+ 4 : 1,257,000
J0) %.2,400,000 T 2 B (=T —+
£ :2,400,0007T) DRI BEEEZE B
mERP—MEITEREBARERIELE
EY X

iR R KA A [Fullhouse | 2 FHHZ
FAFR B N SR SR AR R R TS 2 MR o
AU Fullhouse EBELEZHE - &
MREEEY BRAEBEE KRS
¥EBOBRAZESELESMN - #HZE
—E-)N\E=R=F+—BULEER-
KERLBE _EREEEE THE
72 BRI AR EE T (BisE35) ©

M 2 =
RARAMRZE-NF=ZA=+—H=E
BB AT 2R

establishment and types Principal activities Particulars of issued/paid-up Interest
Name of legal entity and place of operation capital held
R R iR
1 REERRER IRXBREEHE BT/ BRRA BiEEE
Karrie Industrial Hong Kong, Sale of server casings, office Ordinary shares of $1,000 100%
Company Limited limited liability automation products, visual Non-voting deferred
company accessories, plastic and metal shares of $5,000,000 (i)
parts, metal stamping dies and
plastic injection moulds and
provision of management services,
Hong Kong
RNERERRA  ABBEREMAR  HEARSING BLEXEER-  BER1,0007T

FoRMAn  ZBRe BT
TEHEREARTEEAR

RUERRS - BB

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 32l BEIFR =i A IR A &
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 58 #¢RASM -

10 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of incorporation/

B S ¥ R B

A TTEIR)

10 KMIEBAE(#E)

establishment and types Principal activities Particulars of issued/paid-up Interest
Name of legal entity and place of operation capital held
Vg e
L REERRER IREBREE DY BR{T/BRRE BHEE
Karrie Technologies  Hong Kong, Manufacturing and sales of plastic Ordinary shares of 100%
Company Limited limited liability parts, sales of metal stamping dies $30,000,000
company and plastic injection moulds,
provision of electronic
manufacturing services and
investment holdings, Hong Kong
FRAPRIRRHR BEEREMERE  RERHEZBHMT HELE R 30,000,000 7T
BRAR WERATIERE  RUET
BXRRIRBRRERK  BA
Karwin Engineering ~ Hong Kong, Design, manufacture and sale of Ordinary shares of $10 100%
Company Limited limited liability server casings, office automation Non-voting deferred
company products and visual accessories; shares of $100 (i)
sale of plastic and metal parts,
metal stamping dies, plastic
injection moulds and investment
holdings, Hong Kong
RERRIE BEERAMERR R RERBEMRSENR EER107T
BRAT BAEXEEMRT AL ERFRETH1007T()
HEZBREBEMT 2 BHE
BA IPEARKRERK BB
FEEEEZEBR  The PRC limited Manufacture of server casings, Paid-up capital 100%
TEERAT liability company office automation products and $72,000,000 (ii)
metal parts, the PRC
PEAREALR  REARFINR HREXBEER  DEEX
kBt - 5 72,000,000 7T (i)
FREEERBR  The PRC limited Manufacture of server casings, Paid-up capital 100%

hERRAT]

ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18 53R

liability company

PEARAERA

office automation products,

visual accessories, moulds and

plastic parts; provision of electronic

manufacturing services, the PRC
SUEMMRRINR - WAENBER

FRAL  BARZBHH

REBTEXRR IR - TH&

$45,000,000 (iii)

EHER
45,000,000 7T (i)
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B 5 ¥R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 55 aiBASN -

B TTAIR)

10 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 10 B AT (&)

206

Place of incorporation/

establishment and types Principal activities Particulars of issued/paid-up Interest
Name of legal entity and place of operation capital held
Vg e
a8 REEERER TEXBREERE BRT/EHRE BEEA
REREEFEX  The PRC limited Property holding, the PRC Paid-up capital 100%
BRAF liability company $335,123,306 (iv)
TEEREEAR  HAVE - PH EHER
335,123,306 7T (iv)
EESFEEAE  The PRC, limited Property development and Paid-up capital 100%
HEBRAT liability company management, the PRC 1S$20,000,000 (v)
HEBREEAF NEERNER  TH BEHER
20,000,000 7T (v)
HEGFEE The PRC, limited Property holding, the PRC Paid-up capital 100%
BRAT liability company US$16,000,000 (vi)
TPEEREEAR  HAENE PHE EHER
16,000,000 % 7T (vi)
RERERE The PRC, limited Property development, the PRC Paid-up capital 100%
HERR AT liability company US$22,500,000(vii)
hEBREEAR NEERE  TH EHER
22,500,000 5 7T (vii)
EEIEY S ¢4 The PRC, limited Property trading and management, Paid-up capital 100%
BRRA liability company the PRC RMB1,000,000 (viii)
HEBREEAR NEEHLER  TH ERERARE
1,000,000 7T (viii)
BREEEFMEWE  The PRC, limited Property development, the PRC Paid-up capital 100%
HEARAA liability company RMB25,001,000 (ix)

TEARELAA

MERR - P

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 32l BEIFR =i A IR A &
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 58 #¢RASM -

10 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

(viii)

The non-voting deferred shares are not owned by the Group.
These shares have no voting rights, are not entitled to
dividends, and are not entitled to distributions upon winding
up unless a sum of $200,000,000,000 has been distributed
by the relevant companies to holders of the ordinary shares.

FREEZEZBRRASEMRAF is a wholly-owned foreign
enterprise established in the PRC with an operating period of
15 years up to 19 May 2026.

RERERLEZBALSARRAF is a wholly-owned foreign
enterprise established in the PRC with an operating period of
15 years up to 24 May 2026.

XREETEEAERADA isa wholly-owned foreign
enterprise established in the PRC with an operating period of
25 years up to 18 February 2030.

HAZMEBEAEREGRAT is a wholly-owned foreign
enterprise established in the PRC with an operating period of
40 years up to 2 December 2049.

HEGFEFARAA] is a wholly-owned foreign enterprise
established in the PRC with an operating period of 40 years
up to 22 March 2051.

REFEFMERZBR QA is a wholly-owned foreign
enterprise established in the PRC with an operating period of
20 years up to 17 September 2033.

e S =

REMERE X AR 2 A s awholly-owned foreign
enterprise established in the PRC with a long-term operating
period.

®Z % 5= & B E M % B R QA is a wholly-owned
foreign enterprise established in the PRC with a long-term
operating period.

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

B S ¥ R B

A TTEIR)

10 KMIEBAE(#E)
B -

A5 SRR TR A0 N FE FR AN = B BT
BFoMERNDELEE  TEEHSZ
fEE o BIEMR AR SRR EY
BR R R ¥ 2 BB BB
200,000,000,000 7T : & BIsZ & K& 15
EESZEADIK -

REBEMaESBASERAR I —
RAPBERI 2 EREINERE B4
EHRATRF  RZZTZ R FHA
+HBER -

REEEELRERASERAT T —
REBERI2EBHRBINEDE  H&
XHRATRF  RNZZT-X FHA
—+BAE® °

REnEETEEARARI— KA
By 2B EBINEDRE  HEXH
RA-+HAF R-ZZE=ZF_-A
+N\BEm °

BREEZMEEAEREGRART—
REBEK 2 ERBINERE  HE
HHRAN+E  RoTEMAE+ =
A—BEm -

BRTEEEERA T —RRER
T2ARBINELE  HELHRA
mt% R-TE—F=A—+=H
GLE

REnflEERERRARII—RN
FREKIZERFINERE  HEE
HEA-t+E R-ZE==%FhA
T+ BER e

REMBRAEEARART T —RPH
RIZEREINEDRE  HEXHR

BREGEANFSHEREERART)
—RPBEKIEEEFINERE
BERHRARE -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B a:BASN - SUETLEIR)

11 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 11 REBEQARZRE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
$000 $'000
Fr Tt
Share of net assets ELEERE
Beginning of the year FH4 14,136 15,223
Capital injection FE - 2,131
Share of profits of an associate FE(EE 2 N REF 872 247
Impairment losses B E R - (2,490)
Exchange difference HBER 1,554 (975)
End of the year FIK 16,562 14,136
Balances with an associate i LN ok =323
Amount due to an associate (note 37)  E[FEEE A RIR (MI5E37) 2,587 2,992

During the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017,
management conducted an impairment assessment of the
recoverability of the interest in &5 22 1§ #28 A BHE I (D
AR 2 A]. No impairment losses were recognised for the
year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: impairment losses of
$2,490,000 had been recognised to write down the net
carrying amounts of the investment to $14,136,000).

HE-_ZT—+tFR=ZZT—NF=A
=+—HIEFERN BEEEHRKRER
BRBIE#IARZROBRARZ
AW ESEETREN G BHEZT
—N\FZAZ+—BHIFE EC8
RBEBER(ZE—tF : BEERRE
JE518 2,490,000 TTAMUB L 1R & 2 1R
SHEZ 14,136,000 7T) °

The outstanding balances due to an associate are LB N R R E R RN 2 IR
B - AEAE - LEBREEE
KIAETTRERL

unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand, and
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

PAOISI ARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 32 7| BIBR 2 AR 2 7)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA AN - LABITLIIR)

11 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 11 RBEQXRZREE)
Particulars of the material associate of the Group is as AEESEZEBRENRIZFRERDAT -
follows:

Proportion of
ownership interest

BERRLA
Particulars of Group's
Place of establishment Principal activities and issued and paid effective Held by a
Name of associate and types of legal entity place of operation up capital interest subsidiary
RIEHER )]
BENREH EERRER IEEBREENY BRfT/BHRK rEEER NERE
ERBEEEA The PRC, limited Research, sales of industrial Ordinary shares of 30% 30%
HEROHERRA liability company robots and robot peripheral  RMB10,000,000
("Cuifeng”) automation equipment, and
provision of automation
solution, the PRC
BREEREA PEEREALT 7% HETZBEAR EARARE
HBERNERAT KRENRBEDRE Rk 10,000,0007C
([R&)) RESBCRANE PE
Cuifeng is a quoted corporate entity on the National RERHEARKMEH/PNEEBD
Equities Exchange and Quotations of the PRC whose ERERGHEE  WRBETISHRE -

quoted market price is not available.
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11 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 11 REEQRZREE)
Summarised financial information of the material BESTFHRRZEMNEZERARE 2B

BERNRMBERME  YREA
PHBRZEARELETYHER  ®E

associate adjusted for any differences in accounting
policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in the

consolidated financial statement are disclosed below: N
Cuifeng
g
2018 2017
—2-N\F —ET—+tF
$000 $'000
Fr T
Gross amounts of the associate BE AR AR
Current assets mENEE 40,267 32,580
Non-current assets SEMBEE 5,517 1,519
Current liabilities RBRIE (14,058) (8,203)
Net assets/equity BE/wmFE 31,726 25,896
Revenue WA 44,550 27,179
Profit from continuing operations B m 2,908 824
Total comprehensive income FE2EWALRE
for the year 2,908 824
Reconciled to the Group’s interests FAHEAREEREE A A
in the associate 2R
Gross amounts of net assets of the BE RN FEEMRR
associate 31,726 25,896
Fair value adjustments on identifiable — JgBE A 8838 2 A PR EE 7
intangible assets upon acquisition BERNFHEHARE 32,875 29,719
Capital injection by the Group KEFITE (15,000) (13,560)
49,601 42,055
Group's effective interest REET TEEZ 30% 30%
Group’s share of net assets of the AEBEHBE R
associate BEFE 14,880 12,616
Goodwill S 4,172 4,010
Impairment losses recognised BB IR HER (2,490) (2,490)
Carrying amount in the consolidated ~ W4RE B 53Rk P IREE
financial statements 16,562 14,136

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 32l BEIFR =i A IR A &
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Br SHB AN -

INTERESTS IN A JOINT OPERATION IN
RESPECT OF PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

On 1 August 2016, the Group entered into a cooperation
agreement (the “Agreement”) with Kar Info International
Property Limited (“Kar Info”), a related company of the
Group, regarding a real estate development project (the
“Project”) in the PRC. In the Agreement, an area of land
held by R e 32 &fl38 % i & m B PR 2 7 (the “Project
Company”, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Kar Info),
would be used for construction of residential suites and
public amenities. The Group agreed to participate in the
Project by making an investment in the amount of
$140,000,000 in consideration to Kar Info of it being
entitled to a share of profit from the Project through
selling the properties in the future. The transaction
contemplated under the Agreement constitutes a
connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The details of the joint operation is as follows:

B S ¥ R B

A TTEIR)

12 REBYERRZHEEEZ
s
RZZE—RNENA—H ~&EE
ARPEENERZER ([5%EAE ])
eI S B4 # & dlKar Info
International Property Limited ([ Kar
Infol) FTS2 & VEtaR (T2 1)  RE&
MEAN BREMRUBEERERE
RAFRI([IBE AR Karnfoz 2 &
MEBARFAEZ B EANEE
FEEFRAHRRZE - AEEREER
& 140,000,000 7T ¥E /& 32 15 F Kar Info
ZRELEZIEE  UHZAKEER
MINBEFIHEZEMEMBZIEAR
IS 2m N o IR ETARAIE 14AE
ZHEBTRET IR SEN B
BRG  BHBEEEZHBUOT -

Expected

Total gross completion date

Location Land Use floor area (m?)  (calendar year)

MEEEE - RPERTIAS

VA=1 TiAR (EFHK) ()

Phase 3, Castfast Villas, Fenggang Town, Residential 61,730 2018/2019
Dongguan City, Guangdong Province,

the PRC
FRIERER=mREEARESE = (EES 61,730 = AV
—ENEF

The Group’s assets held in relation to the joint operation
include the investment cost contributed by the Group
and the related construction costs capitalised. The
balance is shown on the consolidated statement of
financial position as property development (note 17). As
at 31 March 2018, the carrying amount of property
development in respect of the joint operation was
$312,000,000 (2017: $207,000,000).

As at 31 March 2018, there was an amount due to the
Project Company in relation to the joint operation
amounting to $123,397,000 which is unsecured, non-
interest bearing and with no fixed repayment terms
(2017: $65,067,000).

AEBBBHEEERAZEERER
EEEAZRERARERNLZEH
BIERA - BRENRE AR EF
FITEMEER (HME17) c R=ZZT— N\
F=RA=+—H FHEBEEEZY
¥BRIRMEEA312,000,0007T(=
T —+4F : 207,000,0007C) °

R-_ZT—N\F=ZA=+—8 " n¥As
LB EFTIE B ARl 3IH 123,397,000
TAEERR  FHAEREETER
HRR (ZZ— 4 : 65,067,0007T) °
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13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORIES 13 ZERI 2 Ez2SmIT A

Available-for-sale financial

Loans and receivables assets Total

ERRERIRR It HESHER aft
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
“g-N\F —EtF ZB-N\f —THF ZB-N\F —TtF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

i ft  fA R FR TR

Assets BE
Trade, bills and other 25 EBREfM

receivables (note 14) FEdtR 3 (MEE14) 438,654 368,078 - - 438,654 368,078
Prepayments (note 14) BT (M 14) 10,059 14,479 = - 10,059 14,479
Deposits (note 14) & (MzE14) 29,774 55,310 = - 29,774 55,310
Available-for-sale financial tEELREE

assets (note 15) (W3 15) = - 18,916 18,597 18,916 18,597
Cash and hank deposits BERFTER

(note 18) (WizE18) 272,153 215,363 = - 272,153 215,363

750,640 653,230 18916 18,597 769,556 671,827
2018 2017
—E-N\FE —E—LF
$’000 $'000
Fr FT
Liabilities a&
Trade payables, accruals and other B HRMIRH - BT ER R

payables (note 22) H TR AR (52 22) 554,623 545,874
Bank borrowings (note 24) RITEE (M7E24) 625,902 539,800
Obligations under finance leases BEME TAYE (MfsE23)

(note 23) - 128
Amount due to an associate (note 11)  JEfTEF & A TR (MIzE11) 2,587 2,992
Amount due to a related company FERTRAZE A RIMR K (FH5E12)

(note 12) 123,397 65,067

1,306,509 1,153,861

i ] ) KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 32l BEIFR =i A IR A &
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14 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE, 14 BZREBERIRR - BAK -
PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RE R H b FE YR X
RECEIVABLES

2018 2017
—2-N\F —EtF
$/000 $'000
T T
Trade and bills receivable BV ES T U 407,815 325,134
Other receivables H At R YR X 34,860 46,965
442,675 372,099
Less: Allowance for impairment of B EH - FEREAMEWR
trade, bills and other SR B R
receivables (4,021) (4,021)
438,654 368,078
Prepayments TR K 10,059 14,479
Deposits o 29,774 55,310
478,487 437,867
Less: Other non-current assets (Note)  J& : HALIERBNE & (FI7E) (46,224) (36,676)
432,263 401,191
Representing: &k :
Trade and bills receivable, net of B S REHE R -
allowance BR S 403,794 321,113
Prepayments, deposits and other TR - RE R E A R R R
receivables 28,469 80,078
432,263 401,191
Note: Other non-current assets represent deposits paid for the Mizt: EfIEnBSERRESYE K
purchase of property, plant and equipment amounted to ERBEIONRSSEN A
approximately $24,474,000 (2017: $17,014,000), a 24,4740007( = & — 4 £
government grant receivable from Jiangsu Yixing Economic 17,014,00070) & 4 B & B T &
Development Zone Investment and Development Company BT B Uy B+ i > LT R B A
Limited amounted to approximately $21,750,000 (2017: BB ERREAR AT ZHFE
$19,662,000) in relation to the acquisition of a piece of land Bh 4 %8 49 521,750,0007C( = &
in Yixing, Jiangsu, the PRC. —+% :19,662,0007T) °
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14 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE, 14 EFREBERIRR - BAR -

214

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group generally grants credit periods ranging from
30 to 90 days, except for two (2017: one) of the
customers who is granted a credit period of 150 days. An
ageing analysis of trade, bills and other receivables,

based on invoice date, is as follows:

BE R EMERIRR(#)

BREF - (ZT—EF: —)RP
ZEHAI508 AEB KB T
BEFEZHMM30BE0R-E5 E
BREMEUIRKIZEZBRFAE 2
RERDATEAT

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—tF

$’000 $'000

T Tt

0 to 90 days 0Z290H 325,046 333,045
91 to 180 days 912180 H 94,723 31,687
181 to 360 days 1812360 H 19,778 4,196
Over 360 days 360 HA £ 3,128 3,171
442,675 372,099

The carrying amounts of trade and bills receivable,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables approximate

their fair values.

The receivables are expected to be recovered within one
year. Any amounts not expected to be recovered within

one year are not included in current assets.

Movement in the allowance for impairment of trade, bills

and other receivables is as follows:

B REBERBIRK  BAR e
KEMEYOIRR ZIREERE A FE
AT -

& RBIRRFEHE —FRKRE - F
MERBHITEE-—FAKRDATE
ERREEEN °

CORESRET ICT T LT
2B :

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—tF

$000 $'000

Fr T

Beginning and end of the year FONRFRE 4,021 4,021

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 32l BEIFR =i A IR A &
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 58 #¢RASM -

14 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE,

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

The recognition of allowance for impaired receivables is
included in general and administrative expenses in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. At 31 March
2018, the Group’s trade, bills and other receivables of
$4,021,000 (2017: $4,021,000) were individually
determined to be impaired. The individually impaired
receivables related to customers that were in financial
difficulties and management assessed that the amounts
are not expected to be fully recoverable. Consequently,
specific allowances for doubtful debt of $4,021,000
(2017: $4,021,000) were recognised.

At 31 March 2018, trade and bills receivable of
$85,856,000 (2017: $42,777,000) was past due but not
impaired. These relates to a number of independent
customers that had a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in the
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The ageing of this trade and bills receivable,
based on due date, is as follows:

14

B S ¥ R B

A TTEIR)

B REBRBIRR - RN -
BEREMERIRR(Z)

HERERBIERBEE 2 BRE BIE
RéraBEmRT —MEITHER - ©
—“T-N\FEZA=+—H8 KA£EEZ
25 EBRHEMERKEKERAE
4,021,000 7T (= F —+4F : 4,021,000
7T) + T EREE R TORE o BERIER
BREVIESEEMBRRE  XFER -
mMERETHEECREERTEEH
el o Bt B BLRIR RS TR E
/4,021,007 = T — + F:
4,021,0007C) °

R-_ZTE—N\FE=ZA=+—HH B5K
2= 5 e W IR X 4 85,856,000 T ( = F
—-t 4 142,777,000 7T) #& E B BB T
EORE o WFRIBSRE EE R
RIFzBURF - EREREBEUELE
B MEZRNEEFERERE H
RNEEBERIBEREE RZNED
BAEAZEKE - B 5 KEEERIE
FILB B A E 2 RE DT T -

2018 2017
—E-)N\F —E—+F

$’000 $000

SE Tt

1 to 90 days 1Z290H 61,199 39,083
91 to 180 days 91 £ 180 H 11,054 3,593
181 to 360 days 1812360 H 13,603 101
85,856 42,777
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14 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE,

15

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the
reporting period is the carrying value of trade and bills
receivable, deposits and other receivables stated above.
The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

The credit quality of the Group’s trade and bills
receivable, deposits and other receivables that are past
due but not impaired has been assessed by reference to
the historical information about counterparty default
rates. The existing counterparties do not have significant
defaults in the past.

14

B TTAIR)

B REBRBIRR - AN -
BE R EMERIRR(#)

RBEHRR - FERBRZESEAER
LB 5 RFHEEYORR - mE RE
i EMIR R Z IRE B - AEBDRA #F
BEAERER 2B

REBEEFPHERE  HAKECE
AT 8 ARORME 2 B 5 B SRR PR MR 3K
e REMERIRRZEEEREL
Al BRZEPEBERAEAZ
#o KR8 ©

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 15 AftHETHEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —B—+F
$’000 $'000
F T+
Equity securities — Hong Kong EaEs —&B0GEL™)
(unlisted) - 303
Key management insurance contracts B ZEEEBRER AL
(unlisted investments) GEEmERE) 18,916 18,294
18,916 18,597

At 31 March 2018, the insurance contracts represented
life insurance plans with investment elements relating to
a key management personnel of the Group. The total
sum insured is US$4,681,000 (approximately
$36,746,000) (2017: US$4,681,000 (approximately
$36,278,000)), with an annual minimum guaranteed
return of 2% to 4.2% for the first 10 years and 2% for the
years afterwards.

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 32l BEIFR =i A IR A &

—“ET-NE=F=+—H  %RRA
WEAEB—ZFXBEREABZE
BEKMDZASRE BREAR
4,681,000 3 7T (4736,746,0007T) (=
T — + 14,681,000 st #
36,278,0007T)) * B T FHERZEE
WMEBEF2%E42% R EETFF2% -
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15 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

16

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 58 #¢RASM -

(continued)

At 31 March 2018, if the Group terminated the insurance
contract, the account value, net of a surrender charge of
US$2,071,000 (approximately $16,260,000) (2017:
US$2,002,000 (approximately $15,516,000), would be
refunded to the Group. The amount of surrender charge

decreases over time and is no longer required from the

19th year of contract conclusion onwards.

INVENTORIES

16

(@) Inventories in the consolidated statement of

financial position comprise:

B S ¥ R B

R-ZE—-NF=ZA=+—H

A TTEIR)

15 AHHESREE (&)

gECRINS

ERIEZRBAEY  RBRIRF KRR
R B H % /2071000 T 4
16,260,0007C ) ( = & — + #F:
2,002,000 7t (4915,516,0007T)) &
FURE TAEE - RIRWERERREM
BORRZENEETERETNFRT

FAUSCER -

rE

@ REEMBIRIRZEERHE:

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—tF

$'000 $'000

T Tt

Raw materials R 122,119 122,744
Work-in-progress F BB m 54,500 37,374
Finished goods SR Th 204,524 224,765
381,143 384,883

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories

recognised as an expense and included in “cost of

revenue” in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss (Note 28) is as follows:

Continuing operations

b FEZEHECHEIAA/ILMESR
FERER A BE R A WA ] (B

FE28) DATUIR

Discontinued operations

BEREEK ERIEREEK
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\F ZE—+tHF ZE-NF ZIT—LF
$'000 $’000 $'000 $'000
T T Tr T
(Restated) (Restated)
(E751)) (7))

Carrying amount of BEEREZIREAE

inventories sold 2,134,068 2,011,845 15,306 10,357
Write-down of inventories 7% 2 #i5 = 9,873 - -
2134068 2,021,718 15,306 10,357
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17 PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT 17 YIXRER
2018 2017
—®-NF —T—+tF
$’000 $'000
T Tt
Property under development for sale  fF/h7E =2 639,557 435,013
Completed property held for sale (SOEE/ES 17,871 44,798
657,428 479,811
As at 31 March 2018, properties under development for WZZE-—NF=ZRA=+—8"
sales of $327,240,000 (2017: $435,013,000) are 327,240,0007C 2 b R F(ZF
expected to be completed after more than one year. — - 4F 1 435,013,0007T ) TEEI A BB
—FIRTK °
(a) The analysis of carrying value of land held for @ FEHMEHR LM IREFED
property development for sale is as follows: fanT
2018 2017
—®-NE —T—tF
$’000 $'000
T 7T
Outside Hong Kong FEEB AN
— Less than 50 years — LRAT+F 125,542 85,749
(b)  The analysis of the amount of properties recognised b) PVEZLHEEHIA/ILIES
as an expense and included in “cost of revenue” in ERiFe BERAAMA
the consolidated statement of profit or loss (note 28) 28) AT
is as follows:
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —T—+tF
$000 $000
T FT
Carrying amount of properties sold 2 &%) % 2 RE & 29,762 955

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 32l BEIFR =i A IR A &
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18 CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS 18 RERIM|ITHENK
(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: @ BELRSZEYEHE:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
$000 $'000
T Tt
Cash at bank and in hand RITFHREBEE 270,811 206,137
Time deposits TEHAITE SR 1,342 9,226
Cash and bank deposits in the RERE M BEARRK RS
consolidated statement of NER1TTFER
financial position 272,153 215,363
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing b) BEIBFEL>ESERD
activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s TEXREEREREETH e
liabilities from financing activities, including both EHE) AEDRSRIEEL
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from B EHEL Y BEAEE
financing activities are liabilities for which cash SERBERFRERAEDESS
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified B4 heEhemAams Iem
in the Group’s consolidated cash flow statement as ErEAeREC ARG o

cash flows from financing activities.
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18 CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS (continued)

(b)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities (continued)

B TTAIR)

18 RERBITERE)
(b) BMETBFEEEERD(E)

Obligations
Bank under
borrowings finance leases Total
MEHRE
RITEE THEE &Hf
$'000 $'000 $'000
T T T
(Note 24) (Note 23)
GEZY (FIE23)
At 1 April 2017 —E-t£MmA-H 539,800 128 539,928
Changes from financing MERSREZEH
cash flows:
Proceeds from new bank MRITREZFER

borrowings 166,200 - 166,200
Repayment of bank borrowings BB R{TIEE (80,098) - (80,098)
Capital element of repayment of  BEMERE 2 A& 55

finance lease - (33) (33)
Interest paid [RANEAR) (27,143) ) (27,148)
Total changes from financing MERERELEBEE

cash flows 58,959 (38) 58,921
Other changes: Hit @5
Discontinued operations BRI ER (FEE35)

(note 35) - (95) (95)
Interest expenses (note 30) M8 (FiEE30) 14,883 5 14,888
Capitalised borrowing costs ERMBERA (K 30)

(note 30) 12,260 - 12,260
Total other changes Higsh@aE 27,143 (90) 27,053
At 31 March 2018 —N\F=A=+—H 625,902 - 625,902

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 32l BEIFR =i A IR A &
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19 SHARE CAPITAL 19 BRA
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Number Nominal Number Nominal
of shares value of shares value
B EE H{E Pt &8 H{E
000 $’000 ‘000 $'000
¥ Fr + T
Authorised: EERA
Ordinary shares of LAk EREE
HK10 cents each 10784 4,000,000 400,000 4,000,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITREHE
[N
Ordinary shares of TRk EREE
HK10 cents each: 107840
Beginning of the year F1) 1,996,196 199,620 1,996,196 199,620
Issuance of shares under  EEf%#EET 21T
share option schemes BTl 6,470 647 - -
Cancellation of shares TR (8,110) (811) - =
End of the year FK 1,994,556 199,456 1,996,196 199,620

(@) For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company
has cancelled 8,110,000 shares of the Company, of
which 968,000 shares were repurchased before 31
March 2017 and 7,142,000 shares were
repurchased after T April 2017.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18 53R

@ BEZ—)/\F=ZA=+-—H1t
FE - ANAal 2 s, 110,000
A QTN - & F 968,000 8%
BOBR-_TE—+FE=ZA=+—
B A1 8 - m7,142,000 8% % 15
RZE—tFWOA—RHZOE -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B

19 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(b)

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the
Company repurchased its own shares on Stock
Exchange as follows:

AR

B TTAIR)

19 RA&(E)

(b)

BE-—2— /\E=R=+—8L
FERN - ADEERZHERE S
BROMT :

Number Highest Lowest
of shares price paid price paid Aggregate
repurchased per share per share amount

=5 & 2 BREN BREN
Month/Year £/R #H BEEER BXE® wew
$ $ $'000
7T 7T T
April 2017 —T—+FMA 230,000 1.04 0.96 230
May 2017 —T—+tFRHA 3,836,000 1.26 1.18 4,659
August 2017 —E—+FN\A 1,106,000 1.16 1.15 1,279
January 2018 —E-N\F—A 1,686,000 1.30 1.28 2,178
February 2018 —E-N\FZA 284,000 1.29 1.22 356
7,142,000 8,702

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to
receive dividends as declared from time to time and
are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with
regard to the Company’s residual assets.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, share
options have been exercised to subscribe for
6,470,000 ordinary shares (2017: nil) in the
Company at a consideration of $3,827,000 (2017:
$nil) of which $647,000 (2017: $nil) was credited
to share capital and the balance of $3,180,000
(2017: $nil) was credited to the share premium.
$1,341,000 (2017: $nil) has been transferred from
share-based compensation reserve to the share
premium in accordance with policy set out in note
2(u).

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 32l BEIFR =i A IR A &

BB AR S R
2B UFHEARABREA
CrER—EIRERE- AL
BRHSEARABRTEENS
=B RZHA -

HE-_Z—-\F=-ZA=1+—H1
FERN - BRECETE UK
183,827,000 C( — T —+4F : &)
2 8% K 2 8] 6,470,000 f% @ A%

—E—+tF: &) HEw
647,000 (ZF—+F: &)
T AR - #:%83,180,000 7T (=
T—+F  E)BFTARMDEE °
B OE M 22w FT B OB X
1,341,0007C( — T — £ 4 : &)
ERURO I 2B R EER
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Br SHB AN -

20 SHARE OPTIONS

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 24
August 2012 (the “Scheme”) under which it may grant
options to employees of the Group (including executive
directors of the Company) and other third parties to
subscribe for shares in the Company, subject to a
maximum of 30% of the nominal value of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time excluding
for this purpose any shares issued on the exercise of
options. The exercise price will be determined by the
Company’s board of directors and shall at least be the
highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares
on the date of grant of the options, and (ii) an average
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant of the
options.

On 11 August 2014, a total of 18,000,000 share options
(the “2014 Share Options”) were granted to certain
qualified participants of the Group (including an
executive director of the Company) under the Scheme.
The 2014 Share Options entitle the grantees to subscribe
for a total of 18,000,000 new shares of $0.10 each in the
share capital of the Company. Depending on the
financial performance of the Group and other conditions
of the 2014 Share Options, not more than 50% of the
2014 Share Options will be vested on 1 August 2015 and
not more than 50% of the 2014 Share Options will be
vested on 1 August 2017. The exercise price of the 2014
Share Options is $0.419 per share, which represents the
highest of (i) the closing price of the shares of the
Company of $0.405 per share as stated in the daily
quotation sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the date
of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares of the
Company of $0.419 per share as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares of the
Company of $0.10 per share. All the 2014 Share Options
were accepted by the grantees.

20

B S ¥ R B

A TTEIR)

B
ARARRZE——FNA=-+HAK
A—IERRETE - TR AEE
ZEE(BREARABZHNITES) RE
—ERLBRENERBRAQAZK
? EREUARDBTEEETRA
HE(TEREETEEBREMET R
17)30% AR o ZIEBRETEEFHA
RAIZEZEET  LOARRRRG
REERERTHZKME : i) B
RYEREAIAGER S BARQAR
P2 FHWTHE -

—E-NWFNA+—BHEHE
18,000,000 7 & fx 4 ([ = F — U EE IR
BENERTFTAEBETEERK 22 H
HE(BRREARBZHATEE) = F
—UEERR T AR ARE SR EE
BOIOTT 2 A Al 2z B A & H
18,000,000 #7 i% o 15 4% & B 01 7% % 48
REAM =T — YR REEY - B
50% 2 —E—NEREFNR_Z—h
FNA—BAHEB - R THBiB50%2
T -UERESNR =T -EFN\A
—BWEE  — T WERETFEE
BERR0.4197T - LAG) ARARRMNOARE
IRER T H 2 WM EEAR0.405 7T ; (i)
ZERTERERIAEIZHAR
Ak D 2 FHKRTHEER0.4197T : &
(i) ARAIRD < BREECI0T » =
EUARSEAE - TE_T—UER
ERBERAZLR -

ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18 53R

223



224

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B

20 SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

AR

20

On 27 October 2016, the Company granted a total of
24,700,000 share options (the “2016 Share Options”) to
certain qualified participants of the Group (including
executive directors of the Company) under the Scheme.
The 2016 Share Options entitle the grantees to subscribe
for a total of 24,700,000 new shares of $0.10 each in the
share capital of the Company. The exercise price of the
2016 Share Options is $0.70 per share, which represents
the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares of the
Company of $0.70 per share as stated in the daily
quotation sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the date
of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares of the
Company of $0.656 per share as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately proceeding the date of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares of the
Company of $0.10 per share. All the 2016 Share Options
were accepted by the grantees.
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B TTAIR)

BB E)
—E-RFETA-tEHARAHKSE
24,700,00010 R E(T T —REBER
BENDERTAEEETEER 228
HE(BEARAZHTES) - =%
—NEBRERTARARESKREE
/B0107T 2 AR Al 2 R A E& H
24,700,000 %% o —F — NIEARHETT
FEAFT0.707T * LAG) AR RIRG
REEARER TH 2 M EERO0.70TT :
(HEERTEREBMNAGBERZ AR
NEIRD 2 FHW T ESR0.656 7T
K (i) R ARIRH 2 BREEO0.107T
—EURRERE -IBEZZT—E
R R AR AW -
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20 SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(a) The terms and conditions of the Share Options are

as follows:

B S ¥ R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA AN - LABITLIIR)

20 HBRRRE(E)

BB 2 IR B R I T

Exercise
price per Number Vesting
share  of options condition Expiry date
=1 Bk
TEE® B BTt LG
Options granted to directors: BRERTES:
—on 11 August 2014 —RZE-mF $0.419 5,000,000 Not morethan 10 August 2024
NB+—H 5,000,000 options
will vest
on 1 August 2015 *
R%15,000,000 3 “ZomE
BRESR-_T-1F NATH
NA—REE*
—on 11 August 2014 —RZE-NF $0.419 5,000,000 Not more than 10 August 2024
NA+—H 5,000,000 options
will vest
on T August 2017 *
F%15,000,000 3 “ERoRF
BRESR_T—+F AV R l=!
NA—B5E*
—on 27 October 2016 —RZE-RF $0.70 3,150,000  Vestingon 1July 2017 26 October 2026
+A=t+H
\ZZ—+FtA-H ZTINF
FE +AZ+xA8
—on 27 October 2016 —RZE—RF $0.70 3,150,000  Vestingon 1July 2018 26 October 2026
+A=++H
A\ ZF—\FtA—H “EINE
RE +A=1+xH
— on 27 October 2016 —RZE-RF $0.70 4,200,000  Vestingon 1July 2019 26 October 2026
+A=t++HR
R=F-NFtA—H b NG
58 +HA=+XA

ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18 53R

225



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥R R B
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20 SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 20 BREE)
(a) The terms and conditions of the Share Options are (a) BERRE G RIEHEDT « (&)
as follows: (continued)

Exercise
price per Number Vesting
share  of options condition Expiry date
BR BRE
TRER #E BTt HHAH
Options granted to employees: ~ HRERFET .
—on 11 August 2014 —RZE-mF $0.419 4,000,000 Vesting 10 August 2024
JNA+—H on 1 August 2015
RZZE-h%E/\H—H St 1f-2
5B NAtHE
—on 11 August 2014 —RZE-mF $0.419 4,000,000 Vesting 10 August 2024
NAt+—8 on T August 2017
R=F—+tF/\A—H —FomE
BB AVRa=
— on 27 October 2016 —RZE-RF $0.70 4,260,000  Vestingon 1 July 2017 26 October 2026
+A=++tHR
RZE—tFtA—H ZTRF
RE TA=1/<H
—on 27 October 2016 —RZE—RE $0.70 4,260,000  Vestingon 1 July 2018 26 October 2026
+A=t+H
RZF-\FtA—H NG
5B THAZTAXAH
— on 27 October 2016 —RZE-RF $0.70 5,680,000  Vestingon 1July2019 26 October 2026
+A=t+H
RZZE-NFtA—H —ECRE
FE +A=t+xH
Total number of share options BREEY 42,700,000

*  AARRFRTEERTZER
BZEBIURANANEE 2 X8
R B A FRAF

* The vesting of the Share Options granted to an
executive director of the Company is subject to the
performance of the Group and other conditions.
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20 SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

B S ¥ R B

20 HBRRRE(E)

A TTEIR)

(b)  The number and weighted average exercise prices (b) BERGHEERE MINEFEHITEBL
of share options are as follows: N
2018 2017
—E-NE “TtF
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options  exercise price of options
¥ I
T BREHE TEE  BREHE
000 ‘000
T T
Outstanding at the RERRARITRE
beginning of the year $0.58 42,200 $0.419 18,000
Granted during the year RERR T - - $0.70 24,700
Exercised during the year RERTTE $0.59 (6,470) - -
Forfeited during the year RERE = = $0.70 (500)
Outstanding at the end R R ARTTRE
of the year $0.58 35,730 $0.58 42,200
Exercisable at the end RERA{TE
of the year $0.47 18,790 $0.419 9,000

The Share Options outstanding as of 31 March
2018 had an exercise price of $0.419 or $0.70
(2017: $0.419 or $0.70) per share and a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 7.62 years

(2017: 8.64 years).

ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18 53R

R-Z—\FZA=+—8 ¥
KT 2 PR HE 2 17 (2 (AR AR

0.4197080.70 L (Z & —+F :

0.4197T3%0.70 ;) X hNEF1977

EEKNFHR7.62F(ZF—LF:

8.644F) o
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20 SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(0

Fair value of the Share Options and assumptions
The fair value of services received in return for
share options granted is measured by reference to
the fair value of share options granted. The estimate
of the fair value of the 2014 Share Options and
2016 Share Options granted was measured based
on the Trinomial Model, after taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the share
options were granted. The contractual life of the
share option and expectations of early exercise
were incorporated into the Trinomial Model. The
significant assumptions and inputs used in the
valuation model are as follows:

Fair value of and assumptions for 2014 share
options

Fair value at measurement date ~ $0.176 to $0.194

Share price $0.405
Exercise price $0.419
Risk-free interest rate 1.97%
Expected volatility 52.84%
Expected dividend yield 2.47%
Expected exercise multiple 221t02.8

Fair value of and assumptions for 2016 share
options

Fair value at measurement date  $0.239 to $0.271

Share price $0.70
Exercise $0.70
Risk-free interest rate 1.00%
Expected volatility 51.27%
Expected dividend yield 5.00%
Expected exercise multiple 1.8t0 4.0

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 32l BEIFR =i A IR A &

AR

B TTAIR)

20 HBRRRE(E)

(9]

BREZzAFEREERR

P W2 75 4 B 4 B RO 2 R %
ZRFEDSRMARHBREZ
RNFHEFE AIRE-F—0E
R —F— R BRELATE
BETRFT R E BB E AR H
AR BRI R R IR = R E R
e BEREZANFHRESR
TREZEHEMA=ZBAEL
A HEEAMERAZEARE
KBIEWT

“E-NBRREAFERMERR

&
REtEBZAFE $0.176 &
$0.194
mHEE $0.405
1T (E®R $0.419
mRE A 1.97%
TEHAR 18 52.84%
TEHRR Bl X 2.47%
TEHATT R (58K 22%238

“E-ABREAFERMERR

&
REtEBZAFE $0.239 %
$0.271
MiSEE $0.70
1B (ER $0.70
#1  fx F) Z 1.00%
TEHARK 18 51.27%
TEHRR Bl & 5.00%
TEHATT R (EEX 1.8%24.0
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 58 #¢RASM -

20 SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(0

(d

Fair value of the Share Options and assumptions
(continued)

Risk-free interest rate is based on the yields of the
Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes at the grant date.
Expected volatility is based on the historical
volatility (calculated based on the weighted average
remaining life of the share options). Expected
dividend yield is based on historical dividend trend
of the Company and expected future dividend
policy determined by management.

The vesting of the share options granted are subject
to the performance of the Group and other
conditions. Such non-market conditions have not
been taken into account in the grant date fair value
measurement of the share options. There are no
market conditions associated with the share options
granted.

The Trinomial Model is subject to certain
fundamental limitations because of the subjective
nature of and uncertainty relating to the
assumptions and inputs to the model as well as
certain inherent limitations of the model itself. Any
changes in the above assumptions or inputs may
materially affect the fair value estimation.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss for the
year ended 31 March 2018 in respect of the Share
Options is $2,908,000 (2017: $2,561,000) (note
29(a)).

B S ¥ R B

A TTEIR)

20 HBRRRE(E)

(o)

(d

BRRE AT EREBRR(E)

BERRNXEZREESIINEES
BEHFAERE B 2 WX - FHEHK
I8 R AR IR I SR R (AR 1% B8 I i
Z IR FHREGHRETE) - B
HEREXRRENRARZREESE
FCER M E IR BTRRT AR BBUR

Bz Bz BBBURNAE
B2 A R ELADIRAT © LIFTH S
RHEEZBRERHBRAEE
ARTFEZFE - RERERRER
HER ARz TSEETH#2
E

AR Z KL EAKR ) -
FTHMERERBRREEE
THEEM  UERETEBEAR
FZRRME - Bl RRIBES
EE R AP ERBTEL
EDN-Z

HE_ZT—-N\F=ZA=+—H1
FE REZCERAZEBER
R E R 52908000 =%
— -+ % :2,561,0007C ) ( M 7%
29(a)) ©
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21 OTHER RESERVES 21 Hb{HE

230

Group (@ &E&E
Available-
for-sale
Capital  Share-based assets
Share  Treasury Capital Merger  redemption compensation ~revaluation ~ Translation
premium share  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve reserve Total
e
EXEE URHRA g2
BREE EER AARE  AHRE R <HERE EfRE LRERE RS
$000 $/000 $/000 $/000 $/000 $/000 $000 $'000 $'000
i i i i i i i i i
Balance at 1 April 2016 CE-AEMA-BRER 274454 - 2,608 (38,000) 459 2,287 56 (1079) 240,785
Currency translation differences ~ SHHEXE - - - - - - - (29876)  (29,876)
Equity settled share-based IRIA (2 525
transactions (note 20) (Hiz£20) - - - - - 2,561 - - 2,561
Fair value gains on available- ~ HIHESHEEATE
for-sale financial assets - - - - - - - 9 - 9
Repurchase of shares IR (P2 21 i)
(note 21(c)(iii)) - (875) - - - - - - (875)
Balance at 31 March 2017 ZE-tEZA=+-H
k3 274,454 (875) 2,608 (38,000 459 4,848 65 (30,955) 212,604
Balance at 1 April 2017 “E-tEMA-Az&H 274,454 (875) 2,608 (38,000) 459 4,848 65 (30,955) 212,604
Currency translation differences ~ EHAEZE - - - - - - - 65,974 65,974
Equiy settled share-based PRAZA 225
transactions (note 20) (Hiz£20) - - - - - 2,908 - - 2,908
Fairvalue gains on available- At ESBEELTE
for-sale financial assets pd e - - - - - - 223 - 223
Cancellation of shares R (FEE21(0i)
(note 21(c)(iii)) - 9,577 - - 811 - - - 10,388
Issuance of share upon exercise {7 EEIRIEE ZITR
of share ptions (note 19(c)) (BEE19(c) 4,521 - - - - (1,341) - - 3,180
Release of exchange reserve HERBAAREHER
upon disposal of subsidiaries £ (FifzE35)
(note 35) - - - - - - - 944 944
Repurchase of shares EIEER (7 (3 21 ()i
(note 21(c)(iii)) - (8,702) - - - - - - (8,702)
Balance at 31 March 2018 —E-\EZB=1-H
A 3] 278,975 - 2,608 (38,000) 1,270 6,415 288 35,963 287,519
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21 OTHER RESERVES (continued) 21 Hftffs (@)
(b) Company (b) ZFATFE
Available-
for-sale
Capital Share-hased assets
Share Treasury ~ redemption  Contributed compensation  revaluation
premium share reserve surplus reserve reserve Total
IS
N BB XM BE2
KRG EE ERR B BARK ZHMERE ERRE Bt
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T I T I I T I
Balance at 1 April 2016 —E-XEMA-R
Ay 274,454 - 459 193,185 2,287 56 470,441

Equity settled share-based DA 2% 5

transactions (note 20) (P3£20) - - - - 2,561 - 2,561
Fair value gains on available- A{EHESREE
for-sale financial assets ATE W - - - - - 9 9
Repurchase of shares IR
(note 21 (c)(iii)) (MRE21(0) i) - (875) - - - - (875)
Balance at 31 March 2017 —Z—+%
ZR=t-Bz&H 274,454 (875) 459 193,185 4,848 65 472,136
Balance at 1 April 2017 ZE-tF@A-H
pd 274,454 (875) 459 193,185 4,848 65 472,136

Equity settled share-based  BARA% I 2% 5

transactions (note 20) (FH5£20) - - - - 2,908 - 2,908
Fair value gains on available- [t ESBERE

for-sale financial assets AFE WEE - - - - - 223 223
Repurchase of shares EE Rk

(note 21 (c)(iii)) (B E 21 (c)iii)) - (8,702) - - - - (8,702)
Cancellation of shares kR

(note 21(c)(iii) (P21 (c) i) - 9,577 811 = - - 10,388

Issuance of shares upon T BRERETRA
exercise of share options (£ 19(c))
(note 19(c)) 4,521 - - - (1,341) - 3,180

Balance at 31 March 2018 =—Z—-N\F
=R=t-Hz&&H 278,975 - 1,270 193,185 6,415 288 480,133

231



232

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥R R B
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21 OTHER RESERVES (continued)

(b)

(o

Company (continued)

Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
contributed surplus is distributable to shareholders,
subject to the condition that the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution
out of contributed surplus if (i) it is, or would after
the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they
become due, or (ii) the realisable value of its assets
would thereby be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium account.

At 31 March 2018, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of
the Company was $433,919,000 (2017:
$379,172,000). After the end of the reporting
period, the directors proposed a final dividend of
HK4.75 cents per ordinary share (2017: final
dividend of HK4.2 cents and special dividend of
HK1.0 cent per ordinary share), amounting to
$94,661,000 (2017: $103,803,000) (note 34(a)).
This dividend has not been recognised as a liability
at the end of the reporting period.

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Translation reserve
The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
entities outside Hong Kong. The reserve is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies set out in note 2(y).

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 32l BEIFR =i A IR A &
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B TTAIR)

Hiw 6 (&)

(b)

(0

ERATF ()
REBEBRE-NAN—FRADE
ESN %&A%%T#"/ﬁ%ﬁx%
BEXMRERHAR

NEMEE - &(u EI\éEFZ—Jﬂ*“
REEFSEEAMIREBERE

E?&f?ﬂxﬂiﬁﬂxfﬁ/ﬁnﬁza\%‘%
B AARBAAER - XK
8 RUEBABRIEL DR

T )\E_)EJ_-F*EI'EI
NREEEFEAZFE
%@%@%433 919,000 (=Z—+
4 :379,172,0007T ) ° TR B K
% EEEFZBRERARES
AR EmAZ4.75 B (ZF—FF -
RER B BT @AY 42800 &
FrRIAR B F AR E @A 1.084L) -
% %85 94,661,0000( —F —+
$ 103,803,000t ) ( B 3

(@) ° Jitﬂﬁ R R BRI R
EE; RAE

REZMERAN

(iy BERE
BERREREREREMN
SNE BRI MR T A 4 2 P
BINEEZER - BRAREHEIR
EHIRE2(y) BF 2 EETR
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21 OTHER RESERVES (continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

Available-for-sale assets revaluation reserve
The available-for-sale assets revaluation
reserve comprises the cumulative net change
in the fair value of available-for-sale equity
securities held at the end of the reporting
period and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies set out in note 2(g).

Treasury share

The Group repurchased a total of 7,142,000
(2017: 968,000) of the Company’s shares
during the year ended 31 March 2018. The
total consideration paid to repurchase these
shares was $8,702,000 (2017: $875,000),
which has been deducted from equity
attributable to the owners of the Company.
During the year ended 31 March 2018,
8,110,000 shares (2017: nil) were cancelled.
Accordingly, the premium of $9,577,000
(2017: nil) paid on the repurchase of shares
was charged to retained earnings.

Capital redemption reserve

Upon cancellation of 8,110,000 shares (2017:
nil), an amount equivalent to the par value of
the shares cancelled of $811,000 (2017: $nil)
was transferred from share capital to the
capital redemption reserve.

B S ¥ R B

A TTEIR)

21 Hiuf#E (#&)
(0 HREZHEREMN(E)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Tl EAE B
A S EEE R E D
RS R 2 TR E
BAESATEY REE
B R EN 20 B
BRI -

E7 AR

HE 22— NFE=ZA=1—
HIEFER - KEEHEE
7,142,000 A QRIS (=
= — + F :968,000/% ) °
ABEBZROHBEINRER
8,702,000 T(=F —+t 4 :
875,0007C ) * Z A ELE )
RATIRRELERP
BReHEZ—_ZT—-N\F=H
T+ —BLEFEE R
8,110,000 H( =& — &
F-H|)BEWEEHE Bt
AEEBROMINZRE
9,577,000 C(ZE—+ 4% :
) ERNRERFIZEH -

e N E

7 FE $58,110,0000% 15 ( =
T—+tF:EE BHER
B EAR D EE 811,000 7T
(ZE—tF:\)za82
AR 7N 88 % = 8 N E B
1 o
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B TTAIR)

22 TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND OTHER 22 B3 EMIER - B BARH
PAYABLES it B A9 1 5K
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
$000 $'000
Fr Tt
Trade payables g FEMIRR 208,737 230,309
Accruals for rental expenses itk 17,323 30,805
Accruals for purchase of property, FERTREEWE - WE R&E
plant and equipment 24,053 22,928
Salaries and staff welfare payable EftHe k8 ITEN 175,491 139,294
Accruals for properties under JESTIEE Y2
development 14,487 12,586
Other payables and accruals HEMEMIERREER 114,532 109,952
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, L0
554,623 545,874

The carrying amounts of trade payables, accruals and
other payables approximate their fair values. All trade
payables and accruals as at 31 March 2018 and 2017 are
expected to be settled within one year.

BHREMNER - BT &R REMEN
RAZIREERQAFEEL - R=F
—NEER_T—tF=ZA=+—HZ
BB Z MRS N EEREHR

—FRBER -
Trade payables ageing analysis, based on invoice date, is B HRMNIRFIRE R BPAE 2R
as follows: DHTIT

2018 2017
“B-N\F T —+F
$000 $'000
Fr FT
0 to 90 days 0£90H 197,284 220,017
91 to 180 days 912180 H 8,047 9,216
181 to 360 days 1812360 H 2,794 276
Over 360 days 360 HEA | 612 800
208,737 230,309
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise

23 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 23
At 31 March 2018, the Group had obligations under
finance leases repayable as follows:

B S ¥ R B

indicated) (Fx =B AN - AETTIIR)

RIEHE T &IE
RZE-—NF=ZA=+—0 A&£E
BHERAHETREDT

2018 2017
—B-N\E “E—+F
Present Present
value of Total value of Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
RIEHE REAE RERE RERE
REZRE REAE  JEZBE TRAE
$'000 $'000 §'000 §'000
7 5 7t 7
Within one year —ER - - 17 23
In the second to fifth years, F_EFREA
inclusive - - 77 92
Over five years RENE - - 34 37
- 128 152
Less: future finance charges B ARBEER - (24)
Present value of lease obligations M E#RERE - 128
Representing: &
Non-current portion ERBES = 111
Current portion mEBE - 17
- 128

All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no
arrangements have been entered into for contingent
rental payments.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the obligations
under finance leases of $95,000 included in the
discontinued operations were disposed of to a related
party (note 35).
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EHEREEEREEEZAR L
ERRAR S RLHE -

B2 \F=ZA=+—HILFE
A B E A& A95,000 T B
RIEE TRAE 2 B b %5 (MY
#£35) °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B a:BASN - SUETLEIR)

24 BANK BORROWINGS 24 RITEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
$000 $'000
T Tt
Portion of bank borrowings —FREEZRITEE
repayable within one year =137 135,002 50,333
Bank borrowings classified as DERRBABEZRITEE
current liabilities 135,002 50,333
Portion of bank borrowings —FREERIER
repayable after one year and FRBEBEZRITEE
classified as non-current 2 Ehn
liabilities 490,900 489,467
Total bank borrowings RITIEE B 625,902 539,800
Representing: Rk
Secured A 190,000 100,000
Unsecured A 435,902 439,800
Total bank borrowings RITEERSE 625,902 539,800
As at 31 March 2018, banking facilities of $240,000,000 RZZE—N\F=ZA=+—0' ' A&H
(2017: $240,000,000) were secured by the share capital %17 B & % 240,000,000 7T (= F — £
of the two wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, F 240,000,000 7T ) AR 2 &) & & M
Castfast Industrial (Yan Tien) Limited and R 25 &= i BAR MAZEZBEESHMARA
EFEZE AR ZAT], such facilities were utilised to extent of AkREREEHERETRAFZ
$190,000,000 as at 31 March 2018 (2017: BRAEER MR _F—-N\F=A
$100,000,000). =+ HBHEwBAZRERER

190,000,0007c( — & — + #F:
100,000,000 7T) ©
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24

25

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 58 #¢RASM -

BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

At 31 March 2018, borrowings totalling $135,002,000
(2017: $50,333,000) have a contractual maturity within
one year or are subject to repayment on demand clauses.
Some of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the
fulfilment of covenants relating to certain of the Group’s
statement of financial position ratios. If the Group were
to breach the covenants the drawn down facilities would
become payable on demand. The Group regularly
monitors its compliance with these covenants. As at 31
March 2018 none of the covenants relating to drawn
down facilities had been breached.

The carrying amounts of bank borrowings approximate
their fair values and are denominated in HKS.

TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(@ Current taxation

24

25

B S ¥ R B

A TTEIR)

RITEEE)
RZZT—N\F=A=+—8 " R{7E
BEAHEBBEA—FRAZBNIZE
KB B KR 2 & %8 $£135,002,0007C
(ZZ—+4% :50,333,0007T) ° K&
EHHRITRVE BFFHEAEEE T
BRARLEEBER o RABERITES
AEE - MASEEZEREBARZE - A
EXBMCRERRERER A5E
FHERHABFTEREZHAIBR - B
—“ET-N\FE=ZA=+—H  #HEHEE
THRMERB s RHEEER -

RITEEZREAEREQAFERIR
ABTTRENL -

RiGE M BRI KR FBIR

(@) ZAHIBIIE

2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+F
$’000 $'000
Fr T
Provision for Hong Kong FEEBNEH 2 EF
Profits Tax for the year 19,224 18,431
Provisional Hong Kong EREHEBFET
Profits Tax paid (14,656) (14,514)
4,568 3,917
Balance of Hong Kong ARTFEEENEH
Profits Tax provision SEfEE > sk an
relating to prior years 5,513 4,333
Provision for PRC taxes I PRIS T 2 2 61,508 45,451
71,589 53,701
Current tax recoverable ZNHA BT g [m 75 18 (138) (1,701)
Current tax payable RNEAFE IR 71,727 55,402
71,589 53,701
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 5/ a<BA4M «

25 TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(continued)

(b)

Deferred taxation

25

B TTAIR)

RERE PR R FBIE (&)

(b) ELEHIEH

Fair value
gain of
Accelerated investment
Deferred tax liabilities EERESE depreciation properties Others Total
MEFE  ATEzME Hite A4
$000 $000 $'000 $/000
Tr T Tr Tr
At1 Apri| 2016 “E-R"ENA-H 6,183 1,586 4,257 12,026
(Credited)/charged to REBZEGA) /X8
profit or loss (502) 338 - (164)
Exchange difference HpzER - (74) - (74)
At 31 March 2017 and “E-+F¥=A=t-H
1 April 2017 E-8-+EMA-A 5,661 1,850 4,257 11,788
(Credited)/charged to REHEGIA)/ X #
profit or loss (2,098) 519 - (1,579)
Discontinued operations BRIEEERB (HEE35)
(note 35) - - (4,257) (4,257)
Exchange difference HpzER - 201 - 201
At 31 March 2018 —Z2-N\f£=A=1+-H 3,583 2,570 - 6,153
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA AN - LABITLIIR)

25 TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED 25 RAEREMBEARRKPBIEE)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(continued)
(b) Deferred taxation (continued) (b) EZEHEE)
Deferred tax assets FEERIBEE Tax losses Others Total
BIEE R Hity e
$000 $000 $000
FIT FIT Tt
At 1 April 2016 —2-X¥NA—-AH (2,428) (638) (3,066)
Charged/(credited) to ISEES 3 VACUN)
profit or loss 296 (887) (591)
At 31 March 2017 and —E2—+t&=A=1+-H
1 April 2017 F=E—tFWA—H (2,132) (1,525) (3,657)
Credited to profit or loss REREFTA (1,526) (4,354) (5,880)
At 31 March 2018 —E-N\E=A=+-H (3,658) (5,879) (9,537)
The deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset ERAEEMNABELEHRIBEE
when there is a legally enforceable right to set off BURFER IR GBI - MEEM
and when the deferred income taxes relate to the BRPRE—THE - RIA
same tax jurisdiction. The following amounts, REMIAEERRIERBRESR
determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown AR - Rt ABEEHEE®RZ - T
in the consolidated statement of financial position: 5 & RN AR A B IR R 2R A B
T~
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
$’000 $'000
Fr Tt
Deferred tax assets BB EE (7,354) (1,524)
Deferred tax liabilities BERIEBE 3,970 9,655
(3,384) 8,131
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 5B FBAIN -

25 TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(continued)

(b)

Deferred taxation (continued)

At 31 March 2018, in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2(v), the Group
had unrecognised deferred tax assets of
approximately $14,133,000 (2017: $17,622,000)
primarily representing the tax effect of cumulative
tax losses (subject to agreement by relevant tax
authorities) which can be carried forward against
future taxable income, of which, tax losses of
$98,173,000 (2017: $119,725,000) can be carried
forward indefinitely.

26 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

(@)

Defined contribution plans

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong
employees to join the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), a defined contribution
scheme managed by an independent trustee. Under
the MPF Scheme, each of the Group and its
employees makes monthly contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined
under the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation.
Both the Group’s and the employees’ mandatory
contributions are subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of $30,000 and thereafter,
contributions are voluntary.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC,
the Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement
plans for its employees in the PRC. The Group’s
annual contributions to these plans represent
defined contributions, and the Group has no further
obligations for the actual payment of pensions or
post-retirement benefits beyond the annual
contributions. The state-sponsored retirement plans
are responsible for the entire pension obligations
payable to retired employees.

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 32l BEIFR =i A IR A &

B TTAIR)

25 REESMBRRERPHIEE)

(b)

LR E (&)

RZE—-NEFE=A=+—0 &
RBERSFTBUORME2(v) « A&
EABMRBECHEELED
14,133,00070( — & — + F:
17,622,0007C) * T ER K R &t
MIEBEBCHEYE(BAXER
MBKBERE)  ZeBAlERXK
R A - MBIEEBL
98,173,000t( = T — + % :
119,725,000 7t ) A] #E R AR 4% 42 -

26 ERAKBRAEME

(@)

REMFREE

REBELHEBEEDERS
MREeFE([RESFTED -
BB BN R EMHKEE
MBI RTEAEE - BiERES
e ARERERESAYIR
EBAEEZAB(EER G
NREEEN) 5% H ezt 8 /EH 4#
HeAEBREBEZBAABRE
IA30,000 70 A& EBR + H1& 7 3K
AlBBREItE -

REBEHPREZERE  AKREAR
ATBEREEMREZBRENER
IREFBIE LR - REB A LT
B2 FHABFAEHRK - kY
HAR A B BURR S 3T H SR IR
& A R B B AR AR < SRIK
BEZMAERKEXH—BHE
REZRNFTEIRE -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 58 #¢RASM -

26 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

(continued)

(b)

Defined benefit retirement plan — Long service
payments

Provision for long service payments represents the
Group’s obligations for long service payments to its
employees in Hong Kong on cessation of
employment in certain circumstances under the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.

The obligation is calculated using the projected unit
credit method, discounted to its present value and
reduced by entitlements accrued under the Group’s
retirement plans that are attributable to contributions
made by the Group. Such long service payment
obligations are valued by BMI Appraisals Limited,
an independent qualified actuary valuer.

The amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position are determined as
follows:

B S ¥ R B

A TTEIR)

26 BRURBREEE)

(b)

RERAKBANGE — RBKRHK
€
RHRBEGBHAEERER
BRERES TR TRIEE
PR B s 2 REIRIE & P17
EZzEE-

ZEBEERNBF B EEAG
8 U EMBRELRNGRAEE
RAREHEI T ARBE PTG 2
R - ZERARGEEERS
VARBRBEMPMAEFEE
[RARIAEE -

REFEM BN KER 2 S RIE
THTAEE :

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
$’000 $'000
Fx Tt
Present value of unfunded KIEIEETZRER
obligations and liability in RERB BB ERA
the consolidated statement of ZafE
financial position 7,718 5,642

A portion of the above asset/liability is expected to
be recovered/paid after more than one year.
However, it is not practicable to segregate this
amount from the amounts payable in the next
twelve months, as future contributions will also
relate to future services rendered and future changes
in actuarial assumptions and market conditions. The
Group expects to pay $123,000 in contributions to
defined benefit retirement plan for the year ending
31 March 2019 (2018: $323,000).

FEE BBz —BoEHE
RBB—FRKE e R
i e EEARR+ZEA
B z2BEHRALTAT RE
RAR RIS R AR R IR 2 AR
BRAKBERZEMIGERLLZ
W - BHE2E_ZT—hLh&F=ZA
=t+—HIEFERN KEBETEH
M R E R K8 R &8 T R
123,000t( = & — N\ F:
323,0007T) ©
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26 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 26 EBAKBAEE#E)
(continued)
(b) Defined benefit retirement plan — Long service by RERKBEFNTEH — REBKRE
payments (continued) & (&)
The amounts recognised in the consolidated RiFE B KAt 2 U ARHE
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive RZTEWT -

income are as follows:

2018 2017
—®-NF —T—+tF
$000 $'000
T Tt
Current service cost ZNER AR 15 AR AR 166 115
Interest on obligation BEAEME 101 130
Total amounts recognised in RERDOERAZESRE
profit or loss (note 29(a)) (FfsE29(a)) 267 245
Net actuarial losses/(gains) REM 2 ERA B ER
recognised in other BEFER (W)
comprehensive income 2,213 (2,017)
Total (g 2,480 (1,772)
The current service cost and the net interest on KERBRAEFEEFNEER
obligation were included in the “general and EREGeBEaRT —RETHRE
administrative expenses” in the consolidated A -

statement of profit or loss.
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26 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 26 REKBREEE)
(continued)
(b) Defined benefit retirement plan — Long service by RERKBEFNTEH — RBKRK

payments (continued)

Movements in the provision for long service

& (&)

AEERYPRGEEHBES N

payments of the Group are as follows: N
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
$000 $'000
Fr T
Beginning of the year F9 5,642 7,653
Remeasurements: BIETE
— Actuarial gains arising — AV BBRRNEEE
from changes in ZIEE WS
financial assumption (169) (272)
— Actuarial losses/(gains) arising ~ — FARBFALRES 2
from experience adjustment TEEEE,(IRES) 2,382 (1,745)
2,213 (2,017)
Payments made during the year FARRHRK (404) (239)
Current service cost N E N 166 115
Interest cost F B 101 130
End of the year FE 7,718 5,642

ATEINETZINEFHER A
10.7F (=T —+4F : 13.84) °

The weighted average duration of the defined
benefit obligation is 10.7 years (2017: 13.8 years).
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26 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 26 RIKBREEE)
(continued)
(b) Defined benefit retirement plan — Long service by RERKBEFNTEH — REBKRE
payments (continued) & (&)
Significant actuarial assumptions and sensitivity BE2REZRREBURES A
analysis are as follows: e
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Per annum Per annum
BF BF
Discount rate BEIR & 1.98% 1.80%
Expected rate of R E B 2 TEHERIE R &
future salary increases 3.00% 4.00%
The below analysis shows how the defined benefit RZE-NKRZZE—tF=H
retirement plan — long service payments as at 31 =t—H EZKRERBRRKIE
March 2018 and 2017 would have increased/ n/CRi2) 0.50% 57 5E 18 Fl3R
(decreased) as a result of 0.50% change in the KetgEl — KRR 2 E D
significant actuarial assumptions: T
2018 2017
—B-N\F “FtF
Increase in Decrease in Increase in Decrease in
0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50%
1 10.50% B2 0.50% B 10.50% i 0.50%
$000 $000 $'000 $'000
Fr T T T
Discount rate BhIE & (375) 457 (1,230) 1,446
Expected rate of ~ RREFH# 2
future salary BHERR
increases 15 22) 173 (178)
The above sensitivity analysis is based on the VA | BURRE 2 A R B R E B
assumption that changes in actuarial assumptions BERRZERBEME@EY -
are not correlated and therefore it does not take into IR BAERIEE B & -

account the correlations between the actuarial

assumptions.
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27 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME/GAINS AND

B S ¥ R B

A TTEIR)

27 WA - HRA s K (&18)

(LOSSES)
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
RERERY BRLEREEK
2018 2017 2018 2017
“B-N\F T+ ZB-N\F CT+F
$000 $'000 $000 $'000
Fr T Fr T
(Restated) (Restated)
(BE50) (BE3I)
Revenue LON
Sales of merchandise and Em i & SRR
provision of services
— Metal and plastic business — e BBEK 1,576,143 1,436,843 - -
— Electronic manufacturing —EFEERIEH
services business 1,294,778 1,256,973 - -
— Others —Hfty 419 1,636 25,896 17,408
2871340 2,695,452 25,896 17,408
Sale of properties MEHE 48,540 4,186 - -
2,919,880 2,699,638 25,896 17,408
Other income/gains and (losses) ~ E KA Wiz K (K1)
Rental income el 2,622 2,719 = =
Gain/(loss) on disposal of HEME  BERRE
property, plant and equipment 73/ (E518) 3,175 1,101 (93) (6)
Gain on liquidation of BEMBAR W
a subsidiary - 487 - -
Impairment loss on AHESREEY
available-for-sale A {EEE
financial assets - (201) - -
Impairment loss on investment  REE AR ZHREZ
in an associate EEE = (2,490) = =
Others Hity 92 2,117 1 =
5,889 3,733 92) (6)
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246

28 EXPENSES BY NATURE 28 RUEEIEZERA
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
BHERERH BRILREXK
2018 2017 2018 2017
“B-N\F 25 ZB-NF CZFAF
$000 $'000 $/000 §'000
Tr T Fr T
(Restated) (Restated)
(BE51) (B&31)
Carrying amount of BEFEZIRAE
inventories sold (note 16(b)) (HiEE16(0b) 2,134,068 2,011,845 15,306 10,357
Carrying amount of EEMEZIREE
properties sold (note 17(b) (F5E17(0)) 29,762 955 - -
Depreciation of property, W% - BEIE
plant and equipment (note 7): ZHE (W7 :
— owned assets —BBEE 49,119 49,806 5,844 3,750
— leased assets —HEEE = 4,618 27 14
49,119 54,424 5,871 3,764
Amortisation of land TR B
use rights (note 6) GET) 472 472 - -
Amortisation of intangible B AE &H
assets (note 9) (H3x9) 1,293 1,257 2,400 2,400
Employee benefit expenses EERBIFAX (BRESF
(including directors’ B2 ) (PHEE29(a)
remuneration) (note 29(a)) 385,912 356,570 17,329 10,743
Operating lease rental of NEEERERS
premises 5,565 9,813 12,759 7,345
Net exchange (gain)/loss B (W), E1BFE (4,947) (2,937) 359 61)
Auditor’s remuneration it Gl 3,300 3,081 18 11
Other expenses B 59,112 48,780 6,670 4,188
2,663,656 2,484,260 60,712 38,747
Representing: K&
Cost of revenue WAFAR 2,497,094 2,331,434 50,087 30,936
Distribution and selling expenses 285X HE & A 29,677 23,194 1,699 893
General and administrative —MRRITHER
expenses 136,885 129,632 8,926 6,918
2,663,656 2,484,260 60,712 38,747
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B S ¥ R B

A TTEIR)

29 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES — 29 EEEAXZH —BRFEEME
INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
(@ Employee benefit expenses during the year are as @ FAEREEAZHMT :
follows:
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
RESEEK BRILEEEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
“EF-0\F ZFtF ZE-N\F 2 AR
$'000 $'000 $/000 $'000
Tr T Fr Fr
(Restated) (Restated)
(B&3) (B E5)
Wages and salaries HFMRIE 361,492 335,434 16,894 10,491
Contributions to REHFBMNEE
defined contribution I
retirement plans 21,245 18,330 435 252
Provision for long service RERB &R
payments (note 26) (M 26) 267 245 = -
Share option expenses RRARIE X i
(note 20(d)) (BrEE20(d)) 2,908 2,561 - -
385,912 356,570 17,329 10,743
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29 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES — 29 EERAXE — BEESHE

INCLUDING DIRECTORS” REMUNERATION (%)

(continued)

(b) Directors’ remuneration b EE=EME
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to BRIBEERRIGOIFEIBERRD
section 383 of the Hong Kong Companies AP ZE S (EEESS
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies Ordinance FeBEBEERRIIZESHE
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of WEWT :

Directors) Regulation is as follows:

2018
“E-N\F
Employer's
contributions Share-hased
Discretionary ~ to retirement payments
Name of director B4R Fees Salary bonuses plans Subtotal (note) Total
MERH RS WRHRH
ik #e 2R ZEEME et EE (W) aft
$/000 $'000 $'000 $/000 $'000 $'000 $'000
R o R r o T T
Executive directors HiEE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai (Blctyina - 4 23% - 7116 - 7116
Mr. Zhao Kai bl - 1,126 2079 16 31 9 3315
Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia FamME - 836 891 18 1,745 537 2,282
Mr. Chan Raymond Rt - 978 1,022 18 2,018 537 2,555

Non-executive directors FHEE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming Elkibia 150 - 30 - 180 - 180
Mr. Ho Kai Man fmaEE 433 = 136 18 587 = 587

Independent non-executive BV HHTEE

directors
Mr. So Wai Chun Blkrt 100 - - - 100 - 100
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing bl v 100 - - - 100 - 100
Mr. Yam Chung Shing gL 100 - - - 100 54 154
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29 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES — 29 EERAXZEH — BRESME
INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (%)
(continued)
(b) Directors’ remuneration (continued) b)) E=ME(E)
2017
“TtF
Employer's
contributions Share-based
Discretionary  to retirement payments
Name of director PR Fees Salary bonuses plans Subtotal (note) Total
BEEN  RAEHE DYGES)
#s e L ZEEER U\ (i) A4
$'000 $'000 $'000 §'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T S T T T T
Executive directors HIEZ
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai ERssE - 4676 2,388 - 7,064 - 7,064
Mr. Zhao Kai il s - 952 1,729 13 2,694 77 2971
Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia B2 ME - 809 649 18 1476 396 1,672
Mr. Chan Raymond RRUEA - 797 739 15 1,551 39 1947
Non-executive directors FHTEE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming BEL)R: 100 - - - 100 - 100
Mr. Ho Kai Man R 40 - 115 18 553 - 553
Independent non-evecutive BV 5 {7EE
directors
Mr. So Wai Chun BREAE 100 - - - 100 - 100
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing N 100 - - - 100 - 100
Mr. Yam Chung Shing EEHEE 100 - - - 100 40 140
Note: These represent the estimated value of share options MizE : R EBEARAGTBEREST

granted to the directors under the Company’s share
option scheme. The value of these share options is
measured according to the Group’s accounting policies
for share-based payments as set out in note 2(u). The
details of these share options, including the principal
terms and number of options granted, are disclosed in
note 20 to the financial statements.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18 53R

ARTESF 2 HATBRER
B tEBREEERERE
75 B # A R 2(u) PARR
SRz 5 RERAHE
WEBREZFE BEE
ZHRFREBEHE  RA
BTGRP RE 20 PR EE -

249



Notes to the Financial Statements

¢ B RS R R MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B a:BASN - SUETLEIR)

29 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES — 29 EERAXEH — BREESHE

INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (%)

(continued)

(c) Five highest paid individuals (00 HEEERSHFMMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the REEEEREEaTM AL
highest in the Group for the year include four (2017: BRENA(ZE—tF  mR)E
four) directors whose emoluments are reflected in E EMEEEHR LXK
the analysis presented above. The emoluments FREB—R(ZFT—LF: —
payable to the remaining one (2017: one) B)BREFATZENMESHT

individuals during the year are as follows:

2018 2017
—¥-NF -T+%
$'000 $000
Frx T
Basic salaries and allowances EARF e KERL 1,098 1,058
Discretionary bonus BY15 B 2 FEAT 332 459
Contributions to retirement plans R {RETE] 2 3% 18 18
Share-based payment VARS A7 S At =R B 234 176
1,682 1,711

The emoluments fell within the following band: LN TE N AASEENR

Number of individuals

AT EE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
$1,500,001 to $2,000,000 1,500,001 JTZ 2,000,000 7T 1 1
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30 FINANCE COSTS, NET

30

B S ¥ R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 58 #¢RASM -

PARS RS - FER

A TTEIR)

Continuing operations Discontinued operations
RFELEXK BRIEREXK
2018 2017 2018 2017
—2-N\F  ZEFtF ZEB-N\F CZEFLF
$000 $'000 $000 $'000
Tr T Fr T
(Restated) (Restated)
(BE51) (BE71)
Finance costs BB A
— Interest expense on —REFRRBEEZ
bank borrowings wholly RITEENEXH
repayable within five years 27,143 18,343 - -
— Finance charges on —RERS AL
obligations under MBER
finance leases - 141 5 1
Less: interest expenses W EERNENE
capitalised into property X AR (M)
under development for
sale (Note) (12,260) (6,905) - -
14,883 11,579 5 1
Finance income BBIRA
— Interest income from — FITERMERA
bank deposits (1,128) (662) @) ")
— Other interest income — HaFIBUA 414) (396) - -
(1,542) (1,058) @ (5)
Finance costs, net BIRAR  RE 13,341 10,521 1 (4)

Note: The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 3.23%
(2017: 2.73%) per annum.

MiEE : & & A A A F A £3.23%( =

—+H5F 1 2.73%) BN ©
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B 5 ¥R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B a:BASN - SUETLEIR)

31 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 31 REEEBRRTAAEHR
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
The amount of taxation charged to consolidated REFRBEEREZHANT

statement of profit or loss represents:

Continuing operations Discontinued operations

BEREEK BRIEBEELK
2018 2017 2018 2017
—B-N\F ZFtF ZE-0\F AR
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
Current taxation RETIE
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEMEHR
— current year —KFE 19,224 18,431 - -
— under/(over)-provision —FEZAR/(B8)
in prior years i 135 (581) - -
PRC taxes HREITRIE
— current year —FFE 22,115 3,547 = -
Deferred taxation EAERLIE (M 25(0))
(note 25(b)) (7,459) (755) - -
34,015 20,642 - _

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of FIERBEBKY 2 B R R TRER

252

16.5% (2017: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit
for the year for all group companies incorporated in
Hong Kong.

The Group’s operations in the PRC are subject to
Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC at the standard tax
rate of 25%. Land Appreciation Tax is levied on
properties in mainland China developed by the Group
for sale, at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on
the appreciation of land value, which under the
applicable regulations is calculated based on the revenue
from sale of properties less deductible expenditure
including lease charges of land use rights, borrowing
costs and all property development expenditure.

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 32l BEIFR =i A IR A &

FZAtERBEMNIR165%(=F
—EF 1 16.5%) LB EFERENE
T

AEERTRZEHRETHEER
TS BORIRIEER KR 25% M - A&
BRAEAFEEEHREREZYE
FRIMWEESHEUNRERKI0%E
60% EEFH X LA - LRE A
AP LHIRESBEIRBYEREE
W AR AT H0RI IR B (845 L b s F A2
EEM EBERARABEYMEERRA
) MEEE °
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31

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 58 #¢RASM -

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

31

The tax on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the profits
tax rate in Hong Kong, the Group’s place of domicile, as

follows:

B S ¥ R B

A TTEIR)

REEEBRBERPAEH (#)

AEEABRBRRADEN 2 HERRE
PR &S AN R B P A 3 2 RS 7 R
AEZEWRBECERZNT

Continuing operations

Discontinued operations

BESEXR BREREEK
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\E  —FtHF ZB-N\F —TLF
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr T Fr Tr
(Restated) (Restated)
(BE7) (BE5I)
Profit/(loss) before taxation ~ BFATEH,/(E1E) 251,722 210,195 (35,414) (21,341)
Calculated at taxation rate &% 16.5%
of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) (ZZ—F :16.5%)
itE 41,534 34,682 (5,843) (3,521)
Effect of different taxation FEMBAZRHEERY
rates in other countries TE 6,491 3,175 (1,242) (594)
Associates’ results reported ~ BtERFIEE -
net of tax MR (144) (1) - -
Income not subject BRARB WA
to taxation (25,136) (21,924) - (1
Expenses not deductible TR 2 X
for taxation purposes 4,186 4,378 4,383 2,276
Land appreciation tax MERWRE 2 THISEM
on sales of properties 5,903 743 - -
Temporary difference AERERER
not recognised 6 (933) 341 40
Over-provision for EFZBRHBZBRE
Hong Kong taxation
in prior years 135 (581) - -
Utilisation of previously {EREFARER
unrecognised tax losses HEER 27) (428) = =
Unused tax losses RERZAER
not recognised BERR 1,067 1,571 2,361 1,800
Income tax expense gy 34,015 20,642 = =
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¢ B 5 ¥R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B a:BASN - SUETLEIR)

32 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 32 RAREEFE ABRGGER
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
The profit attributable to equity shareholders of the NREEEFAARMGRE MY
Company is dealt with in the financial statements of the 199,341,0007t( = T — £ F:
Company to the extent of approximately $199,341,000 200,249,0007T) * ER AR A 2 B %
(2017: $200,249,000). WMRFRRIE o

33 EARNINGS PER SHARE 33 BRER
Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing BREARNRF,(EER) IREAR R
the profit/(loss) attributable to equity shareholders of the BamE ARIERF, (BB BRIAFE
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary NEBETZ ERRINEFHEE -

shares in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing BERERER(EB) HIREAA
the profit/(loss) attributable to equity shareholders of the AIEFEA ARMRER, (BB BRI
Company by weighted average number of ordinary FRADRTZEBIRMNEFHH L
shares in issue after adjusting the potential dilutive effect BBEAEBEYE 2 WARTTEBRER
of the outstanding options during the year. Ho
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B S ¥ R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA AN - LABITLIIR)

33 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 33 BRIERN (@)
2018 2017
—B2-N\F —EF
(Restated)
(B2E3)
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity RARERRE AEN
shareholders of the Company arises KEATEEZ
from ($'000) mAl, (E18) (F7e)
— Continuing operations — BECEER 217,707 189,553
— Discontinued operations — ERIEREER (35,144) (21,220)
182,563 168,333
Weighted average number of EEITE B T
ordinary shares in issue (TR
(in thousand shares) 1,995,081 1,996,196
Effect of outstanding share options MARITEBRE 2
(in thousand shares) (FR&ET) 18,265 6,354
Weighted average number of BEETERKR(EE) 2
ordinary shares (diluted) in issue InwEFE 8 (FRRET)
(in thousand shares) 2,013,346 2,002,550
Basic earnings/(loss) per share BRERNRFN,(EB)
(HK cent) (Al
— Continuing operations — FEKERY 10.9 9.5
— Discontinued operations — ERIEREER 1.7) (1.1)
— Profit for the year — FEim A 9.2 8.4
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share BErsREF, (Ei8)
(HK cent) (AL
— Continuing operations — HEREER 10.8 9.5
— Discontinued operations — ERIEREER 1.7) (1.1)
— Profit for the year — FEHEN 9.1 8.4
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¢ B 5 ¥R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B a:BASN - SUETLEIR)

34 DIVIDENDS 34 RE
(@ Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the @ BRAFEENFQXAERRZER
Company attributable to the year AZKRE
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —T—tF
$/000 $/000
T T
Interim dividend declared and EEMREIRER RS
paid of HK1.6 cent per BEmER1.671
ordinary share (:g—‘ti '
(2017: HK1.3 cent per FET@mAR1.380)
ordinary share) 31,942 25,951
Final dividend proposed after RS BIR R R R A S
the end of the reporting FEmik4.75 %810
period of HK4.75 cents per (ZE—t%F:
ordinary share BEmAk4.2%840)
(2017: HK4.2 cents per
ordinary share) 94,661 83,841
Special dividend declared of RACKGEEHEE NN &)
HK2.55 cents per ordinary FEmAz2.55 8L
share (2017: HK1.0 cent per (ZT—+kF:
ordinary share proposed after R E ERE #IR
the end of the reporting period) BEBI1.081) 50,861 19,962
177,464 129,754
The final and special dividends proposed after the PR EHREE R 2 KRB B )32
end of the reporting period have not been 5 RI AR B R4S BRI R FE R
recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting afE-
period.
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B S ¥ R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA AN - LABITLIIR)

34 DIVIDENDS (continued) 34 RE(#&)

(b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the by BRE-HMERFE  IRFRH
Company attributable to the previous financial ERKBEZENAARAERER
year, approved and paid during the year AZRE

2018 2017
—E-NE  —ET—tF
$000 $000
Fr TT
Final dividend in respect of HE—MBFE  BHE
the previous financial year, LB RFANRE 2 K
approved and paid during P B A 4.2 B
the year, of HK4.2 cents per (ZE—+F:
ordinary share BEmAk2.75%8()
(2017: HK2.75 cents per
ordinary share) 83,841 54,895
Special dividend in respect of SE—HRFEE  BHE
the previous financial year, MERFRIKEZ 55
approved and paid during PR EEFE R 1.0
the year, of HK1.0 cent per (ZF—+tF : &\)
ordinary share (2017: Nil) 19,962 -
103,803 54,895
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B 5 ¥R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B

35

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 12 January 2018, the Company entered into an
agreement with a related party, The Wedding Square
Company Limited, to dispose of the Company’s entire
equity interest in a wholly-owned subsidiary, Full Benefit
Global Holdings Limited, and its subsidiaries at an
aggregate consideration of $51,000,000. The transaction
was completed on 29 March 2018. A loss on disposal of
$505,000 was recognised in profit or loss for the year
ended 31 March 2018 under discontinued operations.
Further details are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 15 January 2018.

Full Benefit Global Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in consumer and services
business under the brand of “Fullhouse World”, such as
provision of catering services and sales of themed gifts in
Hong Kong, the PRC and Malaysia. In accordance with
the accounting policy set out in note 2(ac), as the
discontinued operations represented a separate major
line of business of the Group, its financial information
were separately presented in the financial statements of
the Group. Accordingly, the comparative amounts in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss were restated.

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 32l BEIFR =i A IR A &

AR

35

LA TEHIR)
BRIEEERE

RZE-—NF—A+=H A AH
BEFEEEARARGILHE - U
A E 51,000,000t HEFTIFE 2R F
REEZERERAFLEMNBAG 22
HEE e ZRXBERZT—/\F=A
ZTTHHhBZTK BEERIEEEER
18 F %8 505,000 TRt ABLEZZE— N\
FZA=Zt+—HIEFEZEBRKR 7
MANAER=_Z—)/\F—A+HHX
EBERERBEHA -

BFRRIERAR QB REKE QA
TEREE  PELFREEE [m
FR] mETZHEERIRGEE
% AR E SRR MSHE XS M o
RIBAEBE TN T 2(ac) 2 FTER
R HREREEEXRER/ARE—
HEBEEXY  EUBERRAE
BeHBRERPEBE - Btk £
EEREXRPZHBHRFE TET -
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B S ¥ R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA AN - LABITLIIR)

35 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 35 BRIEEEXK @)
The carrying amounts of assets and liabilities as at 29 RZE-NF=A-+TNAB(HER)
March 2018, the disposal date, were as follows: BERBBZIRAMBENAT :
$'000
It
Property, plant and equipment (note 7) M - BB REE (M 7) 32,194
Intangible assets (note 9) BV EE (FI5E9) 12,491
Inventories FE 4,269
Trade and bills receivable ER N ESEY LT 157
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BN RE R E AN ERIRSR 9,283
Cash and bank deposits Re RBITER 2,900
Trade payables B 5 EIRR (3,299)
Accruals and other payables FEEH B A I H A FE S IR 3K (5,102)
Obligations under finance leases (note 23) B AT E TAYE (M 23) (95)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 25(b)) BT A S & (T EE25(0) (4,257)
Net assets disposed of HEEEFE 48,541
Add: non-controlling interests oo FEFERRHE SR 2,020
Net assets disposed of attributable to the equity 72 B IFHE AEMN
shareholders of the Company HEEEFE 50,561
Less: consideration A XHEE (51,000)
(439)
Release of translation reserve upon HEHRBATRERE 2 ERHE
disposal of subsidiaries 944
Net loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB QR 2 FEE 505
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B 5 ¥R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B

SEBMAIN - AETIIR)
35 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 35
The results of the discontinued operations for the period
from 1 April 2017 to 29 March 2018 and for the year

ended 31 March 2017 are set out below:

EARIEREER (&)

RERIEBEXEBHR_T—+LFMA
—BEFT-N\F=ZA=-t+NABHRK
rEEZZT—+tF=A=1+—HIEHF

260

B2 EEESMT

Period from
1 April 2017 Year ended
to 29 March 31 March
2018 2017

H-Z—tF

A—HZE
—®-NE —T—tF
=ZA=t+hB =A=+—H
B HFE
$’000 $'000
T Tt
Revenue A 25,896 17,408
Cost of revenue L ONDZN (50,087) (30,936)
Gross loss Ei8 (24,191) (13,528)
Distribution and selling expenses DENHEE R (1,699) (893)
General and administrative expenses ~ —f& & 1T E (8,926) (6,918)
Other losses HabEsia (92) (6)
Operating loss KeEEE (34,908) (21,345)
Finance income B RS UL A 4 5
Finance costs B SRR AR (5) (1)
Finance (cost)/income, net & (R AR) IR - JE%E 1) 4
Loss before taxation BRI ATE R (34,909) (21,341)
Income tax Frig i - -

Loss after tax from discontinued KECDKRILEEER>
operations R EEE (34,909 (21,341)
Net loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR FER (505) -
Loss for the period/year from BN,/ FRREERIE

discontinued operations TS 7 18 (35,414) (21,341)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA AN - LABITLIIR)
35 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 35 BRIEEEXK @)
Period from
1 April 2017 Year ended
to 29 March 31 March
2018 2017
H=Z—t#F
R—H=Z
—E-NE —E—+F
=ZA=thB =ZA=t—H
B IFFE
$000 $’000
Frx Tt
Attributable to: Pk
Equity shareholders of the Company ~ ZARRQARI#EZEEFE A (35,144) (21,220)
Non-controlling interests FEYER M 21 (270) (121)
Loss for the period/year from MR/ FRREEKL
discontinued operations REXBHR (35,414) (21,341)
Cash flow RERE
Operating cash inflows KREReRE 16,417 11,211
Investing cash outflows KRERTRE (21,296) (9,216)
Financing cash outflows MERCRE (24) 126
Net cash (outflows)/inflows BRE(RE)RA (4,903) 2,121
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B a:BASN - SUETLEIR)

36  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT 36 EB/RHAKME
LIABILITIES
The Group had the following significant commitments REBBEUTRERNERE B HE
and contingent liabilities which were not provided for in FEHRE Bz ERAERIAAE

the consolidated financial statements:

(@) Capital commitments (@) EBEAREE
The Group had the following authorised and RZZE—N\F=ZA=+—HA" &
contracted capital commitments at 31 March 2018: EEEUTEREREZENZER
I
2018 2017
—®-NE —T—+tF
$000 $'000
T Tt
Construction of investment NEHEER = S0 Ry S
properties in the PRC - 3,387
Purchase of property, plant and WEWE  BELZE
equipment 12,780 9,179
12,780 12,566
(b) Planned expenditure (b) FrEIXH
At 31 March 2018, the Group has contracted for RZZE—NF=ZA=+—H K
further property development expenditure and the SEETNE—TMEERAX
related costs of internal fixtures and fittings REBEANEEREMGREAR
amounted to $26,151,000 (2017: $nil). 26,151,0007c( =T —+45 : &) -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA AN - LABITLIIR)

36 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT 36 RERDBAREE(2)

LIABILITIES (continued)

(c) Operating lease commitments
The Group had lease commitments in respect of
land and buildings under various non-cancellable
operating lease agreements extending to October
2055. The total commitments payable are analysed

(0

REBEERE
REBBZEHRE_TAAF
TATAIHEE 2 T3 B F &
HE W - LN AR DT A
I

as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
$’000 $000
Fr Tt
Not later than one year TBiBE—F 5,659 14,905

Later than one year and not later i —FETHBBAF
than five years 12,597 23,720
Later than five years ey o hakad 103,931 92,987
122,187 131,612

The Group had future minimum lease rental

receivable under non-cancellable operating leases Zﬂi%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ’%ﬂﬁﬂ@ :
as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —FBgts
$’000 $’000
F 5t FiL
Not later than one year @ —F 53 95
(d) Guarantees d) #ER
At 31 March 2018, the Company has given EA::; NE=A=+—H" $
guarantees totalling approximately $1,215,295,000 NER T BB E AR
(2017: $1,147,993,000) to financial institutions in BETHMMHEB AR 2B W%‘i\

connection with the banking facilities granted to its
subsidiaries. Such banking facilities utilised as at 31
March 2018 amounted to approximately
$625,902,000 (2017: $539,800,000).

‘

¥ 49 /51,215,295,000L( = &
— -+t 4 :1,147,993,0007T ) ° 1
—E-)N\F=ZA=1+—H: Bf&F
A Z 178 & %) /3 625,902,000
(= F — + % : 539,800,000
JL) °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B a:BASN - SUETLEIR)

37 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37 FEBEALIRS

(@ Transactions with related parties (@) EHEBEEATZRS
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
$’000 $000
Fr T
Purchase of goods: BEEW:
Purchase of properties held for FRBER B ERE

sale from a related company HEME - 42,359
Others: Ht :

Rental income from an associate  [AH & 2 &)W ERFE & A 278 331
Proceed from disposal of subsidiaries & Mf & A 7] T 53

to a related company (note 35) RAEIZ PSR (FIEE35) 51,000 -
Rental charged by a related company & FEE QA 2,870 2,870
Purchase of machinery from [ N R R B i Es

an associate 18,370 8,381
Repair and maintenance charged S #E RIRE THE QR

by an associate 1,388 1,561

(b) Balances with related parties (b) EEEALZ&EEH
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —T—+tF
$000 $'000
Fr T
Amount due to an associate JETESZ N BRI (FIFET1)

(note 11) 2,587 2,992
Amount due to a related company ~ FEfFREE A AR (M7 12)

(note 12) 123,397 65,067
The amounts due to an associate and the related T E AR R EE N RRKA
company are unsecured, interest-free and repayable IR - REFF B WEESKE
on demand. BB o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SA AN - LABITLIIR)

37 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(c) Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s
directors as disclosed in note 29(b) and certain of
the highest paid employees as disclosed in note
29(c), is as follows:

37

FTEREALRS (E)

(0 FTEEEEBEMNE
REBZTEEBAETH B
BYNFTAABIESR 2 RIERMK
FE29b) R - MAETHR=HME
B ZHMAIRAKITE29(c) 1 5E - #
FInT

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T+%

$’000 $000

T FIT

Short-term employee benefits RHEEEA 21,541 20,307
Post-employment benefits BEB AR A 163 175
Share-based payment VARR 13 3% 1<F % M 2,007 1,886
23,711 22,368

Total remuneration is included in “employee benefit
expenses” (see note 29(a)).

(d) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to

connected transactions

Except for the disposal of subsidiaries to a related
company and rental charged by a related company
as disclosed in note 37(a) that constitute connected
transactions, none of the related party transaction
mentioned above falls under the definition of
connected transaction or continuing connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

38 NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD
From 1 April 2018 and up to the date of these financial
statements, the Company has repurchased and cancelled
1,696,000 shares of the Company at a total consideration
of $1,951,000 on aggregate.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18 53R
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e eEEIEERMIH ]
A (R MEE29@)) °

d HREXZFEEZLTRAZE
At
BR T RBIEE37 () FTELZ RRE R
ABERIFLENELRNEE
TREARBXEERZIN A
FREZBEALZZAETIA
FHRAIE14ABFRRE 2 &

RERRRZIFARER

- \FNUA—BREEAPBR
*H  ARQFEEENEHE1,696,000
B8 AR &) B A 48 2 SHEE & 1,951,000
7T|: o
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39 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 39 DAEIEMEZMBEMRRE
FINANCIAL POSITION

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
Notes $000 $000
PEE T Tt
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREEE
Investments in subsidiaries RTB AR ZIZE 869,541 730,352
Available-for-sale financial assets At HE S RIE E 18,916 18,294
888,457 748,646
Current assets RBEE
Amount due from a subsidiary N NG - 125,000
Prepayments, deposits and AR Re REA
other receivables FEMIR SR 1,283 1,228
Current tax recoverable RERAT U B A IR 117 -
Cash and bank deposits Be RFTFER 56,165 2,578
57,565 128,806
Total assets EEHAE 946,022 877,452
EQUITY ]
Capital and reserves attributable X2 TR IFH AEG
to equity shareholders of AR &
the Company
Share capital &% s 19 199,456 199,620
Other reserves Hub G 21 480,133 472,136
Retained earnings IREB A 240,734 186,862
Total equity EREE 920,323 858,618
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39 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

B S ¥ R B

A TTEIR)

39 ARIEMHZBBARRE(E)

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
Notes $000 $000
B EE T Tt
LIABILITIES aE
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Provision for long service RORGEH
payments 647 487
Current liabilities REBAE
Accruals and other payables FEst B R R E M EIER 25,052 18,347
Total liabilities affeE 25699 ... 18,834
Total equity and liabilities KRR EEAE 946,022 877,452
Net current assets REBEEFE 32,513 110,459
Total assets less current liabilities &EEZAEBRBES 920,970 859,105

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of

directors on 25 June 2018.

Ho Cheuk Fai
=
Director

EE
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Chan Ming Mui, Silvia
BR &

Director

EE
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40 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING 40

PARTY

At 31 March 2018, the directors regard TMF (B.V.1.)
Limited, which beneficially owns 40.96% of the
Company’s equity interests, to be the immediate and
ultimate controlling party of the Company. Mr. Ho Cheuk
Fai, Ms. Ho Po Chu, and Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming are the
beneficial owners of TMF (B.V.l.) Limited. TMF (B.V.l.)
Limited is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and
does not produce financial statements available for
public use.

41 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 41
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 March 2018 and which have not been adopted in
these financial statements. These include the following
which may be relevant to the Group.

BAF TEBIIR)
BEERGREHFAL

—E-N\F=A=+—H EERA
TMF (B.V.L) Limited * BB AR T
40.96% XD FE - WARQRZ HE
MEEESIALT - AIEE@EE - A8
K&+ R £ 83 5 &£ BTMF (B.V.1)
Limited 2 & z # B A ° TMF (B.V.L)
Limited A R BRE XS XL KEE R
FEMIEHRE -

EEGEERARBE=2—N
F=ZA=+—HBLEEEENMZ
ﬂ%a/ﬁ%ﬁiﬁéﬂum B REE R

BEEAYBBRERER BB
AgRM T ZERBE_T—N\F
A=t HLFERRERZZIA
CEIDSE R IR NN 8
WM - THREPAEEASEA
-

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RUTHES 2%

MRzt HEEN

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2018
BBV MELRFEIN 2T A —E-N\&—H—H

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

BV BRELNEI5H - KEFFEHIMA

Amendments to HKFRS 2, Share-based payment: Classification and

measurement of share-based payment transactions
BEMBREERNE 25 2MERT - AR SR -
LRSI 2 KX 52 IR R E

HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions and advanced consideration

BEERVBRERERNSTE 22 IEXZRBNAE

HKFRS 16, Leases
ERMBHmMEERNE 165 HE

HK(IFRIC) 23, Uncertainty over income tax treatments

BRERYBERERBEREE 235 - FREH B T HE L
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—E-nF—H—H




Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Br SHB AN -

41 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards
and interpretations is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far the Group has identified some
aspects of the new standards which may have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements. Further details of the expected impacts are
discussed below. While the assessment has been
substantially completed for HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15, the
actual impacts upon the initial adoption of the standards
may differ as the assessment completed to date is based
on the information currently available to the Group, and
further impacts may be identified before the standards
are initially applied in the Group’s interim financial
report for the six months ended 30 September 2018. The
Group may also change its accounting policy elections,
including the transition options, until the standard is
initially applied in that financial report.

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on accounting
for financial instruments, HKAS 39, Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement. HKFRS 9
introduces new requirements for classification and
measurement of financial assets, including the
measurement of impairment for financial assets and
hedge accounting. On the other hand, HKFRS 9
incorporates without substantive changes the
requirements of HKAS 39 for recognition and
derecognition of financial instruments and the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2018 on a retrospective basis. The Group
plans to use the exemption from restating comparative
information and will recognise any transition adjustments
against the opening balance of equity at 1 April 2018.
Expected impacts of the new requirements on the
Group's financial statements are as follows:

41

B S ¥ R B

A TTEIR)

EEMBEHAREE-ZF—N
FZA=+-BLEEENZ
E5] - MERRREBUERK
B (E)

REE LR AL FER - LR K2
BYARXNEAYEZEZE - ZB1A
1 REED BB ER 2 KL E
AREHERAMBRREREATE -
BRARHIFE E— S EwmIT -
HARBEBHBERELAEIRNE
AR ELRIFE 155 2 FHHE R
SRR BERRE S K 2 FHEER A
SEBRRAIREFZEM  HibE XK
WEAZBERZEREEAMTR -
mAEZFEEREANANEEE
E-T-A\FAA=TBELERNERZ
FHIR S RER RS RRELTE -
AREET AN ZE R HRERE - 8
EBEEE  BIRFEREREZ
B EmERER

ERMBEREEANEIR  SRMIA
BB BRELENEIRBIRIESR
BITeMITASHENZEBSE
B39k (& T A : BRKTE] -
EBVEHREERFIRSIAT &7
BEDHENGEZHHATE  BESH
EERBRIAPEFFTEITE 5
—FHE - BBMBREENEIRET
EREEZEHT - MATBSIER
F39GEBRSR T AR RKRILER
MeMBEDERFTEZHRTE -

B BRELENEIRENR TN\
F-A—Hsk kAR ZFEHREE
M BBEPRS - REBETEIER
HEIALERERNZ#R  XHR =
T N\FWA— ABEREAREE
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B Rk 2 ARTEWT
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41 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 41
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments(continued)

(@) Classification and measurement
HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification
categories for financial assets: measured at (1)
amortised cost, (2) fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL) and (3) fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI):

— The classification for debt instruments is
determined based on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
asset. If a debt instrument is classified as
FVTOCI then interest revenue, impairment and
gains/losses on disposal will be recognised in
profit or loss.

— For equity securities, the classification is
FVTPL regardless of the entity’s business
model. The only exception is if the equity
security is not held for trading and the entity
irrevocably elects to designate the security as
FVTOCIL. If an equity security is designated as
FVTOCI then only dividend income on that
security will be recognised in profit or loss.
Gains, losses and impairments on that security
will be recognised in other comprehensive
income without recycling.

The Group has assessed that its financial assets
currently measured at amortised cost and key
management insurance contracts will continue with
their respective classification and measurements
upon adoption of HKFRS 9.
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41 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments(continued)

(b)

Impairment

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces
the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with an
“expected credit loss” model. Under the expected
credit loss model, it will no longer be necessary for
a loss event to occur before an impairment loss is
recognised. Instead, an entity is required to
recognise and measure either a 12-month expected
credit loss or a lifetime expected credit loss,
depending on the asset and the facts and
circumstances. The Group expects that the
application of the expected credit loss model may
result in earlier recognition of credit losses. Based
on a preliminary assessment, the directors of the
Group anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9
would not have material impact on the results and
financial position of the Group.

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for

recognising revenue from contracts with customers.
HKFRS 15 will replace the existing revenue standards,
HKAS 18, Revenue, which covers revenue arising from

sale of goods and rendering of services, and HKAS 11,

Construction contracts, which specifies the accounting

for revenue from construction contracts.

Based on the assessment completed to date, the Group

has identified the following areas which are expected to
be affected:

EEBEHAREE-ZF—N
FZA=+-BLEEENZ
1B5] - MEARZE RSB X
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41 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 41 CEHEEARBEZE=-Z—N

272

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with

customers(continued)

(@)

Timing of revenue recognition

The Group’s revenue recognition policies are
disclosed in note 2(x). Currently, revenue from sales
of goods is generally recognised when the risks and
rewards of ownership have passed to the customers.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the
customer obtains control of the promised good or
service in the contract. HKFRS 15 identifies 3
situations in which control of the promised good or
service is regarded as being transferred over time:

(i)  When the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the
entity’s performance, as the entity performs;

(i)  When the entity’s performance creates or
enhances an asset (for example work in
progress) that the customer controls as the
asset is created or enhanced;

(iii) When the entity’s performance does not create
an asset with an alternative use to the entity
and the entity has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do
not fall into any of these 3 situations, then under
HKFRS 15 the entity recognises revenue for the sale
of that good or service at a single point in time,
being when control has passed. Transfer of risks and
rewards of ownership is only one of the indicators
that will be considered in determining when the
transfer of control occurs.
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41 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 (continued)
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers(continued)

(a)

Timing of revenue recognition (continued)

Based on the assessment completed to date, the
Group has assessed that the new revenue standard
is not likely to have significant impact on how it
recognises revenue from sales of goods. However,
revenue recognition for sales of properties is
expected to be affected. Currently the Group’s
property development activities are carried out in
the PRC. Taking into account the contract terms, the
Group’s business practice and the respective local
legal and regulatory environment, the Group has
assessed that its property sales contracts in the PRC
will not meet the criteria for recognising revenue
over time and therefore revenue from property sales
will continue to be recognised at a point in time.
Currently the Group recognises revenue from
property sales in the PRC upon the later of the
signing of the sale and purchase agreement and the
completion of the property development, which is
taken to be the point in time when the risks and
rewards of ownership of the property have been
transferred to the customer. The Group has assessed
that under the transfer-of-control approach in the
new standard revenue from property sales in the
PRC will generally be recognised when the
construction of the relevant properties have been
completed, the properties have been delivered to
the purchasers and collectability of related
receivables is reasonably assured, which is the
point in time when the customer has the ability to
direct the use of the property and obtain
substantially all of the remaining benefits of the
property. This may result in revenue being
recognised later than at present.
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41 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 41
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE

EHEMAEMRREBEZE=-ZE—N
F=ZA=+—HBLEEEENMZ
B3] - FMERRZRETREER

YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 (continued) B (E) ‘
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with ﬁfﬁﬂﬁ%iﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁw % REEF
customers(continued) EHZWA(E)

274

(b)

Significant financing component

HKFRS 15 requires an entity to adjust the
transaction price for the time value of money when
a contract contains a significant financing
component, regardless of whether the payments
from customers are received significantly in
advance or in arrears. Currently, the Group does
not apply such a policy when payments are
received in advance.

Advance payments are not common in the Group’s
arrangements with its customers, with the exception
of when residential properties are marketed by the
Group while the property is still under construction.

In assessing whether such advance payments
schemes include a significant financing component,
the Group has considered the length of time
between the payment date and the completion date
of legal assignment (i.e. the date when the
customers obtain control of the properties) based on
the typical arrangements entered into with the
customers.

Where such advance payment schemes include a
significant financing component, the transaction
price will need to be adjusted to separately account
for this component. Such adjustment will result in
interest expense being recognised to reflect the
effect of the financing benefit obtained from the
customers during the period between the payment
date and the completion date of legal assignment,
with a corresponding increase to revenue on sale of
properties recognised when control of the
completed property is transferred to the customer.
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41 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 (continued)
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers(continued)

(b)

Significant financing component (continued)

The Group plans to elect to use the cumulative
effect transition method for the adoption of HKFRS
15 and will recognise the cumulative effect of initial
application as an adjustment to the opening balance
of equity at 1 April 2018. As allowed by HKFRS 15,
the Group plans to apply the new requirements
only to contracts that are not completed before 1
April 2018. Since the number of “open” contracts
for sales of development properties at 31 March
2018 is limited, the Group expects that the
transition adjustment to be made upon the initial
adoption of HKFRS 15 will not be material.
However, the expected changes in accounting
policies as described above could have a material
impact on the Group’s financial results from 2018
onwards.
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Five-year Financial Summary

EFHBERE

The results of the Group for the last five financial years ended A&£EHEZE-ZT—\F=HA=+—HILF(E

31 March 2018 and the assets and liabilities of the Group as at BB FE 2 %#4E  R-ZT—NF - —T—Hh

31 March 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017 and 2018 are as follows: F_E-RF - E—EFREFT-NF
ZA=tT—RZEERBENT

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS mEXE
Year ended 31 March
BE-A=t-HL¥E
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
“E-0\f ZT—+Ff TR CZT-nf CZE-MmF
$/000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000
Fr Tr T Tr Tr
(Restated)
(B=5)
Note
izt
Revenue WA 2919,880 2,699,838 2,897,605 2,590,623 2,033,018
Operating profit B2RT 264,191 220,469 150,371 93,978 47,183
Finance income BBUA 1,542 1,058 1,533 3,538 799
Finance costs B (14,883) (11,579) (16,039) (13,188) (3,487)
Share of profits/(losses) of associates [E{LEE& 12 B/ (B518) 872 247 294 (193) (201)
Profit before taxation BB AR R 251,722 210,195 136,159 84,135 44,294
Income tax g (34,015) (20,642) (19,488) (8,429) (11,708)
Profit for the year from FERRRALE
continuing operations BeExK 217,707 189,553 116,671 75,706 32,586
Loss for the year from FERBCRILE
discontinued operations £BER (35,414) (21,341) - - -
Profit for the year EERT 182,293 168,212 116,671 75,706 32,586
Attributable to: JEft
Equity shareholders of RRREEFAA
the Company 182,563 168,333 117,076 76,298 34,291
Non-controlling interests FEIR AR RS (270) (121 (405) (592) (1,705)
182,293 168,212 116,671 75,706 32,586
Note: The disposal of subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2018 iz : BE_Z—-N\FZA=+—HILEFHEHE

MEARBKERIEREER - RIEFE
MBmELRNES R [HEHRBEEK
ERUIEEXFE ] AREERUR-F
—tFEMEINLEEN -BR - BT
BRGmEMRHAEFZHBELSLT
PIEAAT

constituted discontinued operations. In accordance with HKFRS 5,
Non-current Assets Held for Sales and Discontinued Operations,
the Group has re-presented the comparative information in 2017 in
this regard. However, it is not practicable to restate the financial
information for the earlier years for comparison purposes.
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Five-year Financial Summary

AFMBERE

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES SEEENERE
At 31 March
R=ZB=+—-H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-N\F ZE—+F ZF—RF ZFT-1F ZT-OF
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr T T T T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREEE 900,492 853,555 922,326 991,959 792,233
Current assets MBEE 1,743,125 1,482,949 1,155,765 973,809 870,262
Total assets BEHLE 2,643,617 2,336,504 2,078,091 1,965,768 1,662,495
EQUITY i
Share capital [N 199,456 199,620 199,620 199,620 199,620
Reserves EEE 988,826 878,883 817,560 788,529 739,765
1,188,282 1,078,503 1,017,180 988,149 939,385
Non-controlling interests IR S - (1,750) (1,344) (939) (347)
Total equity EnRBE 1,188,282 1,076,753 1,015,836 987,210 939,038
LIABILITIES =§
Non-current liabilities FREEE 502,588 504,875 78,044 26,560 39,843
Current liabilities MBAE 952,747 754,876 984,211 951,998 683,614
Total liabilities BEBE 1,455,335 1,259,751 1,062,255 978,558 723,457
Total equity and liabilities BEhBERE 2,643,617 2,336,504 2,078,091 1,965,768 1,662,495
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Properties Held by the Group
rEBEEZUE

As at 31 March 2018 R=Z—N\F=A=+—H

&

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE FhEERME
Site area Stage of Percentage
Location (sq.m.) Lease expiry  Completion holding
TEE
B (F7K) HERE RREE BRESR
1 No.47-1, Jiahui Lu, 61,864 2085  Under 100%
You Gan Bu Da Long Industrial District, (residential  Construction
Fenggang Town, Dongguan City, purpose) A
Guangdong Province, (/)
The People’s Republic of China (note 1)
FEERER=MREE 2055
MHBEARIERZER 4751 (commercial
(P&ET) purpose)
GEED)
2 “Forest Town”, Phase 3, Castfast Villas, 32,799 2084  Under 50%
Fenggang Town, Dongguan City, (residential  Construction
Guangdong Province, purpose)  FEEH
The People’s Republic of China (note 2) (F=EmH)
FEERERMEME
FESE=H [#RE ] (E2) 2054
(commercial
purpose)
(ExM)
3 Jin San Jiao Development Zone, 4,798 2087  Under 100%
Dongping Village, Zhangning Town, (residential  Construction
Boluo County, Huizhou City, Guangdong purpose)  fEEH
Province, (=)
The People’s Republic of China (note 1)
PEEREEMTEES 2057
REBRIHE=ARER (commercial
P ER (MiEE1) purpose)
GEED)
Note: sk -
1. The construction is expected to be completed in the first quarter of 1.  TRBEHARZZTZZTFE—FRT o
2020.
2. The construction is expected to be completed in the first quarter of 2. TiEBEFARN_ZT—NFEF—FET -
2019.
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Properties Held by the Group
AEEEREZWE

As at 31 March 2018 R=—Z— N\EFE=A=+—H

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE (SLE/ES
Gross floor area Percentage
Location (sq.m.) Lease expiry holding
BEEE
o BE (FFHXK) HERB FEESK
1 Unit 25B, 165 2062 100%

Sunlight Court, Castfast Villas,
Fenggang Town, Dongguan City,
Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China
PEIERE R=mRlEE
RERERER 2588

2 Unit 16A, 148 2062 100%
Twilight Court, Castfast Villas,
Fenggang Town, Dongguan City,
Guangdong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
Bl E RS R Fl R
RIESEVIERE 1612 AR

3 Unit 25C, 143 2062 100%
Skylight Court, Castfast Villas,
Fenggang Town, Dongguan City,
Guangdong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
BB IR & R Bl e R
RESETERM 252 CR

4 16 residential units (formerly used as service 1,238 2062 100%
apartments), Area B, Castfast Villas,
Fenggang Town, Dongguan City,
Guangdong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEIERE R=mRlEE
REREBETNEEEEM
(A& RBEEALSE)
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Properties Held by the Group
¢ REBIFEZME

As at 31 March 2018 R=Z—N\F=A=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT MEFERE
Percentage
Location Existing use holding
1 B k=S FREEO
1 East of Jingyi Road and South of Wenzhuang Road, Idle 100%
Yixing Economic Development Zone, =g
Wouxi City, Jiangsu Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEITEEEHT
B B 5 3 R S B A
B2 5% R AR
2 Wenzhuang Road, Idle 100%
Yixing Economic Development Zone, =B

Wouxi City, Jiangsu Province,
The People’s Republic of China
EP BT# & &

S48 75 R B 8 SRR BR

Note: The above properties are either freehold, held on long or it : A EYEAMAE T - REROLPHR
medium-term leases or have no specified lease term. HWRBICRAEEHER -
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